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Financial Summary

SRS

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

BE+T-A=+-HLEE

Year ended 31 December
—E-=f % T-——-% ZE-TF ZZTNF
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000

W zs Revenue 23,328,991 21,405,723 16,931,929 12,590,784 9,108,610
EF Gross profit 7,779,629 7,401,844 4,942 612 4,043,057 3,616,667
BRETEHAIEFR  Profit before income tax 1,116,048 1,076,929 396,391 682,465 896,471
EREY Income tax expense (199,636) (221,041) (84,451) (163,397) (191,589)
FEERA Profit for the year 916,412 855,888 311,940 519,068 704,882
/NI oy Profit attributable to equity holders

BEAEMEER  of the Company 916,412 855,888 311,940 519,068 704,882
iidss Dividends 183,282 171,178 93,582 155,712 352,458

AR¥S ARED ARED ARED ARERD
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents

BREXZH Basic earnings per share 25.46 23.78 8.67 14.42 19.58

R+=A=+-H
As at 31 December
—E-=f % ZT-——% ZE-TF ZZTNF
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BEE Total assets 18,967,792 16,539,813 13,737,392 9,580,685 8,153,803
BEE Total liabilities 10,825,624 8,868,745 6,926,497 2,921,148 1,699,977
BmiEE Total equity 8,142,168 7,671,068 6,810,895 6,659,537 6,453,826
RBeRBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,413,929 2,290,809 2,369,050 2,427,362 3,359,788
e (BE)/ Net current (Liabilities)/

BEFE assets (828,438) (30,930) (469,559) 1,497,772 2,812,972

Bm—EPBEERBRAR —E—=FFK
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Chairman’s Statement

Looking back at 2013, we saw a year with extremely complicated
economic situations, in which the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) has entered a period of structural adjustments, and
economic development was experiencing greater downward
pressure. GDP in 2013 grew by 7.7% on a year-on-year basis,
indicating a slight drop of the growth rate. Nevertheless, the
PRC economy still maintained a growth which is relatively sound
and stable as compared with other regions/countries. In face of
the structural adjustments in economy, the growth in food and
beverage industry slowed down significantly in 2013.

The solid operating foundation, the sound financial position, the
core competitiveness and efficient operating management allowed
us to expand our market share and accomplish the operating
targets set by the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) through
organisational advancement and increased marketing. In order
to achieve the corporate goals, we have stepped up our internal
structural reforms, continuously improved our product mix and
enhanced our management. The continual improvement of product
portfolio and profitability was regarded as the most important
element in assessing segment performance. Through stringent
control over operating expenses and streamlined operations, our
overall competitiveness was enhanced with higher organisational
efficiency. Meanwhile, we also continued to set up production
bases in preparation for the opportunities of market development in
the long run.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) strived to adhere
to the strategy of focused operation so as to bring continuous
enhancements to our brand value. In 2013, through cautious
steps, tremendous confidence and effective execution, the Group
was successful in generating a revenue of RMB23.329 billion,
representing a 9.0% increase year on year, and a profit attributable
to shareholders of RMB916.4 million, representing a 7.1% increase
on a year-on-year basis.

In 2013, we continued to follow the strategy of developing the
mid-to-high end instant noodles market. The overall revenue from
instant noodles hit a historic record of RMB7,825.9 million, with a
7.7% growth on a year-on-year basis. Our focused operation by
putting emphasis on particular products was proven to be effective.
“Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles (ZEBF&
SEAHE)” has become the top-selling flavoured noodles in the
PRC. “Braised Beef Flavoured Noodles (KA%E)”, our second key
product, has become another growth driver in our instant noodles
business since its launch.

Bm—EEREERARLR —E-=FFK
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In the beverage business, the Group recorded a revenue of
RMB15,151.5 million in 2013, with a 8.9% growth on a year-
on-year basis. Tea drinks business grew in spite of economic
downturn, the revenue growth from juice drinks outperformed the
industry and the milk tea segment showed continuous growth.
The market shares of all the above product lines kept increasing
steadily, with “Uni Milk Tea (#—#%%)” maintaining its leading
position in the market share.

DIVIDENDS

Based on the overall performance of the Group in 2013 and after
considering the profits, overall financial condition and capital
expenditure of the Group, the Board will recommend a payment
of final cash dividend of RMB5.092 cents (with a total dividend of
RMB183,282,000) at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

We expect a stable growth in the economy of the PRC in 2014
with a GDP growth rate of 7.5%. With the gradual implementation
of economic structural adjustments, and the effect of economical
benefits from urbanisation starting to show, we hold an optimistic
view on the steady growth of the food and beverage market.
The Group will continue with its strategy of focused operation
by following the directions of urbanisation planning, and place
emphasis in key markets. Meanwhile, the Group will keep abreast
of market trends and consumers’ preferences, and develop high-
end products to meet consumers’ needs. The momentum for
the growth of the Group’s performance in the long-run will be
established to bring reasonable returns to all shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The stable development of the Group rides on the staunch support
and concerted efforts of different parties. On behalf of the Board,
| hereby extend my sincere gratitude to our clients, suppliers,
business partners, financial institutions and shareholders for their
full support and to our staff for their dedications and contributions
over the past year.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

18 March 2014

Bm—EPBEERBRAR —E—=FFK
6 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013



BEEENWR D

Management Discussion & Analysis
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The global economy was complicated in 2013 while structural
adjustment was underway in the PRC. Despite the slower growth
rate, economy in the PRC is still relatively sound and stable, with
GDP in 2013 grew by 7.7% year-on-year, in comparison with other
regions/countries. Foods and beverage industry in the PRC were
affected by structural adjustments in economy with increased
downward pressure, resulting in a slower growth rate in 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2013, the Group adhered to the policies of focused and
streamlined operations. We recorded stable revenue growth in
our instant noodles and beverage businesses, outpacing average
industry growth rate. Our key instant noodle product “Lao Tan
Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles (318 B4 Sz4-A14H)”
was ranked the first among other spicy flavoured instant noodles
in terms of sales. In terms of beverage business, our tea drinks
business managed to grow amid the contractions in the market
in general, while our revenues from juice drinks and milk tea
businesses recorded continuous growth. The market shares of all
the categories above increased steadily. The principal activities of
the Group are set out below.

Bm—EEREERARLR —E-=FFK
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB23,329.0 million, representing an
increase of 9.0% from RMB21,405.7 miliion for the corresponding
period last year. Revenue from the instant noodles and beverages
products increased by 7.7% and 8.9% to RMB7,825.9 million
and RMB15,151.5 million respectively, accounting for 33.5% and
64.9% respectively of the Group’s total revenue. During the Year,
owing to resources put to enhance competition advantages of
the products, gross profit of the Group increased by 5.1% from
RMB7,401.8 million to RMB7,779.6 million while gross profit
margin decreased by 1.3 percentage points from 34.6% for the
corresponding period of last year to 33.3%.

During the Year, in light of the proactive efforts of the Group
in brand building to create brand value, development of sales
network to stabilise and expand its customer base, the selling
and marketing expenses for the Year increased by 12.9% to
RMB6,825.0 million (2012: RMB6,043.0 million). During the Year,
administrative expenses amounted to RMB840.0 million (2012:
RMB722.9 million), which was mainly attributable to corresponding
increase in expenses from new production base construction and
capacity expansion. During the Year, share of profit of investments
accounted for using the equity method were decreased to
RMB88.4 million (2012: RMB131.6 million) due to the slight
decrease in earnings of Jinmailang Beverage Corporate Limited*
(52 BP B A% 15 B R A A) during the Year.

During the Year, profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company was RMB916.4 million, representing an increase of 7.1%
as compared with RMB855.9 million of the corresponding period
last year, and earnings per share were RMB25.46 cents (2012:
RMB23.78 cents).

*

For identification purpose only

Bm—EPBEERBRAR —E—=FFK
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Instant Noodles Business

Our instant noodles business continued to maintain stable
growth during 2013 with a revenue of RMB7,825.9 million for the
year, representing a year-on-year growth of 7.7%. According to
ACNielsen, the market share of our instant noodles business rose
by 1.4 percentage points from 15.8% in 2012 to 17.2% in 2013,
being the fastest growth for four consecutive years in the industry.
With our effective and focused operating strategy, our key product,
“Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles (83
£ 4", continued to rank the first among Chinese spicy instant
noodle in terms of sales in 2013. The second key product, “Braised
Beef Flavoured Noodles (EA%HE)”, also maintained a rapid growth
and became another key instant noodles flavour of the Group.

ACNielsen reported that sales amount of instant noodles in
general grew only 2.6% and the sales volume declined by 1.3%
in 2013 as compared to the corresponding period last year, with
a slower market growth in general. The increase in sales amount
has exceeded that in sales volume for several years continuously,
clearly indicating an undergoing industry upgrade generally.
Mid-to-high-priced instant noodles will become increasingly
popular in the future. The Group has already shifted the focus
to mid-to-high-priced instant noodles and has been following a
“value-oriented marketing ({B{E1TH)” strategy since the second
half of 2008. We set ourselves to offer noticeably unique and high
value-added products to consumers, and oriented by “innovation”,
have introduced new flavours for recent years which tend to lead
the trend of the general market. Our key product, “Lao Tan Pickled
Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles”, has changed the overall
pattern of instant noodles flavour, and since its introduction, has
been very popular among consumers, which led market players
to compete for the pickled cabbage flavoured noodles market,
and thus changed the spicy flavour market structure. The share
of pickled cabbage flavoured noodles ranked the first in the spicy
market and the second in the general market. Our “Lao Tan Pickled
Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles” was able to maintain its
leading position in the industry according to ACNielsen. Our second
key product, “Braised Beef Flavoured Noodles”, initiated braised
beef flavours, which saw a rapid growth according to ACNielsen.
Since its launch in 2011, its market share has improved to the
fourth in the general market in 2013. The Group will continue to
aggressively expand the mid-to-high-priced instant noodles market
and to make every effort to develop distinctive products catering for
consumers’ demand.

Bm—EEREERARLR —E-=FFK
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In the spicy flavour market, many competitors have also released
products similar to our “Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef
Flavoured Noodles” to compete with us. In view of the surge of
imitating products that were not made by double fermentation with
traditional pickling jars but have also been called “lao tan pickled
cabbage flavour”, we continued to improve our operating strategy
in relation to “Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured
Noodles” and advocate our “authenticity of Lao Tan (IERE18)”
concept. In respect of product quality, we worked with China
National Research Institute of Food & Fermentation Industry (F
Bl R Em T 7EFT) to research the production process of pickled
cabbage, which was the origination in the industry. The Group
managed the whole industry chain from cultivation of leaf mustards
to cabbage pickling to production and packaging and presented
itself as an industry benchmark with its unparalleled “secondary
fermentation (Z)XZ8)” technology. We also actively participated
in drafting of the standards in the “seasoning packet for instant
noodles (J7&EFAK )" industry. In terms of brand promotion and
marketing, we differentiated ourselves from the competing and
imitating pickled cabbage flavoured products and strengthened
our interaction with consumers. We also promoted and marketed
our concept of “Made by 81-day Double Fermentation with
Traditional Pickling Jars ({B#t&18 - 5%k - L \+—X)”
in a full range, and established the image of “Uni-President Lao
Tan: Authentic Sourness and Crunchiness (F&5R RETAT—E1E)” in
consumers’ hearts by the new advertising film’s spokesman Mr.
Wang Han with his image of “Master”. In 2013, we organised a
sauerkraut packet factory tour, giving consumers an opportunity
to learn more about the production process of our originated and
authentic “lao tan pickled cabbage”, which was well received by
the visitors. Through ongoing interactions with consumers, our “Lao
Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles” broke off the
hostile product imitation of many competitors and won in the price
competition, thus further reinforcing its leading position in the spicy
flavor market.

B—EEPBEERAERAR —E—=FFH
10 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013



BEEENWR D

Management Discussion & Analysis

EAROKMS L AEE-FTEBERE
DRAM]  BARNEBRBELPRELEA
Mo -REEZIBS AT—REXT]
AEEIH  EREIEET KRR - Zhig
B BEAR IS - HERDHEEETA
BENRYE  RORTEMIEIONDE
R SEEEBES ME BEFHR
B EREFEREEE RAHEEEELT
RO DEEH KB —RAM] - 5—
A FABRFEREROKRTISE - RKOKRIA
AR | VTS - B2013F RE ERELH
FHARRR AT %] - AR -~ 0 -~ JiX
BEMOSTR RHEXK ELEAHNE
o WEAIEMBEAMEES  BEAK
75 8 4 F 8 A PR Y dn b D AR BE SR B - B
BMAMAEEELENKD - BEEED
ROKTHME -

ERMZENE  AEERFIREZABK]
MERA - BB ERRARE L 2102013
FRERBTREBEAN I2HMERA/RE
Mo R R RETERNLE -

For the non-spicy flavour market, we continued to develop “Braised
Beef Flavoured Noodles”, focusing on building the image of
“Braised Beef Flavoured Noodles is the Choice for New Generation
Consumers (MR - T —RA)EIE)” among consumers, and
promoted the concept of “Long-Pickled and Slow-Braised with
18 Selected Pickling Ingredients, Delivering Rich Aroma and
Taste (f5iE 1+ /\HEE » ZWIEE - HEAK)” by extending
our marketing theme of “unbelievably divine taste of such unique
product (—EZEXT)”. The promotion activities mainly included
free tasting events extensively which gave a full demonstration
of the “flavour” of the product. In addition, we also via such new
media as internet advertising, microblogging and WeChat, actively
communicated with the young and called on consumers to choose
our new “Braised Beef Flavoured Noodles” when they select non-
spicy flavoured noodles. On the other hand, we have committed
to capture the market share of “Stewed Beef Flavoured Noodles
(AIKE4PI4E)”, as the largest flavour in the non-spicy market. In
particular, since late 2013, we have introduced the new upgraded
“Stewed Beef Flavoured Noodles” which offer more delicious and
heartier products by adding meat, eggs and ham, to attract existing
consumers of stewed beef flavour. Leveraging on the maturing
brand influence and sales networks of our instant noodles, we have
captured the non-spicy flavour market share by the development of
both stewed and braised beef flavours.

In terms of food safety, by upholding the principle of “food
safety is more important than everything (BRZA@BXK)”, in view
of consumers’ health, since 2013, we have initiated the use of
raw paper in both internal and external packages of container of
noodles, being the pioneer in the instant noodles industry.
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In respect of sales network construction, under the circumstance
that consumers were spreading over and gathering in a group
of surrounding cities instead of gathering in one single city, we
targeted at enhancing sales channels in a group of key cities,
particularly focusing on the urban villages and urban fringe zones
in those cities, which was roughly completed in 2013. For those
areas other than key cities, we focused on wholesale to cover
customer base not in our layout areas. Regarding development of
new and special channels, in view of the change of travel distances
and means of transport, we have focused on and improved the
network and operation of highway service areas, high-speed
railway stations, airports and tourist attractions, in order to generate
additional opportunities for business growth.

Beverage Business

In 2013, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB15,151.5 million
from beverage business, representing an increase of 8.9% over
2012. Our strategy has remained as focusing on our main brands
and our operation has focused on the enhancement of key cities
in terms of channels distribution and construction. In addition to
promoting the distribution of effective sales outlets of distributors,
we will launch refrigerators and hot drinks machines in key sales
outlets in 2014, to improve product sales strength and bring out
profit growth momentum. Set out below is the performance of our
beverage business by product categories:

BG—EPEERERAR —E—=FFK
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Tea Drinks

In 2013, the sales amount and sales volume of tea drinks industry
(excluding milk tea) as a whole continued to record a negative
growth. According to ACNielsen, sales of milk beverages in general
went up by 11.2%, compared with the corresponding period last
year. However, sales of tea drinks (excluding milk tea) decreased
by 5.7%. There was a noticeable shift in consumer preference
between categories of beverages, reflecting significant changes in
respect of market segments.

Although the general tea drink market continued its weak trend,
the Group’s tea drinks business maintained growth amid market
downturn, generally outperforming the industry in 2013. It recorded
a revenue of RMB6,143.1 million, representing an increase of
9.8% as compared to corresponding period last year. According
to ACNielsen, its market share increased by 2.0 percentage points
from 22.6% in 2012 to 24.6% in 2013.

In 2013, as lower prices in major raw materials related to tea
drinks mitigated pressures on cost, manufacturers successively
increased their efforts on promotion, intensifying the market
competition. Faced with the complicated competition, the
Group’s tea drinks business was able to grow amid industry
downturn, with remarkable increase of its market share, mainly
attributable to the focused operational strategy and adherence
to the concept of brand value-oriented marketing. The Group
maintained its existing strategy in relation to tea drinks business,
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focusing on the operations of “Uni lce Tea (H—iK4Z%)” and
“Uni Green Tea (#i—#k4%)”. In respect of product quality, with
the combination of improved packaging and product upgrades,
our tea drinks business continued to maintain leading position
in terms of consumer preference. In terms of brand promotion
and marketing, “Uni Ice Tea” kicked off its celebrity endorsement
campaign featuring Avril Lavigne, an international star, together
with the thematic activity of “In Pursuit of Unlimited, Dare to Reach
Target (fR[REY\ - BEIEFELIE). By taking full advantages of a
combination of traditional and internet new media advertisements,
we successfully publicised the core brand theme of “Youth
Unlimited (FESEEHRR)” of “Uni lce Tea” and enhanced the brand’s
identity and uniqueness. With the theme of “With My Own Tracks
(FE PN for “Uni Green Tea”, we organised a series of topical
activities and events which communicated our brand tagline of
“Experience the Nature (FiTEA)” via media advertising. The
cycling events of “Uni Green Tea” also helped publicise the brand’s
“taste of new leaves and aromatic tea ({25 @ 4FZ58K)”, and the
naturalness of our products have, conversely, assisted in building
up the direct association between “Uni Green Tea = Experience the
Nature = Green Cycling (i —#%4% = BB A = £ EH17)” so as
to enhance the popularity of the “Uni Green Tea” cycling activities
among the consumers.

In 2013, in addition to focusing on its featured products “Uni Ice
Tea” and “Uni Green Tea”, the Group also arranged to develop
new products, such as pure tea and plant tea products, to satisfy
the demand of different consumers. By adhering to the concept
of nature and health, the Group launched two new product series
“Just Tea (BEZ2R)” and “Natural Intuiton (fEZ)”, which were
introduced into the market in the second quarter successively.
Under the guidance of our strategy of value-oriented marketing and
focused operation, we concentrated “Just Tea” in Shanghai and
“Natural Intuition” in the South and the East of China, which were
well received by consumers upon their inception, and built a high-
valued brand image.
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For tea drinks business, the Group will continue to focus on its main
products “Uni Ice Tea” and “Uni Green Tea” and continue to put
resources on marketing to improve customers’ satisfaction and its
brand image in 2014. Regarding “Uni Ice Tea”, we will upgrade the
product with new bottle and new bottle label, adding abundant and
smooth flavours such as double lemon, and will continue its celebrity
endorsement campaign featuring Avril Lavigne, an international rock
star, in respect of brand building, aiming to attract young consumers
with the event of “Skateboarding Unlimited” for three consecutive
years, together with the thematic activity of “Double Skateboarding
Unlimited in Two Cities: Release Yourself (£ 1% R # @\ double
#WA)” through organising skateboarding parties. As for “Uni Green
Tea”, we will encourage consumers to experience the nature in an
enjoyable way with various green cycling activities in 2014, building
enjoyable cycling culture. Looking into 2014, the Group will continue
to focus on the operation of existing tea drinks products and grasp
consumer trends to improve the existing market share of tea drinks
by intensive operation and multi-pronged approach.

Juice Drinks

Our juice drinks business recorded a revenue of RMB4,258.8
million in 2013, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.6%.
In comparison, the growth rate of the sales amount of the juice
drinks market in general was only 1.8% in the Year according
to ACNielsen. The Group was able to fully utilise celebrity
endorsement and outperformed the industry in general by focusing
on “More Orange Juice (i —##1%%)” under the brand “More Juice
Series (#i—%251)” and “Crystal Sugar Pear Drink (7K1EZH5Y)”
under the brand “Seasonal Drinks (81& U Z)”, with an increase
of 0.7 percentage points in the overall market share.
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In 2013, by adhering to the promotion theme of “Boosting Your
Beauty with Vitamin C (%2C%Zz)” of the “More Juice Series”,
we organised large meetings to interact with consumers with the
influence of spokespersons. By using the new media vehicles
such as micro-flms and MVs in addition to traditional marketing
methods, we drew ourselves and the young consumers closer
in order to rejuvenate the brand. “Crystal Sugar Pear
Drink”, a Chinese traditional health drink, is the main
product under the “Seasonal Drinks” series. In 2013,
the Group developed “Crystal Sugar Kumquat Drink (7k

ME<4%)” flavour, which expanded the product lines

and recorded a satisfactory performance since its
introduction. With the theme of “quenching and
soothing quality (F/LxH)”" of “Seasonal Drinks”,
the Group organised a number of thematic
events and produced various drinking topics
in line with seasonal changes. In addition, as
the musical effects of brand spokespersons
has continued, the Group built up its brand
image by interaction with consumers via music,
and obtained favorability and recognition from
consumers.

Looking into 2014, our juice drinks business will continue to
improve product packaging and flavour to ensure the leading
edge of our products. For “More Juice Series”, we will continue
to use “beauty” as the brand promotion theme and will adopt
entertainment marketing method through celebrity endorsement.
Regarding “Seasonal Drinks”, we will organise a thematic event
of the most quenching voice of China to place the music brand
theme deeply in the minds of consumers and to provoke emotional
resonance of consumers with the idea of love and care. While
continuing to expand our existing juice drinks business with
focused operations, we will embark on the development of new
products on the basis of meeting consumers’ demand in order to
explore market opportunities.
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Milk Tea

Revenue from our milk tea business for 2013 increased by 8.7% as
compared with the last year. According to ACNielsen, the market
share of “Uni Milk Tea (#—#32%)” increased by 0.9 percentage
point to 62.4% as compared to that for last year, thereby
maintaining its market leadership.

In 2013, the Group continued to deepen the brand theme of
“Smooth and Joyful Mood (B84 0ME)” for “Uni Milk Tea”, and
launched a national integrated marketing campaign focusing on
“Assam Milk Tea (FEEBIIZY)” with the theme of “Go Everywhere
with Joyful Mood (KT LMEBRBEAERR)”. Ms. Charlene Choi, a Hong
Kong artist, has acted as spokesperson for our commercials for
Assam Milk Tea for three consecutive years, which were aired
on CCTV and regional satellite channels. In addition, the Group
organised super and large events around key cities by ground
advertising with a view to offering cheerful mood interactive
experience with targeted consumers. Our “Uni Milk Tea” continued
to lead product innovation. Our newly-introduced “Fried Green Milk
Tea (RIZSHI4F)”, as the first green tea-based ready-to-drink milk
tea in the market, differs from black tea-based products, offering
a new milk tea flavour experience. It, after introduction into the
market, has obtained recognition from consumers, and attracted
another group of consumers, which has expanded the coverage of
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our milk tea and formed a green milk tea segment.

In the late 2013, the Group tapped into high-
end milk tea market with the brand “Hiti (%
#)”, which, with unique flavour “Thick Matcha
(FRHEZ)” and a new arc 280ml packaging,
captured the consumers group preferring high-
quality and full-bodied flavoured milk tea. “Hiti”
is distributing in convenience store chains in
major cities including Shanghai and Guangzhou.
The Group has satisfied various consumers’
demand with diversified product mix, driving up
the consumption of milk tea products.

Looking into 2014, the Group will continue to concentrate on
consumers’ demand for “Uni Milk tea” and create a value brand
to differentiate its products. Expanding the market size of ready-
to-drink milk tea will be its top priority. Our featured product,
500ml packaged Assam Milk Tea will penetrate to county and
township markets in major provinces, and 1.5L packaged Assam
Milk Tea will satisfy consumers having share-based consumption
habits such as at wedding feasts and catering functions, and
will be publicised via popular social platforms (e.g. micro-videos,
WeChat and micro-blogs) during festivals to boost sales. Our
new product “Fried Green Milk Tea” will be focused on key
cities, and we will endeavour to develop it to be the second large
ready-to-drink milk tea product. In respect of “Hiti”, we will continue
to promote high-end milk tea market, and will add a new flavour
“Hong Kong-style Thick Milk Tea (}REINIIZL)”, together with
“Thick Matcha” flavour, which will advance the new market.
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Coffee

Our coffee business maintained a steady growth in 2013 with a
year-on-year increase in revenue of 11.4%.

Under the brand “A-Ha ()", the refreshing 450ml ice coffee
targets at students and young consumers, and the mid-to-high-end
aromatic 280ml “Italian Mocha Pot (B3 EE<Z5)” series targets at
the white collar. In particular, the “ltalian Mocha Pot” series, after
introduction into the market, received great response in major cities
with its Italian Mocha Pot espresso coffee process, aromatic and
authentic taste and patented groundbreaking octagonal package
showing a traditional mocha pot shape.

In 2014, "A-Ha” Coffee will adhere to its value-oriented and
differentiation development strategy, and continue to enhance its
brand awareness and reputation. In major cities, the Group will
establish a dedicated sales team publicising Mocha Pot espresso
coffee process, to enable consumers to develop habits of spending
on high quality coffee, so as to advance future development of
ready-to-drink coffee, and to build “A-Ha” as one of the leading
ready-to-drink coffee brands in the PRC.
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Bottled Water

The revenue from our bottled water business for 2013 grew by
47.0% year-on-year, which was mainly attributable to restructuring
of product portfolio to focus on the mid-to-high-priced “ALKAQUA”
series. The percentage of “ALKAQUA” rose to over 80% of the total
revenue of the segment of bottled water, while that of our low-end
product “Uni Mineralised Water (5 —#&#)&7K)” in our sales dropped
remarkably. We planned to fully exit low-priced mineralised water
market in the second half of 2014.

The Group’s bottled water brand, ALKAQUA, recorded a 81.7%
growth in revenue as compared to the corresponding period
last year, significantly surpassing the overall growth of 16.1% of
the general bottled water market according to ACNielson. Due
to the noticeable differentiation from similar products in terms of
design and positioning, “ALKAQUA” has won the preferences and
recognition from its target customers. With the economic growth
and the continual improvement in living standard, consumers
nowadays have higher requirements for drinking water. To satisfy
the affluent consumers in their pursuit of healthy and quality lifestyle,
the Group launched “Bama Spring Mineral Water (B2 & R KRB R
7K)”, a pure and quality water source from Bama, Guangxi (a world-
famous town of longevity), in early 2013. “Bama Spring Mineral
Water” received 2013 Pentawards Golden Packaging Design Award
of “Beverages and Drinking Water” in terms of packages.

The Group will continue to actively look for quality spring water
sources across the country and will gradually establish more
gardenlike production bases for spring water throughout the
country. Leveraging on its nationwide sales network, the Group
will increase the scale and efficiency of the sales of its bottled
water in order to bring us into the league of leading
mid-to-high-priced spring water brands in the PRC.
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Research and Development

Under the “Technology-based and Innovation-crucial (B4
A - Bl#7 A3R)” principle, the Group’s research and development
(“R&D”) team has dedicated to continuous innovation and the
development of products satisfying consumers.

Our R&D team made groundbreaking innovation and improvement
of instant noodles in 2013, which tried to use mushrooms, grease
and sauce for cooking in line with consumers’ eating habits,
creating a “braised flavour packet (RZ&EFEIKE)” preferred by
consumers. Instant noodles combined with such a braised flavour
packet, being the first initiative in the industry, have improved the
flavour and value of “Braised Beef Flavoured Noodles”, and also
significantly enhanced customers’ satisfaction.

To further strengthen our dominant position in milk tea market, our
R&D team overcame the problem technically that green milk tea is
vulnerable to discoloration and off-odor and successfully launched
the “Fried Green Milk Tea” flavour in August 2013, as well as
developed “Thick Matcha” and “Hong Kong-style Thick” milk tea
under the “Hiti” series, reinforcing the Group’s leading position in
the milk tea market for flavour innovation.

In recent years, along with rising consumer spending power and
growing health consciousness, our R&D team has successively
developed a series of tea drinks such as “Just Tea” and “Natural
Intuition” in 2013. “Just Tea” series, which is in line with the market
demand for high-end sugarless tea drinks and based on strict
selection of high-quality tea leaves and technology, demonstrated
pure tea brewing process for industrialised tea drinks. “Roselle Tea
(&38IEZ)” and “Honey Chrysanthemum Tea (B Z5{EZL)” under
“Natural Intuition” series mainly target at office workers who require
healthy and refreshing functions. By selecting health-functional
plant materials and leveraging on our exclusive formulation and
processing technology, “Roselle Tea” and “Honey Chrysanthemum
Tea” successfully retained the inherent flavour and functional
components of plants, which catered for consumers’ demand for
health and new flavours.
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Food Safety

In adherence to the motto of “three goods and one fairness: good
quality, good credit, good service and fair price (Z4f—R3& : @&
97 - 5T - BRLT - B8 AE)", the Group offers safe, healthy
and delicious food products to consumers. To enhance the level of
food safety management system of the Group, a food safety and
health committee and a food safety centre have been established.
The committee and the centre focus their efforts on the deployment
and establishment of a food safety protection system, the
formulation of food safety policies, the promotion of food safety risk
assessment, precaution and control so as to ensure food safety.
They are responsible for the management of quality assurance as
well as the formulation and implementation of quality assurance
policies, ensuring product quality.

The Group perfects the control mechanism of supply chain of
raw materials with special focus on the food safety management
of supply chain source and the food safety control of finished
products. The Group implements the food safety qualification audit
on suppliers, food safety site appraisal of suppliers and established
a control system on raw materials food safety projects to ensure
the implementation of food quality safety control at the source
of supply chain. The Group conducts qualification inspection on
production plants and implemented an on-site assessment and
appraisal system. To ensure the safety and deliciousness of our
products, all finished products must pass inspections strictly
according to regulations before putting on the market and, further,
are subject to strict controls on every food safety check.

The Group actively enhances the management of suppliers,
formulates standards related to management of pollution-free
vegetable bases, and establishes an open sample factory of pickled
cabbage packets, being the first initiative in the instant noodles
industry, to invite consumers to visit the factory and experience the
safety and deliciousness of “Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage” in an open
and transparent manner. The Group actively advances the industry
food safety standards by introducing in a full range food-grade
protogenous paper barrels using virgin pulp for both internal and
external packages of barreled instant noodles, ensuring the safety
and health of consumers.
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The Group closely monitors various food safety incidents and
conducts timely risk assessments, carries out inspections on
similar raw materials and finished products and improves food
safety management system to ensure food safety. It also actively
participates in formulating and revising related national standards,
collecting and issuing food regulations and domestic and overseas
information on food safety to boost awareness of food safety,
and facilitating the thorough implementation of food regulations
and safety standards with an aim to safeguard the interests of
consumers.

Since 2005, the Group’s food safety testing centre has passed the
annual expert evaluation organised by China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS Accreditation) and until
now 148 assessments have been granted approval. Combining
with the laboratories of our subsidiaries and external assessment
units, the Group is able to meet the assessment requirements
on the food safety items concerned, providing the Group with
professional and authoritative assessment services and technical
support to ensure safety of the Group’s food products.

By the end of 2013, 20 subsidiaries of the Group have obtained the
certification of ISO9001 international standard quality management
system and 19 subsidiaries have obtained the certification
of 18022000 international standard food safety management
system. Those certifications and awards require enterprises to
keep improving their food safety and quality assurance systems
and enhancing their capabilities in ensuring food safety. The
certifications also show that the Group offers consumers with not
only delicious products, but also healthy and safe food products.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Cash and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total cash and cash
equivalents of RMB1,413.9 million (2012: RMB2,290.8 million),
among which 81.9% were denominated in Renminbi. As at 31
December 2013, the Group had pledged bank deposit of RMB5.9
million (2012: RMB4.7 million). Current assets of the Group
amounted to RMB4,507.6 million (2012: RMB4,917.3 million)
with current liabilities of RMB5,336.0 million (2012: RMB4,948.2
million). Net current liabilities were RMB828.4 million (2012:
RMB30.9 million). The Group mainly finances its working capital
and capital expenditure by internally generated cash flows, credit
facilities from principal bankers and the fund raised by the debt
issue of RMB1,000 million notes due 2016. As at 31 December
2013, the Group’s total borrowings increased by RMB2,033.1
million to RMB6,004.0 million (2012: RMB3,970.9 million), at
floating interest rates, among which 85.0% were repayable over
one year and 62.2% were denominated in United States dollar.
As at 31 December 2013, all of the Group’s borrowings were at
floating interest rates save for the RMB1,000 million notes due on
2016 which were at a fixed interest rate of 3.5% per annum. As
at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any secured bank
borrowing (2012: Nil).
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Financing

In June 2013, RMB1,000 million of 3.5% notes due 2016 (the
“Notes”) were issued by the Company by way of debt issue to
professional investors only. All of the net proceeds (after deducting
the related expenses) have been by the Company as general
working capital. The approval for the listing of the Notes (Stock
Code: 85927) has been granted by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Unless previously redeemed
or purchased and cancelled, the Notes will be redeemed at their
principal amount on, or nearest to, 6 June 2016.

The Group aims to maintain appropriate capital structure. On 17
January 2014, Taiwan Ratings Corporation, a credit rating agency,
gave a twAA- long term credit rating to the Group, with “stable”
rating outlook on the Group’s long term credit rating.

The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
were as follows:

20134 20124

ARET AREF T

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

niEg Total borrowings 6,003,985 3,970,879
B BRERREEFEYD Less : cash and cash equivalents (1,413,929) (2,290,809)
BIHF5 Net debt 4,590,056 1,680,070
B Total equity 8,142,168 7,671,068
RN Total capital 12,732,224 9,351,138
BEARBENRE Gearing ratio 36.05% 17.97%
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Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group recorded a net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents of RMB876.9 million, mainly comprising net cash
inflow from operating activities of RMB1,234.1 million, net cash
inflow from financing activities of RMB1,975.4 million, and net cash
outflow from investing activities of RMB4,083.0 million. The net
cash outflow from investing activities was mainly applied to the
expansion in scale of production, establishment of new production
base, and purchasing machinery and equipment for instant noodles
business and beverage business for enhancing the production
capacity to satisfy demand due to consumption market expansion
and the Group’s business growth. During the Year, the Group had
capital expenditure of RMB4,746.3 million (2012: RMB3,578.0
million).

Analysis of Operating Efficiency

Sales to most customers are made on a delivery on payment
basis. The Group’s trade receivables are generated from credit
sales to credit customers from modern channels with credit
terms normally ranging from 30 to 90 days. For the Year, trade
receivables increased by RMB35.5 million to RMB548.1 million.
The Group’s inventories mainly comprised raw and packaging
materials, finished goods and low value consumables. As of 31
December 2013, the inventories balance increased by RMB228.6
million as compared to the beginning of the year. The Group’s trade
payables mainly arise from credit purchases of raw and packaging
materials. For the Year, the Group recorded an decrease in trade
payables of RMB32.0 million. Due to the substantial growth in sales
performance for the Year, there was an increase in purchase of raw
and packaging materials.

B Z2013F 1231 H 1F F/&
For the year ended 31 December 2013
20134 20124
JEUE 5 BR 50 A #8 K B Trade receivables turnover days 8 9
GFERERE Inventories turnover days 33 33
JERHE SR FE XK Trade payables turnover days 33 34
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Financial Management and Policy

The Group’s financial department formulates financial risk
management policies based on the policies and programmes
approved by the Board and guided by the executive Director which
were reviewed by the Group’s internal audit department regularly.
The Group’s financial policy aims at reducing the impact of interest
rate and exchange rate fluctuations on the Group’s overall financial
position, as well as minimising the Group’s financial risk exposure.

The Group’s financial department has successfully provided cost-
effective funding for the Group and its members through proactive
centralised financial risk (including interest rate and foreign
exchange risk) and cash flow management. Most of the Group’s
functional currency is Renminbi since majority of the revenues of
it are derived from operations in the PRC. Foreign exchange risk
may arise from the future borrowings from overseas and recognised
assets or liabilities, such as cash and cash equivalents and
borrowings, part of which are denominated in United States dollar
and Hong Kong dollar. The Group uses foreign exchange forward
contracts outside the PRC for risk management and control of
the Group’s assets and liabilities when interest or exchange rates
were uncertain or fluctuate, or whenever suitable. Our policy is not
to engage in speculative derivative financial transactions and not
to invest the current capital in financial products with significant
underlying leverage or risk, including hedge funds or similar
instruments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2018.

PROSPECTS

While maintaining a cautiously optimistic view on the economy of
2014, the Group will continue to uphold the long-term interests
of the shareholders, and seek growth from prudent operation.
We will actively adapt to the changing environment, leverage on
the benefits of opportunities and optimise investment structure
and efficiency so as to improve our operational capability for
the continuous creation of shareholders’ value in the course of
development. Where appropriate, we will continue to pursue
strategic alliance and operations outsourcing by shifting certain of
its manufacturing process across reliable and specialised service
providers so as to enable the Group to use more efficiently its
resources for brand promotion, sales channel development,
product research and other development of the Group’s business
in the PRC. In terms of food safety, the Group will strictly adhere
to implementation of quality control to ensure products meet safety
standards.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMOLUMENT
POLICY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 38,453 employees.
In view of the huge market opportunities for dairy beverages
and food products in the PRC, the Group is actively expanding
its foothold on a large scale, thus fuelling a huge demand for
talents. It aims at fulfiling the human resources demand arising
from the rapid business and production expansion by adopting a
more prudent and effective approach in the selection and hiring
process. In respect of the new grassroots staff, the Company
devotes considerable resources in staff training and monitoring their
development and progress in a timely manner in order to familiarise
them with the working environment and build up team spirit.
Meanwhile, the Company recognises the value of its key personnel
in maintaining team morale and competitiveness. Both internal
promotion and external recruitment are applied to select and
promote top employees for vacant positions and attract qualified
candidates to join the Company. On the other hand, the Group
ensures the continuity of the senior management by grooming
management talents with various measures, such as continuous
internal training and appropriate job rotation as well as external on-
the-job training.

The emolument policy of the Group is to reward its employees and
Directors based on their performance, qualifications, competence
displayed, market comparables and the performance of the Group.
With regard to the Group’s emolument policy, the Group have
entered into separate employment contracts with its employees
regarding the terms on wages and salaries, national allowances,
social security benefits, employee benefits, work place safety and
hygiene environment, confidentiality of commercial secrets and
termination conditions. Apart from those with middle and senior
management officers, the term of the employment contracts
ranges from one to three years. New employees are subject to a
probationary period of two months.

For the Year, the total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
were RMB3,029.6 million (2012: RMB2,503.1 million).
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is pleased to
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales of
beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of 31
December 2013 are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 76 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB5.092 cents per share for the Year amounting to a total
dividend of RMB183,282,000 in total. The payment of the final
dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details are
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. There
was no arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under
which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 21
to the consolidated financial statements. There is no movement in
the share capital of the Company during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 78 of the annual report and Note 22
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB4,203,988,000.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB3,045,700 (2012: RMB182,952).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)

Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President)

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer) (appointed with effect
from 10 August 2013)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kao Chin-Yen (resigned with effect from 10 August 2013)
Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng

Mr. Lin Lung-Yi

Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu

Mr. Lo Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien,
Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, Mr. Chen Sun-Te
and Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election. Due to his other business commitments, Mr. Lin
Chang-Sheng will not offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 10 August 2013. Pursuant to Article 114 of the Articles
of Association, he shall hold office only until the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer himself
for re-election.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 47 to 51 of
the annual report.
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None of the Directors who are being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

R=B—-=%
+t=A=+—-8
ZERBD L

Percentage of

AATEBEREE  shareholding

Number of as at

EENA 5% ordinary shares 31 December
Name of Director Capacity of the Company 2013
(##7)

(Approximate)

Hou Jung-Lung Beneficial owner 50,000 0.00%

mEKE

BEmEA A
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REBEIERMD 2FE Long positions in the shares of associated corporation
R 4 % B
Number of shares
R=ZE-ZF
185% +=ZRA=+-H
UTFL= ZERBEIL
ZEEERH BBzER Percentage of
HERRz2#E Interest shareholding
Name of corporation BAESE of child DA R as at
and name of its Personal under 18 Corporate #% 31 December
relevant shareholder Interest or spouse Interest Total 2013
(BE#))
(Approximate)
H—DERND Uni-President
BRAF Enterprises
Corporation*
WE&E Lin Chang-Sheng 45,402,447 2,769,166 - 48,171,613 0.93%
% Lin Lung-Yi 1,690,746 1,347,718 - 3,038,464 0.06%
BERL Lo Chih-Hsien 3,682,053 84,527,321 - 88,209,374 1.71%

BEXPEEEN R-ZT—=F+=-F Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of
=t—H BEAQRFESHEITETHRAE the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company and their
REERAZHE AT AT MELIENA  respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
NERFE M BRI EISIEBEEETF2E  shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
A SR IEIEESTRIZBMEe AN A [ L associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
TRz RAD RS B AREE® (FE RE  which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
H NEAEIEPIEXVER) 9% (D - IR EfE  pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
HFZHERBORE ° Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and may
be re-elected upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts/letter of appointment with the
Company, during the Year, no other contracts of significance to
which the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which compete or are likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

#E Long positions
R-ZB—Z=%F
+=A=+-—H
ZERBEDL
Percentage of
KAREBEKREE  shareholding
B ERtE Number of as at
= Capacity/ ordinary shares 31 December
Name Nature of interest in the Company 2013
(##7)
(Approximate)
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. Beneficial owner 2,537,090,000 70.49%
EmlEA A
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation* Interest of a controlled 2,537,090,000 70.49%

(Note)
m—EROBERIR (AT

Cayman President Holdings Ltd. A& — %R0 A
RARIZEEZEMBAR - AL - iEHFRPE
BHImE  H—ERMERAFERAIEIER
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. Bz A 2 A A
2,537,090,000% f& 17 2 #E B 4 e

BREBEEEN R —=F+=H
=+—8 MEEMEIBERBEHIATIREAR
AIRMEERDFHEERESSIAE - WK
BRIRIEE S R E RIS 3361E&F EBEF T
k-

corporation

S 12505 A 25

Note:

Cayman President Holdings Ltd. is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Uni-
President Enterprises Corporation*. Uni-President Enterprises Corporation*
is, therefore, deemed or taken to be interested in 2,537,090,000 shares of
the Company which are beneficially owned by Cayman President Holdings
Ltd. by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no other
substantial shareholder or person had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Uni-President Enterprises Corporation* (“Uni-President”) is the
holding company of Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (“Cayman
President”) which in turn is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. As Cayman President is a connected person of the
Company and Uni-President is an associate of Cayman President,
Uni-President is also a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into
by, and/or subsisted between, the Group and Uni-President, its
subsidiaries and associates during the Year and which are not
exempt under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

FRAMEWORK SALES AGREEMENT

On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into a framework sales
agreement with Uni-President, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell or procure the sale of, on a non-exclusive basic,
certain beverage and instant noodle products and bakery products
to Uni-President and its subsidiaries (excluding the Group) (the
“Uni-President Group”) and its associates at prices no less than
the market price at which the Company sell to independent third
parties for a term commencing from 17 May 2012 and expiring on
31 December 2014.
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FRAMEWORK PURCHASE AGREEMENTS

On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into a framework
purchase agreement with Uni-President, pursuant to which the
Company agrees to purchase or procure the purchase of, on a
non-exclusive basis, certain raw materials, packaging materials and
commercial goods from the Uni-President Group and its associates
for an original term commencing from 17 May 2012 and expiring on
31 December 2014 (the “2012 Framework Purchase Agreement”).
Under the 2012 Framework Purchase Agreement, the price of the
materials supplied to the Company must not exceed the market
price.

Foreseeing the increasing demand in the raw materials, packaging
materials and commercial goods, on 28 March 2013, the Company
entered in a new framework purchase agreement with Uni-
President for a term commencing from 14 May 2013 and expiring
on 31 December 2014 on substantially the same terms as the 2012
Framework Purchase Agreement. The 2012 Framework Purchase
Agreement was terminated with effect from 14 May 2013.

FRAMEWORK LOGISTICS SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into a framework
logistics service agreement with Uni-President in connection with
the provision by the Uni-President Group and its associates of, on
a non-exclusive basis, transportation and logistics service to the
Group (the “2012 Framework Logistics Service Agreement”) for
an initial term commencing from 30 March 2012 to 31 December
2014. Under the 2012 Framework Logistics Service Agreement, the
prices and terms with respect to the provision of transportation and
logistics service should be no less favourable than prices and terms
available to or from independent third parties to the Group.

Foreseeing the increasing demand in the transportation and
logistics services, on 28 March 2013, the Company entered into a
new framework logistics service agreement with Uni-President for a
term commencing from 28 March 2013 to 31 December 2014 on
substantially same terms as the 2012 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement. The 2012 Framework Logistics Service Agreement was
terminated with effect from 28 March 2013.
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FRAMEWORK TECHNICAL SUPPORT
SERVICE AGREEMENT

On 28 March 2013, the Company entered into a framework
technical support service agreement with Uni-President in
connection with the provision by the Group, on a non-exclusive
basis, technical support services (including, but not limited to,
human resources management services) to the Uni-President
Group and its associates (the “2013 Framework Technical Support
Service Agreement”) for a term commencing from 28 March 2013
and expiring on 31 December 2014. Under the 2013 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement, the prices and terms with
respect to the provision of the technical support service by the
Group should be no less favourable than prices and terms available
to or from independent third parties to the Group.

The maximum aggregate annual value (the “Annual Cap”) approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company or proposed
by the Company (as the case may be) and the aggregate annual
value actually occurred for each of the above mentioned continuing
connected transactions for the Year are set out below:

5 BEREHE FELR
Transaction Actual amount  Annual Cap
(ANRBBEET)(ARBEET)
(RMB million)  (RMB million)
EZRGEE e Framework Sales Agreement
I EE Total sales value 270.7 750
ERFK B Framework Purchase Agreement
B REEE Total purchase value 2,365.2 8,200
HE R Y7 AR 75 19 i Framework Logistics Services Agreement
BT 5 EE Total transaction value 25.2 33.5
TERBM & R e Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
BTG5 EE Total transaction value 21.9 84
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In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
above transactions were carried out in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms and
were in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
and on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Group and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group as above in
accordance with the Listing Rules 14A.38.

The auditor of the Company has confirmed that regarding the
above continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe that:

- the above continuing connected transactions had not been
approved by the Board;

- as regards the transactions involved provision of goods or
services by the Group, such transactions were not conducted
in accordance with the pricing policy of the Company in all
material aspects;

- the above transactions were not entered into in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions in all material aspects; and

- the amount of the above continuing connected transactions
have exceeded their respective cap amounts as disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 30 March 2012 and
28 March 2013.
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OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the other connected transactions entered into by the
Group with Uni-President and its associates during the Year and
which are not exempt under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules are
set out below:

On 28 March 2013, Beijing President Enterprises Drinks Co.,
Ltd.* dtRFE—RBERAR]) (“Beijing President”) (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered in to a sale
and purchase agreement with Cayman Ton Yi (China) Holdings
Limited (“Cayman Ton Yi") pursuant to which Beijing President, as
vendor, has disposed of, and Cayman Ton Yi, as purchaser, has
acquired the machinery and equipment which are mainly for use
by the production lines of beverage products, ancillary office and
storage support facilities at the consideration of RMB320,000,000
(excluding value added tax and other tax surcharges) (the “Beijing
Transaction”).

On 28 March 2013, Kunshan President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.*
(BELFE—rERWBAMRAR) (“Kunshan President”) (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) also entered in to a sale
and purchase agreement with Cayman Ton Yi pursuant to which
Kunshan President, as vendor, has disposed of, and Cayman Ton
Yi, as purchaser, has acquired the machinery and equipment which
are mainly for use by the production lines of beverage products,
ancillary office and storage support facilities at the consideration
of RMB300,000,000 (excluding value added tax and other tax
surcharges) (the “Kunshan Transaction”).

As Cayman Ton Yi is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ton Vi
Industrial Corp.* (i —E KM ABRZAR]), in which Uni-President
is interested in 30% or more of the voting power, Cayman Ton
Yi is an associate of Uni-President and a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Beijing
Transaction and the Kunshan Transaction constituted connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The Board confirms that the related party transactions with the
subsidiaries and/or associates of Uni-President during the Year as
disclosed in Note 39(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
during the Year as disclosed in Note 39(b) to the consolidated
financial statements do not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the case
may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received written confirmation from Uni-President
confirming that the Uni-President Group have not breached the
terms of the non-competition deed entered between the Company
and Uni-President on 23 November 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a written resolution passed on 23 November 2007.
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to employees, Directors
or non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of any member of the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies
or associated companies of the Company which the Board
determines will be subject to the Scheme.
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The total number of shares which may be issued under the
Scheme must not exceed 352,681,000 shares of the Company,
representing 10% of the total number of shares issued by the
Company as at 17 December 2007 (i.e. the listing date of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange). Unless approved
by shareholders of the Company in the manner as set out in the
Scheme, the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible person (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant of the
option.

The exercise price shall be the price determined by the Board
and notified to the option holder which shall not be less than
being the higher of: (a) the average closing price of the shares of
the Company for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets; (b) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
of the shares on the date of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares of the Company. No amount will be payable for
the acceptance of an option.

As at 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013, there was no
outstanding share option. No share option has been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme. The Scheme will
remain in force until 16 December 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s shares.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the Year and as at the date of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements for the Year
and has recommended their adoption by the Board.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.
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Facility Agreements dated 18 July 2012

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
27 July 2012, on 18 July 2012, the Company (as borrower)
entered into two facility agreements with two syndicates
of banks, respectively in respect of () a revolving facility for
US$170 million (the “USD Agreement”) with the drawdown
period of five years from the date of first drawdown i.e. to
be expired on 23 August 2017 and (i) a revolving facility
for RMB1,000 million (the “RMB Agreement”, together with
the USD Agreement, “July 2012 Facility Agreements”) with
the drawdown period of three years from the date of first
drawdown i.e. to be expired on 19 December 2015 subject
to renewal of a further two years with the approval of the
syndicate of banks.

Pursuant to the July 2012 Facility Agreements, Uni-President
has executed a letter of support (the “Letter of Support”) in
which it undertook to the banks that, among others, it should,
directly or indirectly, hold not less than 51% of the issued
share capital of the Company during the continuance of the
July 2012 Facility Agreements. Under the July 2012 Facility
Agreements, the Company has also undertaken to ensure
that Uni-President shall, directly or indirectly, hold not less
than 51% of the issued share capital of the Company during
the continuance of the July 2012 Facility Agreements.

A breach of the undertakings in the Letter of Support or any
of the undertakings given by the Company under the July
2012 Facility Agreements may constitute an event of default
of the July 2012 Facility Agreements and the lenders of each
of the July 2012 Facility Agreements has the right to terminate
the July 2012 Facility Agreements and all loans together with
accrued interest and any other amounts accrued under the
July 2012 Facility Agreements shall become immediately due
and payable.
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(ii)

Facility Agreement dated 15 August 2012
(as amended by the agreement dated 12 August
2013)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
15 August 2012, on 15 August 2012, the Company (as
borrower) entered into a facility agreement (the “August
2012 Facility Agreement”) relating to a revolving facility in
an aggregate amount of US$30 million (the “August 2012
Facility”) with a syndicate of banks. The original maturity date
of the August 2012 Facility was the date falling 365 days after
the date of the August 2012 Facility Agreement. As disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 12 August 2013,
on 12 August 2013, the Company (as borrower) entered into
an amendment agreement (the “Amendment Agreement”) to
the August 2012 Facility Agreement with the original parties
thereto and pursuant to which, among other matters, (i) the
maturity date of the August 2012 Facility Agreement has
been extended to 15 August 2014; and (i) the amount of the
August 2012 Facility has been increased from US$30 million
to US$50 million.

The August 2012 Facility Agreement (as amended by the
Amendment Agreement) provides, among others, that a
change in control will occur if Uni-President ceases to own
at least 51% of the issued paid up capital of the Company
or maintain control of the Company. In the event of such
a change in control which will also constitute an event of
default, the lenders of the August 2012 Facility Agreement
(as amended by the Amendment Agreement) have the
right to cancel the August 2012 Facility (as amended by
the Amendment Agreement) and the loans together with
all accrued interest and all other amounts accrued under
the August 2012 Facility Agreement (as amended by the
Amendment Agreement) will become immediately due and
payable.
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(iii)

Facility Agreement dated 3 June 2013

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
7 June 2013, on 3 June 2013, the Company (as borrower)
entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks
(the “June 2013 Facility Agreement”) relating to a revolving
facility in an aggregate amount of US$200 million with
the drawdown period of five years from the date of first
drawdown i.e. to be expired on 3 December 2018.

Under the June 2013 Facility Agreement, the Company has
undertaken to ensure that Uni-President shall,
indirectly, hold not less than 51% of the issued share capital
of the Company during the continuance of the June 2013

directly or

Facility Agreement.

A breach of such undertaking by the Company under the
June 2013 Facility Agreement may constitute an event of
default and the lenders of the June 2013 Facility Agreement
has the right to terminate the June 2013 Facility Agreement
and all loans together with accrued interest and any other
amounts accrued under the June 2013 Facility Agreement
shall become immediately due and payable.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of a significant event occurred after the reporting period

of the Group are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial

statements.

On behalf of the Board
Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

Tainan, Taiwan

18 March 2014

* For identification purpose only
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Directors’ Profile

Executive Directors

Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (%% %t), aged 57, is our chairman and
executive director. Mr. Lo joined the Group in September 1998 and
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and management
of the Group and a director of each of the PRC subsidiaries
of the Company, except for Sichuan Hongtong Commercial
Trading Co., Ltd. (FUJIISABEEBREMEAT]). Mr. Lo has over
26 years of experience in the food and beverage industry and is
currently a director of President Chain Store Corporation (5—
B ARAR]), Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (\i—BZRHAERA
Al), ScinoPharm Taiwan., Ltd. (&/E#EMD AR AR, Prince
Housing & Development Corp. (K FERHZERMHERAF) and
TTET Union Corporation (K&zit{n AR AH]), all of which are
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation and a director
of TaitMarketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. (B F¥1TRMDBER A
7)), which is listed on the Taiwan Gre Tai Securities Market.
He is also the chairman and general manager of Uni-President
Enterprises Corporation (#i—1E3MRMH AR A F]) (“Uni-President”)
and a director of 54 members of Uni-President and its subsidiaries
(the “Uni-President Group”) (excluding the Group).Mr. Lo holds a
master’s degree in business administration from the University of
California, Los Angeles, U.S.A. He is the son-in-law of Mr. Kao
Chin-Yen.

Mr. HOU Jung-Lung ({Z48[%), aged 49, was appointed as our
president and executive director in September 2011. Mr. Hou
joined the Uni-President Group in February 1993 and has acted as
manager of a branch of Guangzhou President Enterprises Corp. (&
MEFE—1EBR AR, deputy general manager and head of sales
department of Zhuhai Kirin President Brewery Co., Ltd. (3k/& B E 5t
—EA AR A F]), general manager of Beijing President Enterprises
Drinks Co., Ltd. JtR#— BB AF]), and head of human
resources and general manager of the market planning office of
Uni-President Enterprises (China) Investments Ltd. (5t —1>2 (P )
A AR AA]). Mr. Hou has over 21 years of experience in the food
and beverage industry and holds a master’s degree in executive
business administration from Tsinghua University in Beijing, China.
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Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FREU/E), aged 45, is our executive director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in May 2011. Mr. Chen also acts as the supervisor of all of
the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Chen is also the supervisor of United Advisor Venture
Management Co., Ltd. (E/MN LEERERLIZREETEBRAF)
and Min Fu Management Consultancy (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (RZEE&
B8 EMRAR]) and the director of Yantai Tongli Beverage
Industries Co., Ltd. (& AR K T FBR A R]), where the Group
holds 50% interests in the above named companies, and the
director of Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Co., Ltd. (BFE/I4 &
LI 2R 9 BBR A 7)), a company in which the Group has invested.
Mr. Chen has worked in Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (4%
— 1 ERD B A A from November 1997 to April 2011 and has
over 17 years of experience in financial management. Mr. Chen
holds a master’s degree in business administrative from University
of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.
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Directors’ Profile

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Chang-Sheng (#f&4), aged 70, is our non-executive
director. Mr. Lin joined the Group in December 1991. He joined
Uni-President Enterprise Corporation (#i— %KD AREA
Al (“Uni-President”) in January 1968 and has over 41 years of
experience in the food and beverage industry. He is currently a
director of President Chain Store Corporation (4t —iAR 7D AR
A\]), Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (t—EB %MD ERAF]), TTET Union
Corporation (K#tz %198 R A 7)), Uni-President and ScinoPharm
Taiwan., Ltd. (B /&% (D AR A R]), all of which are listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. Mr. Lin holds a bachelor’'s
degree in electronic engineering from National Cheng Kung
University.

Mr. LIN Lung-Yi ("R[£%), aged 70, is our non-executive director.
Mr. Lin joined Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (&—1t2%
;AR /A7) and its subsidiaries (“Uni-President Group”) in March
1971 and has served the Group more than 42 years. He is currently
a director of President Chain Store Corporation (#t—#AEMD A
R AT]), ScinoPharm Taiwan., Ltd. (&/&#ERMD AR AF) and
Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (#t—& XM AMRAE]), all of which are
the subsidiaries of Uni-President Group (excluding the Group) and
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. Mr. Lin holds a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and statistics from National Cheng
Kung University.

Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (8:5=8f), aged 56, is our non-executive
director. Mr. Su joined the Group in August 2007. He joined the
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (5— 120 AR A7)
(“Uni-President”) and its subsidiaries (“Uni-President Group”) in
August 2000. He is currently the vice-president of Uni-President
and a director of President Chain Store Corporation (4% — &8 I 5
BPFRAF]), both of which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation, Mr. Su is also a director of 26 members of the Uni-
President Group (excluding the Group). He has over 28 years of
experience in banking and financial management. Before joining
the Uni-President Group, he was the vice-president of the Taipei
branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was the financial specialist of Seibu
Department Store in Tokyo, Japan in 1988 and the senior specialist
of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in Tokyo in 1990. Mr. Su holds a
master of business administration degree from the University of
lowa.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sun-Te (fREE{®), aged 59, was appointed as our
independent non-executive director in August 2007. Mr. Chen
has over 30 years of experience in the banking and financial
industry and is currently the Chairman of Zoyi Capital Ltd and
advisor of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd. He is also an
independent director of China Telecom Corporation, China
Electronics Corporation, and Lion Travel Services Co., Ltd. Prior
to that, Mr. Chen served as the president of Fullerton Financial
Holdings Pte. Ltd. (North Asia and Greater China regions) between
2005 and 2012, the president of Chinatrust Financial Holdings
Co., Ltd. in 2005, the chairman of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd.
between 2003 and 2005, the country officer and country head
of the corporate bank in Taiwan of Citigroup between 2001 and
2003, and the regional head of financial markets in Asia Pacific of
Citigroup between 1998 and 2001. He gained extensive financial
management experience from various positions held with Citibank
and Citigroup and has acquired general knowledge about the
food and beverage industry through dealing with clients from
that industry. Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business
administration from University of Missouri and a bachelor’s degree
in political science from National Chengchi University.

Mr. FAN Ren Da, Anthony ((2{Z), aged 53, was appointed as
our independent non-executive director in August 2007. Mr. Fan
is the chairman and managing director of Asialink Capital Limited
and also an independent non-executive director of Technovator
International Limited (Stock Code: 1206), Raymond Industrial
Limited (Stock Code: 229), Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited (Stock Code: 563), Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387), Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings
Ltd. (Stock Code: 6868), Citic Resources Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1205), Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1296), China Development Bank
International Investment Limited (Stock Code: 1062), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882) and LT
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 112), all of which are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Fan
holds a master’s degree in business administration from the United
States.
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Directors’ Profile

Mr. YANG Ing-Wuu (52 E), aged 69, was appointed as
our independent non-executive director in November 2007.
Mr. Yang is currently the secretary general of Taiwan Vegetable
Oil Manufacturers Association (&/ZREYMEGR TERENSD)
and the executive counsel of Guangda Cereals Joint Stock Limited
Company (FAREWMHBERAF]). Prior to that, he was the
executive director of Taiwan Soya Bean Importers Joint Committee
(AEREONEIHATIIEFZEE), the chairman of the board of
Huanguo International Trade Company (REIEERE A7), the
secretary general of General Chamber of Commerce of Taiwan,
the secretary general of China Food Industry Competitiveness
Enhancement Association (FERBEZEHF IEKESE) and a
part-time lecturer at Chihlee Institute of Technology and Shih Hsin
University. Mr. Yang has over 39 years of experience in the food
industry. Mr. Yang holds a bachelor’s and a master’s degree in law
from National Chengchi University.

Mr. LO Peter (X% 2),
independent non-executive director in November 2007. Mr. Lo

aged 58, was appointed as our

is currently a director of China Enterprise Capital Limited. He is
also the chairman and an executive director of China Outfitters
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1146) and an independent non-
executive director of Ajisen (China) Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
538), both of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lo holds a bachelor’s degree
in mathematical economics and econometrics from the London
School of Economics and Political Science.
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Senior Management

Mr. HOU Jung-Lung (Z%£), aged 49, is our president and
executive Director. The day-to-day operations of the Group and
implementation of the strategy and direction set by the Board are
delegated to the management team of the Company which is led
by Mr. Hou. Mr. Hou’s biographical details are set out in the section
of the Directors’ profile in this annual report.

Mr. LIU Xin-Hua (2I#71Z), aged 44, joined our Group in July
1994. He acted as the head of food department of our Group in
August 2008. He has 20 years of experience in the food industry
and holds a doctoral degree in management from Southwest
Jiaotong University (787 3238 A ),

Mr. CHEN Chia-Heng (f%32%7), aged 56, joined our Group
in June 2003. He was the head of our instant noodle products
business from June 2003 to September 2006 and has been the
head of the combined drink products business of our Group since
September 2006. He joined Uni-President Enterprises Corporation
and its subsidiaries (8§t —1EZM M BRAF]) in 1982 and has over
31 years of experience in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Chen
holds a master’s degree in business administration from National
Cheng Kung University.
Mr. WEI Chih-Chung (Z254), aged 46, joined the food product
business (Taiwan) of Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (5—
PERMHABRAR) and our Group in 1999 and 2003 respectively.
Prior to 2010, he served as product manager of food product
business, combined drink products business and juice business
and as manager of the investment planning unit. In 2010, he served
in the PL (Private Label) OEM business new business unit. In 2011,
he was transferred to the subsidiary Uni-President (Shanghai)
Private Label Marketing & Trading Co., Ltd. as general manager.
In 2012, he was the general manager of our trading business unit.
He has been the general manager of juice business of our Group
since 2013. He has more than 21 years of experience in the food
and beverage industry. Mr. Wei graduated from Drexel University in
Pennsylvania, U.S.A. (3B & M 8378 KX 2) with a master’s degree in
business administration.
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Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen ([&1f %), aged 42, joined Guangzhou
President Enterprises Corp. (BN #t— 12 BR A Fl), a subsidiary
of our Group, in February 2009 and was responsible for the
management of marketing functions of Guangzhou President
Enterprises Corp. (B/M £ —1E2% B MR A F]) and Wuhan President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (RZE&ZE— DX R R AR L 7)),
subsidiaries of our group, prior to October 2011. She was re-
designated as the deputy general manager of the head office of
our Group’s tea business in October 2011 and was appointed
as the general manager of the head office of our Group’s tea
business in July 2013. Before joining our Group, she has engaged
in marketing in various companies such as Wyeth in the United
States, Ting Hsin International Group (TEFTEIFR &) and YFY (k&
##) and has 17 years of experience in relation to the food and fast
moving consumer goods industries. In 2006, she started to work in
Mainland China when she joined Wei Chuan Foods Corporation (&
2RMIERMBER AR of Ting Hsin International Group (JEFT
B[R £ @) and has since gained 8 years of work experience in the
Mainland. Ms. Chen holds a master’s degree in nutrition from Taipei
Medical University in Taiwan and has participated in various training
programs in the field of marketing at various levels during her
career. She is currently enrolled in the EMBA program (Shanghai) of
Taiwan’s National Chung Hsing University.

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FREI{&), aged 45, is our executive director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr. Chen’s biographical
details are set out in the section of the Directors’ profile in this
annual report.
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NEWE Company Secretary

ERERE 445 BARRZAFME-  Mr. PANG Ka-Fai Angus (% 1), aged 44, is the company
ChAEBE T _FHSEELARMESR  secretary of the Company. Mr. Pang has 22 years of experience in
ENTIELR RZZETN\FZAMAKRR financial management and corporate secretarial work. He joined the
Tl AR EEBEIAEARERELT  Company in February 2008. Mr. Pang holds a master’s degree of
B IREE(E:52)E L2 W AF  Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
BETMEASMARSTWEREIEAE  a bachelor degree of Business Administration in Accounting, and
NEHEE o is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom.
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is committed
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance practices and
procedures and appreciates that good corporate governance is
crucial to enhancing investors’ confidence in the Company. In the
opinion of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company, the Company has complied with all code provisions
of the corporate governance code (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31
December 2013 (the “Year”), except for the deviation as disclosed
below:

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
requires the Chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least
annually with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the executive Directors present.
As Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, the Chairman of the Board, is also an
executive Director, the Company has deviated from this code
provision as it is not applicable.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)

Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President)

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed with effect from 10 August 2013)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kao Chin-Yen (resigned with effect from 10 August 2013)
Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng

Mr. Lin Lung-Yi

Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu

Mr. Lo Peter
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code, any new Director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the first general meeting of the Company after the appointment. In
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), at each annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”), one-third of the Directors for the time being
or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Directors (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. The Directors’ remunerations are
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and
experience, and to the prevailing market conditions.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term business
objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor and control
the operating, management and financial performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). There
are currently four committees established under the Board, being
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the investment,
strategy and development committee (the “Investment, Strategy
and Development Committee”). Each committee has its terms of
reference and reports to the Board regularly.

The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the President. The roles of the Chairman
of the Board and President of the Company are performed by
separate persons. The Chairman of the Board is responsible
for ensuring that the Directors perform their duties properly and
ensuring discussions on material matters take place on a timely
basis. The power and authority to carry out day-to-day operations
and implementation of the strategy and direction set by the Board
are delegated to the management team of the Company (the
“Management”) which is led by the President. The Management
assumes full accountability to the Board for the operation of the
Group.
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NAREEF  NRARIBITNRAESE@®:3 & During the Year, the Company held six Board meetings. The
EENAEEHEEEe S 22485 attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings during

T the Year is set out below:

HEEERE SE®E (Wit1)
EEEgRE Number of meetings attended/
Member of the Board number of meetings (Note 1)
WITES Executive Directors
BESTRE(EE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) 6/6
RERIE ST A (A4 ) Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President) 6/6
PREQE % 4 (175 <) (M75#2)  Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer) (Note 2) 3/3
EHITES Non-executive Directors
=BRBESE (K7E3) Mr. Kao Chin-Yen (Note 3) 0/4
MEESLE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng 4/6
MEEEE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi 3/6
BREESRTAE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming 6/6
BN IEMITES Independent non-executive Directors
PREEFESE A4 Mr. Chen Sun-Te 4/6
SBIESLAE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony 5/6
CE St Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu 6/6
BRELE Mr. Lo Peter 5/6
Wiqt - Notes:

(1) MNAEEEZFXBEzEE2HERBRIY (1) Attendances of the Directors appointed or resigned during the Year
WEOITHRNET s eSgBEHE - were made by reference to the number of such meetings held during

their respective tenures.

2 BEELEEAN-_ZT-—=FN\A+BERLEZE (@ Mr Chen Kuo-Hui was appointed as an executive Director with effect
RBPITES - from 10 August 2013.

B =ERAEN-_Z—=FEN\A+BEETA @) Mr Kao Chin-Yen tended his resignation as a non-executive Director
EITES - with effect from 10 August 2013.

BEEEZ LXK BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

KA —HBHERKIBEAESESWXEL&E SRS The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
KEZHEES UERARITHEZESS of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
EZmlbztifE RN-ZE—=F,xA EZE governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
eHMEESLTE LB EES  in the Board. In June 2013, the Board adopted a Board Diversity
FRR —_E—=Fh A —HeExz¥~rh] Policy to comply with a new code provision of the Corporate
B -BEZeL o tREERALTEIEA  Governance Code which was effective from 1 September 2013.
AR - The Board Diversity Policy is available on the website of the
Company.
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The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience, cultural
and educational background, race, gender and other qualities. In
informing its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board
are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of
members with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside
new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring fresh
perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The process
for the nomination of Directors is led by the Nomination Committee,
which has been made on a merit basis. The Board will review the
Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

In August 2013, the Company was pleased to welcome Mr. Chen
Kuo-Hui to the Board. Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui adds diversity to the
Board and has a wealth of financial management experience. The
names of the current Directors and their biographies (including their
role, functions as well as their skills and experience) are set out on
pages 47 to 51 of the annual report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of required number of
independent non-executive Directors which shall be at least one-
third of the Board with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Board considers each of them to be independent under the
aforesaid Rule 3.13.
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Member of the
Remuneration Committee

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr.
Yang Ing-Wuu, who are both independent non-executive Directors,
and Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng, who is a non-executive Director. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Chen Sun-Te.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. The specific
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection upon request at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Year.
A summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee is
set out as follows:

(i) reviewed and recommended to the Board on the fees of the
non-executive Directors; and

(i) reviewed the current level and remuneration structure/
package and approved the specific remuneration package of
the executive Directors.

The attendance record of each member at the Remuneration
Committee meetings in 2013 is set out below:

LEEBAY ERHE
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings

MRERfE S (£ /7) Mr. Chen Sun-Te (Chairman) 3/4
5 TR 7 A Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu 4/4
MEELRE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng 4/4
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
and Mr. Lo Peter, who are both independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, who is an executive Director. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members of the Board, assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
to the Board, or select individual nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint of Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
and the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the
composition of the Board whenever the Company requires to meet
the business demand, opportunities and challenges and to comply
with the applicable laws and regulations. The nomination procedure
basically follows the Articles of Association, which empowers the
Board from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. The Nomination Committee will base on objective criteria
with due regard for the benefits of diversity, as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company, to identify and recommend the
proposed candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment,
and where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, his/her independence will be
assessed in accordance with, among others, the factors as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments
as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications
and experience will also be evaluated to consider whether he/
she has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise for filling the office of
an independent non-executive Director with such qualifications or
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Bm—EPBEERBRAR —E—=FFK
60 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013



TEERRSE

Corporate Governance Report

RAFE REZEEHITMAEHE - Ui
HEFTENHEKRERE - RRZEENRS
VEBZEREELER/NTES - MK
HORBEFEET - BEXNERAFELFER
HAEREGEH I

REZEEHRE
Member of the
Nomination Committee

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings to
review the composition and structure of the Board. The Nomination
Committee also nominated and recommended Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
be appointed as an executive Director, of which the nomination
was accepted by the Board. The attendance record of each
member at the Nomination Committee meeting during the Year is
set out below:

HESEAE SEREA
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings

SBERE(EE) Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Chairman) 2/2
BE2%4%E Mr. Lo Peter 2/2
EEERAE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien 2/2

RE -KBEBRREES

EXENCRURE KBEEEREZES
HRUATERES CALRERELLER
—FRTEEMBEEREN N =BT I
WTEERERALE BRELEHERE
SEAEMEK BEEEER/KRE RERER
ZEgEF-

BE RBLBZERZBEZEIEZREREHN
AEEZRERERAZLRBER  BEHERE
RREIMEFTSRbEZH -NE RBERE
RZEeNBERBREES  AJRARAE
ABEERERIELBRENARR KB
2B ER -

INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Board also established an Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee comprising Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and Mr.
Hou Jung-Lung who are executive Directors, Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng,
who is a non-executive Director, and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Yang
Ing-Wuu and Mr. Lo Peter, who are independent non-executive
Directors. The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.

The primary functions of the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee are to review the investment and development plan
and policies of the Group and to review investment proposals and
make recommendations to the Board. The specific written terms of
reference of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
are available for inspection upon request at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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Member of the Investment,
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The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee held five
meetings during the Year. The attendance record of each member
at the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee meetings
is set out below:

HESEARE SHEA
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings

BESLhE(EE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) 5/5
EERERE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung 5/5
MEESLE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng 3/5
PREEfE A& Mr. Chen Sun-Te 4/5
HEE LA Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu 5/5
BEELE Mr. Lo Peter 4/5
ZEREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

E L ECRHBYIEFNITES D ELLE - The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr.
PREB(ESC A - REE LA LR —fI3E#T Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Lo Peter, who are independent non-executive
EEMEELEBAK - B ESLE AETZZE Directors and Mr. Lin Lung-Yi, who is a non-executive Director. The
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Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditor, reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review
the annual and interim financial statements and the effectiveness
of the internal control practices of the Group. A summary of work
performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

(i) reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditor the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual and interim financial statements for the Year and
for the six-months ended 30 June 2013 respectively;
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Member of the Audit Committee

(i)

(vi)

met with the external auditor and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;

reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group;

conducted an annual review of non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year;

approved the audit plan for the year ended 31 December
2014; and

reviewed the external auditor’s independence, approved the
engagement of the external auditor and recommended the
Board on the re-appointment of the external auditor.

The attendance record of each member at the Audit Committee
meetings during the Year is set out below:

HESEBAE FEHE
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings

SBERE(EE) Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Chairman) 3/3
PREE = e A Mr. Chen Sun-Te 2/3
WEEEE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi 1/3
KREirE Mr. Lo Peter 3/3
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AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditor to ensure objectively and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with the applicable
standard. Members of the Audit Committee were of the view
that the Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
is independent and have recommended the Board to reappoint
it as the external auditor of the Company subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM. During the Year,
PricewaterhouseCoopers has rendered audit services to the Group
and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is RMB5.3
million. No significant remuneration was paid to the external auditor
for the provision of non-audit related service to the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. During the Year, the
Board reviewed the Company’s status of compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed
and they are also entitled to have full access to Board papers and
related materials so that they are able to make informed decisions
and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.
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Name of Directors

SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials regarding the roles, the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of
the Group and they have been updated on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company’s expenses. The Directors
confirmed that they have complied with code provision A.6.5 of
the Corporate Governance Code on directors’ training. During the
Year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing and/or
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company.

FRBEEIER (Wt)
Topics on training covered (Note)

BERRLE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien a
RERESTE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung a, c
PR B 1% 5 A Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui a
mERLAE Mr. Kao Chin-Yen a
MEETE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng a
WEEEE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi a
BRERTAE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming a, b, c
PR EE 1 5 A Mr. Chen Sun-Te a
BoELAE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony a, b, c
e Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu a
BRExX4E Mr. Lo Peter a, b
BiiE: (a) EEREE Note: (a)  corporate governance/regulatory

b) & (b)  finance

() HBFEiT% () industry-specific
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transaction during the Year and
up to the date of this annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates with
the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways:
(i the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s)
(the “EGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific purpose
and provide opportunities for the shareholders of the Company
to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as
required under the Listing Rules and, if appropriate, press releases
of the Company providing updated information of the Group;
and (jiij the availability of latest information of the Group at the
Company’s website.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for constructive communication between the shareholders of the
Company and the Board. During the Year, there were two general
meetings held (the AGM and an EGM both held on 14 May 2013)
and members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman),
Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony, Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu and Mr. Lo Peter, were present and
available to answer any questions raised by the shareholders of the
Company.

The EGM was held for approving, among others, certain non-
exempt connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Company and the estimated maximum
aggregate annual transaction values for the Year until the year
ending 31 December 2014, details of the same have been
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28 March
2013. The three independent non-executive Directors present at
the EGM (namely, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu
and Mr. Lo Peter) were available to answer any questions raised by
the independent shareholders of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(1)

(2)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

According to the Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company or any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) may request for an EGM to be convened upon
depositing at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong written requisition specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that as at the
date of deposit of the requisition, such requisitionist(s) hold
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at a general meeting of the
Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after three months
from the date of the original deposit and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to
the Company Secretary by post to the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or by fax to +852 2893 1150.
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(3) Procedures for putting forward proposal at general
meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at the general meetings
under the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”)
and Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands. If shareholders of the Company wish to do
s0, they may request to convene an EGM as stipulated above
and specify the proposals in such written requisition. Pursuant
to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing
by a member of the Company (not being the person to be
proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional
documents.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from the
auditors about their reporting responsibilities is set out on page 70
of the annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound internal controls
to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ investment as
well as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained
and appropriate legislation and regulations are complied with.
During the Year, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, including,
among others, financial, operational and compliance controls and

risk management functions.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions
under the authority of the Board and the guidance of the Audit
Committee. The objectives of the internal audit plan are to achieve
the four major goals of the Company - strategy, operation,
reporting and compliance, by effectively minimising the exposures,
enhancing internal control and improving operating efficiency of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2013, members of the audit unit of the
Company continued to perform their audit duties based on the
internal control mechanism for comprehensive risk management
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work comprised financial, operation, statutory compliance and
risk management, the audit on all group levels and functions of the
Group and the examination of the effectiveness for the labour cost
of the Company. Besides the audit and planning works based on
various degrees of risk exposures, the audit unit also carried out
computer-aided internal audits to ensure the quality of the audit
and the completion of the audit as scheduled.
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BRRRAE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 196, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

LR KBS AN EBAT - BEPRAFAET —#
AE 1% - 1852 2289 8888 + {2 H - +852 2810 9888 - www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014
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2013 2012
B 5 AR®BT R ARETFT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BE ASSETS
RBEE Non-current assets
& s A #E Land use right 6 2,113,888 1,426,756
ME - BB RRE Property, plant and equipment 7 10,185,899 7,911,655
"EYE Investment properties 8 249,365 167,880
EmREE Intangible assets 9 16,571 6,937
REREARNRE Investments accounted for using
the equity method 12 1,500,116 1,329,572
AHHESMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 13 192,026 586,272
BEEMGMEE Deferred income tax assets 14 191,718 173,070
H b e TE — FERNERER  Other receivables — non-current portion 18 10,627 20,418
14,460,210 11,622,560
REEE Current assets
rE Inventories 16 1,513,512 1,284,940
JE W E 5 R Trade receivables 17 548,101 512,579
FERRIE ek Prepayments, deposits and other
H th & 3R IB receivables 18 1,026,099 824,261
EHEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 19 5,941 4,664
RekBREEFEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 1,413,929 2,290,809
4,507,582 4,917,253
HWEE Total assets 18,967,792 16,539,813




R-ZE—=F+_-A=+—H As at 31 December 2013

—E—=%F —E——4F
2013 2012
B 2 ARET T ARBEF T
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
R EQUITY
ANRERBEREA Equity attributable to equity
PEfh R &= holders of the Company
fig A Share capital 21 34,047 34,047
% 17 4 18 Bk Share premium account 21 2,243,980 2,243,980
H b & Other reserves 22
— ¥R B - Proposed dividends 35 183,282 171,178
—HAh - Others 5,680,859 5,221,863
48 5 Total equity 8,142,168 7,671,068
=N LIABILITIES
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
BIEFTISTHAE Deferred income tax liability 14 156,989 161,111
BE Borrowings 25 5,101,644 3,562,321
H b fE I8 — FERNEEER > Other payables — non-current portion 24 230,971 197,130
5,489,604 3,920,562
REBEE Current liabilities
EBRNESRZRRE Trade and bills payables 23 1,409,968 1,441,944
Hi e B R ERTE R Other payables and accruals 24 2,914,704 2,995,557
BE Borrowings 25 902,341 408,558
EEEHAas Current income tax liabilities 65,733 102,124
PTE2mIA Derivative financial instruments 26 43,274 =
5,336,020 4,948,183
weE Total liabilities 10,825,624 8,868,745
=R BEHAE Total equity and liabilities 18,967,792 16,539,813
REBEETFE Net current liabilities (828,438) (30,930)
HWEERRBAERE Total assets less current liabilities 13,631,772 11,591,630
EEL BREERE
LO Chih-Hsien HOU Jung-Lung
HITEE HITEE

Executive Director

FBIE196 A Z M B ARAMBEREKRZ —
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Executive Director

consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 81 to 196 are an integral part of these
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2013 2012
M =E ARET T ARETFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
R—KMBRAIZI”E Investment in a subsidiary 10 5,798,947 5,167,339
R—REERNR 2= Interest in an associated company 1,436 1,436
AtHEeREE Available-for-sale financial assets 13 11,293 420,461
WE - BRE&EE Property, plant and equipment 34 12
H i e TE —JEENEAERS  Other non-current receivables 18 10,627 10,307
B EE Intangible assets - 2
5,822,337 5,599,557
REBEE Current assets
T RIE R Prepayments and
H A FE Y kI8 other receivables 18 7,476 4,971
FE WP B~ R FIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 11 902,370 585,200
BERFHERA Loans to subsidiaries 11 2,915,052 2,051,896
BekBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 94,342 96,109
3,919,240 2,738,176
BEE Total assets 9,741,577 8,337,733

M—EEREEZERARLR —F—=FFH

74 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013




R-ZE—=F+_-A=+—H As at 31 December 2013
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2013 2012
B ot ARET T AREF T
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Ex EQUITY
&N Share capital 21 34,047 34,047
B 19 & B Share premium account 21 2,243,980 2,243,980
H b Other reserves 22
— ¥R % B — Proposed dividends 183,282 171,178
—Hfb - Others 1,776,726 2,109,595
MR Total equity 4,238,035 4,558,800
=R LIABILITIES
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
(=R Borrowings 25 5,101,644 3,562,321
REBEE Current liabilities
HEMEAFIERETER Other payables and accruals 24 23,294 28,047
B Borrowings 25 335,330 188,565
EEMIT A Derivative financial instruments 26 43,274 =
401,898 216,612
wWeE Total liabilities 5,503,542 3,778,933
EEkEEHEE Total equity and liabilities 9,741,577 8,337,733
REBEEFE Net current assets 3,517,342 2,521,564
MEERAREBEE Total assets less current liabilities 9,339,679 8,121,121
EE% BRERE
LO Chih-Hsien HOU Jung-Lung
HITEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director
FB1E196 8 L MK ARG T 2 — The notes on pages 81 to 196 are an integral part of these

B -

consolidated financial statements.
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2013 2012
B 5 AR¥ TR AREFIT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
W= Revenue 5 23,328,991 21,405,723
55 B AR Cost of sales 29 (15,549,362)  (14,003,879)
EF Gross profit 7,779,629 7,401,844
HEAF15— 558 Other gains — net 27 669,417 118,664
E A A Other income 28 279,631 214,231
H 5 Other expenses 29 (131,236) (87,276)
HERMIGHRERS Selling and marketing expenses 29 (6,824,978) (6,043,037)
TR Administrative expenses 29 (840,036) (722,909)
KRR Operating profit 932,427 881,517
A& WA Finance income 179,121 116,701
& B AR Finance costs (83,945) (52,877)
BE WA —FEE Finance income — net 31 95,176 63,824
LARESS A ABR Z FE(G Share of profit of investments
& Al accounted for using the equity
method 88,445 131,588
R P 48 Bt A g R Profit before income tax 1,116,048 1,076,929
Fris®if X Income tax expense 32 (199,636) (221,041)
FEREAQTEZ Profit for the year and attributable to
BB AEGER equity holders of the Company 916,412 855,888
FERAAAEZBEREA Earnings per share for profit
EEEizeREF attributable to equity holders of
(AERARES|E) the Company during the year
—EARREE (expressed in RMB per share)
— Basic and diluted 34 25.46 7 cents 23.78%cents
=1 Dividends 35 183,282 171,178

FBI1E196 8 2 MR GFRE Mgz 2 — The notes on pages 81 to 196 are an integral part of these
o o consolidated financial statements.



HE—ZT—=F+=-A=1+—H8ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2013

—E—-=F T4
2013 2012
B & AR¥ T ARBFIT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FEER Profit for the year 916,412 855,888
Hth 2w : Other comprehensive income:
&G AEzm s EH Iltems that may be reclassified to
profit or loss
RHEErfEESLREE®  Transfer of fair value gains previously
e R ET AR 2 A TE taken to reserve to income
FEERzElmE statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets 22 (284,827) (14,039)
AHEESHEEY Fair value gains on available-for-sale
NEERGE BRI FE financial assets, net of tax 22 10,705 98,981
RatHELmEEMME®  Transfer of fair value loss previously
SR ET A 2 A TE taken to reserve to income
EEEREE R SRR statement upon impairment of
i available-for-sale financial assets,
net of tax - 12,925
FEHMEZEKRE - Other comprehensive income for
RR%F R the year, net of tax (274,122) 97,867
FEREAQATERERFA Total comprehensive income for
Btz EREERE the year and attributable to
equity holders of the Company 642,290 953,755
F81E196 B MR AR A MK 2 — The notes on pages 81 to 196 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.



HEZ

T—=F+=- F=+—HI-4E For the year ended 31 December 2013

ADEEREEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B R 1% E { &%
Share Share Other
capital premium reserves Total
R-B-——§-F-Hz&& Balance at 1 January 2012 34,047 2,243,980 4,532,868 6,810,895
ZHE K Comprehensive income
ERER Profit for the year - - 855,888 855,888
Hit2Ebas Other comprehensive income
REEARLESRAER Transfer of fair value gain previously
KRR ABEATE taken to reserve to income
FEERENER statement upon disposal of
o available-for-sale financial assets - - (14,039) (14,039
ARHECREE L Fair value gains on available-for-sale
 RFEMNG-FRBFE financial assets, net of tax = = 08,981 08,981
RAFHERREERER Transfer of fair value loss previously
RERARB A FE taken to reserve to income
BEBRAZNER - statement upon impairment of
BRETFE available-for-sale financial assets,
net of tax = = 12,925 12,925
Ht2ENEEE Total other comprehensive income = = 97,867 97,867
FEZEAKGAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 953,755 953,755
HBEFAETZRS Transaction with owners
BT ——FEMZRE Dividends relating to 2011 - - (93,582) (93,582)
R=B-—-%+=-A=+-A Balance at 31 December 2012
ZEB 34,047 2,243,980 5,393,041 7,671,068
R-BE-=f§-F-Hz&H Balance at 1 January 2013 34,047 2,243,980 5,393,041 7,671,068
%EH&G& Comprehensive income
EREMN Profit for the year - - 916,412 916,412
HE2EbaE Other comprehensive income
REETHNESHEER Transfer of fair value gain previously
BRI ABEATE taken to reserve to income
FEEREZ ER statement upon disposal of
o available-for-sale financial assets - - (284,827) (284,827)
AfHESREE L Fair value gains on available-for-sale
DEEFNE-BHFE financial assets, net of tax - - 10,705 10,705
Ht2ENEEE Total other comprehensive income - - (274,122) (274,122)
FEZEAKGAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 642,290 642,290
HBEFAETZRS Transaction with owners
HB-T-——FHEEzZRS Dividends relating to 2012 - - (171,190) (171,190)
R=ZB-=%+=-A=+-A Balance at 31 December 2013
28R 34,047 2,243,980 5,864,141 8,142,168

FE1E196 B 2 M sk B ARG TSRk R 2 —

D e

consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 81 to 196 are an integral part of these



HE-Z

— =%+ A=+—H 15 For the year ended 31 December 2013

—E—-=F T4
2013 2012
B & AR¥ T ARBFIT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
EETBZRERE Cash flows from operating
activities
BEEL RS Cash generated from operations 36 1,619,469 2,810,454
ERFMERZ Interest expenses paid (76,125) (56,383)
EATFTEH Income tax paid (309,226) (213,091)
BEEHELEZFRS Net cash generated from
operating activities 1,234,118 2,540,980
RETEBH2EESRE Cash flows from investing
activities
NE &b EMEEE QA Investments in joint ventures and
ZHRE associates 12 (95,548) (28,970)
AT R AT L A A Payment and prepayment for
A land use right (717,199) (183,252)
BEWE  WERZE Purchases of property, plant
and equipment (4,487,246) (3,486,071)
BERTVEE Purchases of intangible assets (15,114) (2,286)
BEREME Purchases of investment properties (60,449) (887)
HEME - BEREHE Proceeds from disposal of property,
pAiECY S5 plant and equipment 36 865,139 253,576
EETEZRBIA Dividends received from joint ventures 10,250 10,000
LEAHLESREE Proceeds from disposal of
Z PS8 available-for-sale financial assets 408,260 21,933
B—REEAT Dividends received from an
pd 3R ON associate 3,199 3,199
BRftHESMEE Dividends received from
2 B& B A available-for-sales financial assets 5,684 7,509
KREREFRAZFES Net cash used in investing activities (4,083,024) (3,405,249)




R
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HE2—T—=F1+-H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2013

—E—-=F —ET——F

2013 2012
B 5 AR®BT R AR¥F T
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
MEIBH2HERE Cash flows from financing activities
RITEEMSRE Proceeds from bank borrowings 9,411,359 7,066,677
JET =R ATIS R IA Proceeds from notes payables 1,000,000 =
EBRTEER Repayments of bank borrowings (8,264,796) (6,186,923)
MARBIERFAEA Dividends paid to equity holders
SR of the Company (171,190) (93,582)
BMEEBFE2FRS Net cash received in financing
activities 1,975,373 786,172
HEPRESEBEBYURD Net decrease in cash and
bk cash equivalents (873,533) (78,097)
FHNsRERREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 2,290,809 2,369,050
RekReZEEYD Exchange losses on cash and
2 BN B R cash equivalents (3,347) (144)
FRZ2BFASRBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 20 1,413,929 2,290,809
F81E196 8 2 MR A iRE Mk 2 — The notes on pages 81 to 196 are an integral part of these

2o o consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC
Beverages and Instant Noodles Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRS”).
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

m—EEREERARLAR —FE—=FFK
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ERSTBREE (#)

2.1

mBLEE ()

RIRE 7B B %5 & AR LB 75
BARFRERE TRRSIEE -
ENREEEECERALAEES
AHRECRIRP TR EAE - B RB
Bz = BRI 2 85 - %
B REREMBRRIEHERR
RMEE 2 & - THR T X4
RIREE

211 B BRRRKEZEE (&)

(a) FEBEIRMZ HETRASE
e

T ER R HER ZEFC
WAEBEANR T —=F— A
—HRBRZMBREREERENL
HAKEEEARTE

o FAGFEAFEIRE (EFT)
[2EBABHRR IR _-_FT—=
FELA—BHZERRAENF
EHRERN - ZFETNE
EEHR/BERKERLKZIRN
[H A2 E 4 as | #9318 B %
FHEHREEAAREET
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EHFIBIR -

M—EEREEZERBARLE —F—=FFK

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following new and amended standards, and
interpretations have been adopted by the Group for the
first time for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2013 and have a material impact to the Group:

° Amendment to HKAS 1 ‘Financial statement
presentation’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The main
change resulting from these amendments is a
requirement for entities to group items presented
in ‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the
basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable
to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments).

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013
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2 EEESBERBE (&)

2.1 EHEE (18)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@)

B—
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013 83

(continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

HKFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’.
The objective of HKFRS 10 is to establish
principles for the presentation and preparation of
consolidated financial statements when an entity
controls one or more other entities to present
consolidated financial statements. It defines the
principle of control, and establishes controls as
the basis for consolidation. It sets out how to
apply the principle of control to identify whether
an investor controls an investee and therefore
must consolidate the investee. It also sets out
the accounting requirements for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements. The Group
assessed that adoption of HKFRS 10 did not
result in any change in the consolidation status of
its subsidiaries.

HKAS 27 (revised 2011) ‘Separate financial
statements’. It includes the provisions on separate
financial statements that are left after the control
provisions of HKAS 27 have been included in the
new HKFRS 10.

EEPEZERERRE —E-=FFH
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@)

(continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

HKFRS 11 ‘Joint arrangements. It is a more
realistic reflection of joint arrangements by
focusing on the rights and obligations of the
arrangement rather than its legal form. There are
two types of joint arrangement: joint operations
and joint ventures. Joint operations arise where
a joint operator has rights to the assets and
obligations relating to the arrangement and hence
accounts for its interest in assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses. Joint ventures arise where
the joint operator has rights to the net assets of
the arrangement and hence equity accounts for
its interest. Proportional consolidation of joint
ventures is no longer allowed.

HKAS 28 (revised 2011) ‘Associates and joint
ventures’. It includes the requirements for joint
ventures, as well as associates, to be equity
accounted following the issue of HKFRS 11.

HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interests in other
entities’. It includes the disclosure requirements
for all forms of interests in other entities, including
joint arrangements, associates, special purpose
vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

° HKFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurements’. It aims
to improve consistency and reduce complexity
by providing a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs.
The requirements, which are largely aligned
between HKFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend
the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where its
use is already required or permitted by other
standards within HKFRSs or US GAAP.

The following new and amended standards, and
interpretations have been adopted by the Group for the
first time for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2013 but not currently relevant or do not have material
impact to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events):

o Amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘First time adoption’, on

government loans.

° Amendment to HKFRSs 10, 11 and 12, on
transition guidance.

° Amendment to HKAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’.

o Amendments to HKRS 7, ‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures’ on asset and liability offsetting.

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 20, ‘Stripping costs in the
production phase of a surface mine’.

The above new and amended standards are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

B—EPBEERERAR —E—=FFH
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21

TERHEZERERAT —E—=FFH
Un| President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(b)

(continued)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning after 1 January 2013 and have not been
early adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2013, and have
not been applied in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except the following set out
below:

Amendment to HKAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’
on recoverable amount disclosures’ addresses the
disclosure of information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based
on fair value less costs of disposal.

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ is the first
standard issued as part of a wider project to
replace HKAS 39. HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies
the mixed measurement model and establishes
two primary measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost and fair value. The
basis of classification depends on the entity’s
business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. The guidance
in HKAS 39 on impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting continues to apply.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(b)

(continued)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning after 1 January 2013 and have not been
early adopted (continued)

HK(IFRIC) 21 ‘Levies’ is an interpretation of
HKAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets’. HKAS 37 sets out criteria
for the recognition of a liability, one of which is
the requirement for the entity to have a present
obligation as a result of a past event (known as an
obligating event). The interpretation clarifies that
the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to
pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Group.

B—
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Un| President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(a) Business combinations (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement (Note 2.9).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Associated companies

An associated company is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associated
companies includes goodwill identified on acquisition.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Associated companies (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of associated companies’ post-
acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associated
company equal or exceed its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associated company.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
in the associated company is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associated company and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘Share of profit of
investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Associated companies (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associated companies are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associated
companies have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associated companies are recognised in the income
statement.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements as at 1 January 2012. Under HKFRS
11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

24

2.5

2.6

Joint arrangements (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the fair value reserves in other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statements during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as
follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’, in the
income statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Investment properties

2.9

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and useful
lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued)
(a) Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 5 years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets
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2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade receivable’, ‘other
receivables’, ‘pledged bank deposits’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet (also refer to
Notes 2.16 and 2.17).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date - the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘Other (losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as ‘Other gains/(losses)-net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of ‘other
income’ when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivable category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For
debt securities, the Group uses the criteria set out in
(@) above. In the case of equity investments classified
as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available for
sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designed as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged. Derivative instruments held by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of these derivative instruments that do not qualify
for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net’.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and
cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand and
deposits held at call with banks.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

m—EEREERARLAR —FE—=FFK

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013 105



2

106

EESTTRERBE (R 2

22018 &

e B RS AR Y A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Borrowings
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Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only where there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxed levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Employee benefits
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(a) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.

The Group has participated in defined contribution
plans administered by the relevant authorities in the
PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong for its employees. The
Group is required to pay monthly contributions to these
plans at certain percentages of the relevant portion of
the payroll of the employees to fund the benefits. The
relevant authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to the existing and future
retired employees of the Group under these plans and
the Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.

(b) Profit-sharing and bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.24 Provisions
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when
the risk and reward of the goods has been transferred
to the customer, which is usually at the date when a
group entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)
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(b) Consultation service income

Consultation service income is recognised in the period
when the services are rendered.

(c) Operating lease income (as a lessor)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(e) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to land use right and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Operating leases

(a) The Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual land ownership right exists. The Group made
upfront payments to obtain operating leases of land
use rights. The upfront payments of the land use rights
are recorded as assets and amortised over the lease
periods varying from 20 to 70 years on a straight-line
basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.27 Operating leases (continued)

(b) The Group is the lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.28 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks on behalf of subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates to secure loans and other
banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of
the amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management’s judgement. The fee
income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is reported in the consolidated
income statement within other operating expenses.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013



e R AR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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AR A B RR - aERE
B 2 1 A B Rk H Al FE N R
MR TRRERE - IEQFESA
RIMEEE - YRARRNI R
RAERBRIRERAH —#D o

HABBED—RRBEEARE
EREE - MZxFBESHFNFE
BRI —HXZHLIIFHAKE
EREEGNAETABREHNE
HEREHEE - XARBENAR—H
AAARAEFERALBEERSL
Az B R S At E MR
ERZBESHEEZRARE -

SRBERTAER - HERTH
HRPEE - WIERKEER A
RELREHREAAIETRER
REER  AIRAREFER SR
o

FREERARTBEENFFMA
ERELNEE  UWFEERERE
AEBTRETEEHN—AHZIA
THEE BFHHIRE T J7 REHER

HRBERTHR - R ATREHIR
AR ) 2 A B TR B 7 R R P
PIRE - ERBENRRARESR
HER - AINZEELEITER

2.30 R E 7K

DR T AR BBIR BB TR
BEARRZ BRI AEZ BER
AEBREARBHBHER P HER
RBME-

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment in the financial statements of the
Company.

2.29 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1
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Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from the future borrowings from
overseas and recognised assets or liabilities, such as
cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) and borrowings
(Note 25), part of which are denominated in United
States dollar (“USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”).

As at 31 December 2013, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2013 would have been
approximately RMB168,995,000 higher/lower (2012:
RMB142,731,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USD
and HKD denominated borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents.

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because certain investments held by the Group are
classified on the balance sheet as available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 13). The Group has not hedged
its price risk arising from investments in equity securities
financial assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly
traded, the fair value is determined with reference to
quoted market prices.
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Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Price risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, if the market prices of the
securities had increased/decreased by 10% with all
other variables held constant, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s publicly traded available-for-sale financial
assets and total equity would be approximately RMB1
million (2012: RMB42 million) higher/lower than the
current value.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits (Note 20) and borrowings
(Note 25) with interest charges, the Group have no
other significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rate and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 20 and Note 25 respectively.

As at 31 December 2013, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB47,664,000 lower/higher (2012:
RMB20,677,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on borrowings which
would offset interest income on bank deposits.

EEPEZERERRE —E-=FFH
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
other receivables included in the consolidated financial
statements represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

As at 31 December 2013, these bank deposits and
cash at bank were deposited in reputable financial
institutions which are considered with low credit risk,
the table below shows bank deposits and cash at bank
balances by counterparties:

—B—-=fF —E——%F
2013 2012
AR T ARETF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

RBH Counterparties
—PRH MERTT* - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 502,265 813,913
—HINERTT — Foreign owned banks 714,263 782,609
—HMBEAEERT — Other domestic commercial banks 203,156 698,782
1,419,684 2,295,304

* MAPEBEARTEETETE
RITROBR AT - fEEER
TROABERRE - RERTHRAG
BRAFRHBEERRTRNAE
RAA -

BEAN - REE TR EIBIER - T
RTRITREBMEEBROER - E
RAEBEBERATNEELBE
HEREA -

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
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Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.

There were also financial guarantees provided by the
Group, which were the guarantees given to the banks
and financial institutions to secure borrowings and
finance leases of an associate of the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements are as follows:

—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

BHBEEAEBERINER Credit risk exposure relating to

MEERRE off-balance sheet items

ISR Financial guarantees 79,808 97,200
R+—-—A=+—H At 31 December 79,808 97,200
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J& 4 5 SRAT (AT 5 48 -
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RIARSIARECRESEE - R
HEBRAREARIFERARERZ
RIS « AEBEEFIZHE » A
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WZEAHEERERE - ARR
AEERERRRERTCERA
HEHA -

TERAAREZEBRABEDN » &%
EERREEREANIIHALZ
g N B RF RN A B2 AR R
NEE - KNFIRBESRAEHRK
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Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance of these counterparties.

Majority of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or in
bills provided by its customers on delivery of goods.
Credit sales are made only to selected customers with
good credit history. The Group has policies in place
to ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a
timely basis.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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MERRERE (& 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.1 BEREEEZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) HEEZLREE (&) (c) Liquidity risk (continued)
SR-F -EME “ZEE LE#
Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years  2and 5 years 5 years
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R-ZZ-=F+-A=1-H Asat31 December 2013

fBE Borrowings 902,341 942,231 4,159,413 -
EENEHR Interest payments on borrowings 122,928 115,302 101,964 -
ITEEBTIE Derivative financial instruments 43,274
ERESEARENTE  Trade and bills payables 1,409,968 - - -
EfERFEREHER  Other payables and accruals,
(TafEkeREE) (excluding non-financial liabilites) 1,792,877 - - -
A RAEATE Other long term payables - 230,971 - -
4,271,388 1,288,504 4,261,377 -
IBERED Financial guarantee contracts 79,808 - - -

R=ZE--%+-H=+-H Asat31 December 2012

BE Borrowings 408,558 - 3,562,321 -
EEFSHT Interest payments on borrowings 75,934 74,563 160,417 =
ERESEHREMNEE  Trade and bills payables 1,441,944 - = =
EENFEREGTER  Other payables and accruals,
(FRfEkeRaR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 2,518,612 - - -
EhRHEMTE Other long term payables = 197,130 = =
4,445,048 271,693 3,722,738 =
FBERED Financial guarantee contracts 97,200 = = =
EBENENZNIREEANEE Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
HE  WEEZEERKET - 1I07H on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
MEHE2MNBIHEEHERDN without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
FR{EE o rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate

as at the balance sheet dates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2013

—E——-F+-A=+—HBHHE

and 2012 are as follows:

REEEEMAT

—E—-=F —ET——F
2013 2012
AR T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BEE (M:E25) Total borrowings (Note 25) 6,003,985 3,970,879

BRERREEED Less: cash and cash equivalents
(F$3E20) (Note 20) (1,413,929) (2,290,809)
BIEF R Net debt 4,590,056 1,680,070
B Total equity 8,142,168 7,671,068
FERE PN Total capital 12,732,224 9,351,138
BEARBELE Gearing ratio 36.05% 17.97%

W-F—=4+-A=+—0 &
ABELEEND @A =T —=
P 48 15 B AR S A R B

BARFIFTE »

The increase of gearing ratio as at 31 December 2013
was the result of the increase in total borrowings to
finance capital expenditures of the Group during 2013.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value at 31 December
2013 and 2012.

RZIEBE—=%F R-ZT—-F
+=—A=+—-B+-A=+—H

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
AR T AREFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BE Assets
AtHESRHEE Available-for-sale financial assets
— %1/ — Level 1 11,293 420,461
— 3= — Level 3 180,733 165,811
192,026 586,272
af& Liabilities
PTESMIA Derivative financial instruments
— E2F - Level 2 43,274 =

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there are no
transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
also no changes in the classification of financial assets
as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted
prices (Level 1)

The Group’s investments in level 1 mainly comprise
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair
values of the listed securities are determined based on
the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Valuation techniques used to derive fair
values (Level 2)

Level 2 trading derivatives comprise forward foreign
exchange contracts. These forward foreign exchange
contracts have been fair valued using forward exchange
rates that are quoted in an active market. The effects
of discounting are generally insignificant for Level 2
derivatives.

The forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31
December 2013 comprised contracts with notional
principal amounts totaling USD477,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB2,908,221,000).

3.3.3 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3

instruments for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012.

m—EEREERARLAR —FE—=FFK
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

NEBEMGME (8) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
—E—-=F —E——F
2013 2012
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BRI 4 B4 Opening balance 165,811 174,968
NEEMNEF (BE) Fair value gains/(losses) 14,922 (9,157)
HR R 45 83 Closing balance 180,733 165,811

RAEBRIELHEENBRAR
EMs  AEEBTTHEREZE
FE o WEBERNEEERAERN
MRIEH R - MRMDIREMS -
NEBMEAWEERTIEE o Wk
ERARE S REL - AFFER
HEELMEENATE - BIEZ
Bk BRI E A RREN R
FRBERETENARE MRS
BEr o AT EEBIBEZWREA
RIMBEAREeREEEREME
F - R-_E—=F+-_A=+—
B REFMAMREETF14.5%
T ——F 1 14.5%) » JHIREW
REQNRMNERBRE mBEIR -
et E AR EEmEENR
S RETEERBREEZETE -™
BERBTREE,WMAGZE
N AL ESMmEEN QT
B - RIEZ A A EBEBAR
WERRWTREE, WA TE I
MEXRKIEEDABOEEM
BTE o WMIERHE  C2EAR
BHUEBEE RPEEERE
FTEBEFZAAREENARD
KEEZE N _FT—=F+_A
=t+—8  BAFEANMIRERE
EREBEMNGED,E10% (B
15.95%,713.05% ) * BIAT L H &
TREENEREBSRAERD
# A\ R #5,557,0007T /12 iN4I A
R #7,079,0007T °

m—bERPEEZERERAT —F-=FFHK

For the Group’s equity investments that are not publicly
traded, the Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. In connection with the investments in
shares, the Group adopts a combination of income and
market approaches. The income approach adopts a
discounted cash flow method to assess the fair value
of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under this
methodology, fair value is determined by discounting
the projected cash flow of the investee company to
present worth based on profit and cash flows forecast
and other relevant information provided by the investee
company. The discount rate used for the investment
as at 31 December 2013 was 14.5% (2012: 14.5%)
per annum which was determined by the risk-free rate,
market return, estimated beta of the investee company
and firm specific risk factors. The market approach
adopts various sales/income multiples to assess the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under
this methodology, fair value is determined by multiplying
various sales/income of the investee company to
multipliers with regard to the risks and nature of the
business. In estimating the multiples, reference has
been made to the operating results of companies with
similar business nature, having their operating activities
in the PRC and whose ownership interests are publicly
traded. As at 31 December 2013, if the discount rate
and the multiples used was 10% higher/lower from
management’s estimates (i.e. 15.95%/13.05%), the
carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial
assets would be approximately RMB5,557,000 lower/
RMB7,079,000 higher than the current value.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(a) Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market, such as equity interest
classified as available-for-sale financial assets (Note
13) is determined by using valuation techniques (Note
3.3). The Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. The effect of the changes in one or more of
the inputs has been disclosed in Note 3.3 above.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.

B—EPBEERERAR —E—=FFH
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

4.2

R—EFEERBRAR —E—=FFHK
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(b) Income taxes (continued)

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgement areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable
by 10% from management’s estimates, the Group
would need to increase/(decrease) the tax assets by

RMB6,945,000 (2012: increase/(decrease) the tax
assets by RMB2,735,000).

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

(a) Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee company, including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash flow.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost were
considered significant or prolonged, the Group would
suffer an loss of approximately RMB19,553,000 in its
2013 financial statements, being the transfer of the
accumulated fair value adjustments on the impaired
available-for-sale financial assets recognised in equity to
the income statement.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies (continued)

(b) Classification of borrowings

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 1 to
determine whether certain borrowings should be
classified as current or non-current liabilities. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates both its intention
and discretion. When the Group expects, and has the
full discretion, to roll over the borrowings for at least
twelve months after the reporting period under the
existing loan facility, the Group classifies the borrowings
as non-current, even if they would otherwise be due
within a shorter period.

If the Group is not able to roll over the borrowings
for at least twelve months after 31 December 2013,
the borrowings in the amount of approximately
RMB4,101,644,000 would be reclassified from non-
current liability to current liability in its 2013 financial
statements.

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales
and business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a
product perspective, management assesses the performance
of beverages, instant noodles and others. The executive
directors assess the performance of operating segments
based on segment profit or loss. Other information provided,
except as noted below, to the executive directors is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the financial
statements.

TEFEZERERAR —E—=FFHK
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The majority of the Group’s sales are retail sales and no
revenues from transactions with a single external customer

account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

The segment information for the year ended 31 December
2013 and 2012 is as follows:

—E-ZF
2013
8 FEHE Hit RAE TEH
Instant
Beverages noodles Others  Unallocated Group
ARETT AR®TR AR¥TR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
PHEE Segment results
Wz Revenue 15,151,525 7,825,918 351,548 - 23,328,991
AR/ (BR) Segment profit/(loss) 848,693 (142,648) 22,403 203,979 932,427
BEWA-FE Finance income - net 95,176
R AN Bl Share of profit of investments
REET accounted for using
the equity method 102,771 - - (14,326) 88,445
B P 5 B A0 & A Profit before income tax 1,116,048
FrERAX Income tax expense (199,636)
FEET Profit for the year 916,412
W&ER A EA Other segment items
AHER included in the income
statement
FERSH Depreciation and amortisation 787,499 235,494 42,548 38,288 1,103,829
ITBEERER Segment assets and
liabilities
BE Assets 10,526,599 3,541,663 161,543 3,237,871 17,467,676
REEhEREE Interests in joint ventures
RNE and associates 1,276,601 - - 223,515 1,500,116
BaE Total assets 18,967,792
BE Liabilities 2,965,611 1,372,883 43,214 6,443,916 10,825,624
Bafk Total liabilties 10,825,624
BR%H Capital expenditure 3,431,043 860,640 55,799 398,823 4,746,305
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WEEHER (8) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
—E-—F
2012
e i Bt RAR T&EE
Instant
Beverages noodles Others Unallocated Group
ARETT  ARETT  AREFTT  AR®TT  AR®ETn
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PHEE Segment results
Wigx Revenue 13,913,636 7,269,580 222,507 - 21,405,723
A&/ (HB) Segment profit/(loss) 764,385 225,258 (3,430) (104,696) 881,517
BEWA-FE Finance income - net 63,824
IR A 2 [’ lE Share of profit of investments
REEM accounted for using
the equity method 134,630 - - (3,042) 131,588
B ERATRF Profit before income tax 1,076,929
R Income tax expense (221,041)
EERA Profit for the year 855,888
KERARTIEA Other segment items
AHER included in the income
statement
WERBH Depreciation and amortisation 545,295 207,448 6,476 43,803 803,022
THEERER Segment assets and
liabilities
BE Assets 8,337,870 2,903,484 134,662 3,834,225 15,210,241
REEhEREE Interests in joint ventures
INGIPA: £ and associates 1,109,851 - = 219,721 1,329,572
BEE Total assets 16,539,813
BfE Liabilities 2,971,311 1,515,471 28,356 4,353,607 8,868,745
Bafk Total liabilities 8,868,745
EAXH Capital expenditure 2,739,487 780,130 18,502 39,389 3,578,008
H—EPEERERAR —FE—=FFK
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale
financial assets, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, investment properties and affiliated land use
rights.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category comprised
primarily of deferred income tax liabilities, current income tax
liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to land use right,
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
intangible assets.

LAND USE RIGHT - GROUP

The Group’s interests in land use right represent prepaid
operating lease payments for land use rights and their net
book amounts are analysed as follows:

—E—-=F —E——F

2013 2012

AR T AREFIT

RMB?’ 000 RMB’ 000

Rn—HA—H At 1 January 1,426,756 1,272,155
RNE Additions 727,310 187,206
B85 (fF5E29) Amortisation (Note 29) (40,178) (32,605)
R+-_A=+—8 At 31 December 2,113,888 1,426,756
BN Cost 2,257,049 1,529,739
g Accumulated amortisation (143,161) (102,983)
BREFZR Net book amount 2,113,888 1,426,756

M—EEREEZERBARLE —F—=FFK
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6 THFEAE-AXKEE(E)

REEE Z A i AR+ B3R
W EEEIT

6 LAND USE RIGHT - GROUP (CONTINUED)

All of the Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and
are with the lease periods as follows:

—E-—=F —E——F

2013 2012
AR T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ERBIEANFE In the PRC, held on:

50F A £ R H Original lease period of over 50 years 10,982 11,206

104F Z50%F 2 IR 16 HA Original lease period of between 10
and 50 years 2,102,906 1,415,550
FORMRE 58 Closing net book amount 2,113,888 1,426,756

AREE 2 T F AEEED B4R A Was
RATHEKA] -~ [HE KI5 R
X RTRFEINEREET

Amortisation changes of the Group’s land use rights have
been charged to ‘cost of sales’, ‘selling and marketing
expenses’ and ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated
income statement as follows:

—E—=F T

2013 2012

AR® T ARET T

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

SHE B Cost of sales 23,401 21,925
SHE KR5S Selling and marketing expenses 2,114 1,366
ITBA X Administrative expenses 14,663 9,314
40,178 32,605

B—EPBEERERAR —E—=FFH
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7 ME -BERZE-FTKHE 7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

GROUP
#BER BRI,
BT IRRfk AtREREE BE%E HEIR Aif
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment  and fixtures improvements in progress Total

ARETL  ARMTRL  ARETR  ARBTL  ARBTL  ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R=Z-=%-F—H At 1 January 2012
KA

Cost 1,574,888 3,977,072 1,498,459 9,153 1,557,354 8,616,926

ZitE Accumulated depreciation (539,638)  (1,722,015) (768,135) (7,025) - (3,036,819
Lt R ERE Accumulated impairment provision - (728) - - - (728)
RHSE Net book amount 1,035,250 2,254,329 730,324 2,128 1,557,354 5,579,385
BE-Z--F  Yearended 31 December

t-A=+-8 2012

LEE
ENREFE Opening net book amount 1,035,250 2,254,329 730,324 2,128 1,557,354 5,579,385
RE Additions 117,189 331,729 494,135 - 2,444,576 3,387,629
TREZA Transfer upon completion 717,937 1,508,332 305,532 - (2,531,801) =
& Disposals (129) (168,143) (54,862) = = (223,128)
BRESREME  Transfers to investment properties

(r3ts) (Note 8) (70,825) - - - = (70,825)
E (H3129) Depreciation (Note 29) 90,028) (350,421) (320,123 (1,141) = (761,713)
BEEE (H5E29)  Reversal of provision (Note 29) - 307 - - - 307
EXEEFE Closing net book amount 1,709,400 3,576,133 1,155,006 987 1,470,129 791,655
R-B8-Z% At 31 December 2012

t-A=t+-H
A Cost 2,337,952 5,568,207 2,148,900 9,153 1470129 11,534,361
Z2itiTE Accumulated depreciation (628,552)  (1,991,679) (993,894) (8,166) - (3,622,28)
ZitRERE Accumulated impairment provision - (421) - - = (421)
BEFE Net book amount 1,709,400 3,576,133 1,155,006 987 1,470,129 7,911,655
BE-Z-=F  Yearended 31 December

t-A=+t-8 2013

LEE
ENREFE Opening net book amount 1,709,400 3,576,133 1,155,006 987 1,470,129 7,911,655
RE Additions 123,345 264,254 560,509 - 2,995,325 3,943,433
TREZA Transfer upon completion 1,147,072 1,224,577 227,105 - (2,598,754) -
& (Bi3E39())  Disposals (Note 39(ail) (16,656) (464,950) (108,402) - - (590,008)
BRERENE  Transfers to investment properties

(W8) (Note 8) (27,751) - - - - (27,751)
E (M) Depreciation (Note 29) (135,229) (468,252) (446,989) (987) - (1,051,457)
BEER(F529)  Reversal of provision (Note 29) - 27 - - - 27
EXEEFE Closing net book amount 2,800,181 4,131,789 1,387,220 - 1,866,700 10,185,399
RZE-=§ At 31 December 2013

t-A=t+-H
A Cost 3,531,222 6,057,936 2,623,475 9,152 1,866,700 14,088,485
Z2itiTE Accumulated depreciation (731,04)  (1,925753)  (1,236,246) (9,152) - (3,902,192
ZitRERE Accumulated impairment provision - (394) - - - (394)
BEFE Net book amount 2,800,181 4,131,789 1,387,229 - 1,866,700 10,185,899

Bm—EPEERBRAR —E—=FFK
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7 VME BMERRHE-—AXNEB 7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

(&)

FTEEREBGRARARINBNT

GROUP (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

—E—-=F —ET——F

2013 2012

AR T ARET T

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

SHE B Cost of sales 679,131 508,331
SHE R Thi5HEER X Selling and marketing expenses 286,278 194,405
ITBAX Administrative expenses 86,048 58,977
1,051,457 761,713

AEBEZEFEMURPE -

[

R-B—=FKk-_F—-%+=A
=+ RAUBEREADE  BEER
e

REBFHEZHASRANDARE
5,500,000t (ZE——F : AR¥
6,100,00070) E st A W m Tk M [ K
U Al (ff5E28) -

FR - AEBEBEEREENEER
NARK9,665,000T (ZT——4F : A
R #10,403,00070) B E A - fEE K
ANDEZEE-—REENNMELHEGF
2.28% (T ——4F :1.72%) BEFREA -

The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.

There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2013 and 2012.

Rental income amounting to approximately RMB5.5 million
(2012: RMB6.1 million) derived from lease of buildings
is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statement (Note 28).

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to RMB9,665,000 (2012: RMB10,403,000) on
qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 2.23%
(2012: 1.72%) per annum.

m—EEREERARLAR —FE—=FFK
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8 REWX-FT5HE

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP

—EB-=F —E——F

2013 2012

ARET T ARETIT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

Hn—HA—H At 1 January 167,880 101,469

ANE Additions 60,448 887
EREGYE  BEREE Transfer from property, plant and

GEXS equipment (Note 7) 27,751 70,825

& (FsE29) Depreciation (Note 29) (6,714) (5,301)

R+-A=+—H At 31 December 249,365 167,880

R+t A=+—BHKAK Cost as at 31 December 292,229 176,156

REtiE Accumulated depreciation (42,864) (8,276)

RTZA=1+—H0EREEFE Net book amount as at 31 December 249,365 167,880

BREWMEUN L8 MTEHE - WENHE

HI RA0F FN50F &) L3+ o

KEREMEZTESHARA
B TEAMFEX] -

Y ek &%

The investment properties are located in Shanghai and

JiangSu Province, and erected on land with lease periods of

40 and 50 years.

Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been

charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income

statements.
—E-=F —E—=F
2013 2012
AR® T ARETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
e A Rental income 52,177 39,128
KEELEHESWRAZDE Direct operating expenses from
ZEERERY property that generated rental income (6,574) (7,422)
45,603 31,706

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
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8 KBEVXE-—XEE(E) 8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

"EYEZRABEERAFESHIWOT The carrying amounts and fair value of the investment
properties are set out as follows:

—E—-=F —ET——F

2013 2012
AR T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
REE Carrying amount 249,365 167,880
~NFE Fair value 319,143 169,271
R—ZE—=FRg-_ZE——_F+=-H The fair values as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were
= t—HBZAFEDNEREREZET determined by management’s self-assessment using
Ml MERTAEBRGASBAESE discounted cash flow projection based on significant
(3B ABBEESMBAEEE - unobservable inputs (Level 3).
FTREATAHERG ARBE 2AFE Information about fair value measurements using significant
(F3B)MER unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:
R2013%12H31H THEREARE
RE NEE aE BRI &
Fair value at Unobservable inputs
Description 31 December 2013 Rental value Discount rate
AR¥T R AR¥T R
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEA 94,374 11,184F 4 per annum 10%
Plant A
BEB 124,627 16,0198 4F per annum 10%
Plant B
YN 100,142 5,503% % per annum 10%
Office building

B—EPBEERERAR —E—=FFH
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9 EBEEE-AXKEHE 9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP
[EES B4 et
Computer
Goodwill software Total
ARET T ARET T ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
MW=Z——%—A—HAt 1 January 2012
DN Cost 11,941 22 461 34,402
2T Accumulated amortisation = (14,407) (14,407)
REHRE Accumulated impairment (11,941) = (11,941)
R FER Net book amount = 8,054 8,054
Bz-—Z——F Year ended 31 December
+=HA=+—H 2012
IEEE
FHIRME FHE Opening net book amount = 8,054 8,054
NE Additions = 2,286 2,286
4 (M5E29) Amortisation (Note 29) = (3,408) (3,403)
FAREEFR Closing net book amount = 6,937 6,937
R-ZZE——F At 31 December 2012
+=A=+—H
BN Cost 11,941 24,749 36,690
REH Y Accumulated amortisation = (17,812) (17,812)
REHRE Accumulated impairment (11,941) - (11,941)
R FRE Net book amount - 6,937 6,937
BE-ZE—=F Year ended 31 December
+=B=+—H 2013
IEEE
FYREFE Opening net book amount - 6,937 6,937
NE Additions - 15,114 15,114
#5H (fF3E29) Amortisation (Note 29) - (5,480) (5,480)
FREEFER Closing net book amount - 16,571 16,571
R-ZB—=%F At 31 December 2013
+=BA=+—8H
DN Cost 11,941 39,863 51,804
2T Accumulated amortisation - (23,292) (23,292)
ZEHRAE Accumulated impairment (11,941) - (11,941)
BREFHE Net book amount - 16,571 16,571

m—bERPEEZERERAT —F-=FFHK
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10

11

BLEE-25EH (&) 9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
HEHARE11,941,000T 3K 58 The goodwill of approximately RMB11,941,000 was derived
TFEERENBLAR  YEERERR from the acquisitions of subsidiaries in previous years and had
R o been impaired and fully provided for.
MR #EHEY R B TTHR X The amortisation of computer software has been charged
)32 fﬁé} ErRmBSHEERII R Z to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
LD BIH AR 4,726,0007T & A expenses’ at the amounts of approximately RMB4,726,000
R¥754000 (ZE——F: ARK and RMB754,000 (2012: RMB2,910,000 and RMB493,000),
2,910,0007C & A R #493,0007T) ° respectively.
RHMBARZIRE—-A2AT 10 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY -
COMPANY
—E—-=F —E——F
2013 2012
AR®T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BREKAFEZRE : Investment, at cost:

—JF LMD — Unlisted shares 5,798,947 5,167,339
R-ZT—=F+—_H=+—H &AAQ 7 The list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
TEWB AR ZZEBEEHNMHFE40 December 2013 is set out in Note 40.
EWHEASZEREKEZL 11 AMOUNTS DUE FROM AND LOANS TO
S B SUBSIDIARIES
quypﬁ%@ TEHEAEIEE R KE The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
B EEH - mEFTAIEEIMK B A T free and without fixed terms of repayment. They represent

Hﬁ RRERMBRARMBAYNE - BE
REX M ZHIEA - AR EEERERGZ
”’?ﬁ\lﬁ B R B IR ESRK S -

AR E A B 2 BRI - ASKITE
ARt = 1IH|*JHz1 S%Ziﬂﬂﬁ

REEHRKNBARERZKREE

Uni-President Chlna Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013

dividend receivable from a subsidiary and amounts paid on
behalf of subsidiaries for the purchase of property, plant and
equipment. The Company has the intention to receive such
amounts and the subsidiaries should pay on demand.

The loans to subsidiaries are unsecured, denominated in
USD and repayable within twelve months with the interest
rate of 1.5% per annum. The carrying amounts of loans to
subsidiaries approximate their fair values as at the balance
sheet dates.
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12 BEZZEARNKRE -AREE 12 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

EEERBARERNIBHT

THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

—E—-=F —E——F

2013 2012

AR¥E T AREFIT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

Bt 2 A Bl (a) Associates (a) 1,015,520 930,524
& &P E(Db) Joint ventures (b) 484,596 399,048
R+-—A=+—8H At 31 December 1,500,116 1,329,572

EMBERERNEBELT

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as

follows:
—EB-=F —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥ TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hé & N 7 (a) Associates (a) 90,008 113,400
EETE(Db) Joint ventures (b) (1,563) 18,188
HE+-_A=1+—HLEE For the year ended 31 December 88,445 131,588
(@) REEATzERZ A4S (@) Interests in associates — Group

REERBZEE 2 BT :

The movements in interests in associates are as follows:

—E—=F —E——%F

2013 2012

ARET R AR¥T T

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

n—A—H At 1 January 930,524 820,322

NE Additions 253 -

ERESEDE Transfer to joint ventures (2,066) =

FEAG & Share of profits 90,008 100,555
HEEHE N REER Dilution gains arising from

e RS investment in an associate - 12,846

2R E Dividends received (3,199) (3,199)

W+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 1,015,520 930,524

TERHEZERERAT —E—=FFH
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP

12%&%%AE%E§—¢%E 12
Il‘E
(CONTINUED)
Q) RBEARIZRZ-KEE @)
(&)
W-—E—=&+-A=+—0 &K
ST B ATHBIT - 2

IR -

Interests in associates — Group (Continued)

The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2013, all of which equity method is used to
account for, are set out as follows:

EMALER/
DEER %R A BREX/RK rEEELRE TTER
Country/place
and date of Paid-up Capital/ Equity interest Principal
Company name incorporation Share Capital  attributable to the Group  activities
ZE-=fF %%
2013 2012
IV
Listed :
BatARERRTROERAR PEEA AR #408,988,0007 15.64% 1564%  REERT T R#E
(IZBMRT] 2% R\B408,988,000 BRREDR  AHEER
(Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*) NAZTAH LEE
(“Andre Juice”) Yantai, PRC, The production and sales
26 June 2001 of concentrated
apple juice, pear juice,
apple essence,
forage etc. products.
FETRF
Unlisted
SEBRRRHERLA REIL R AR#991,833,7767C 47.83%  47.83% AERHERH
(I5EBRIA1) “ZTRE RMB991,833,776 Manufacturing and sale
(Jinmailang Beverage Corporate Limited") +A=TNHB of beverages
(“Jinmailang Corporate”) Beijing, PRC,
28 October 2005
* RENEZHWIAARAEEER HBE * The English name represents the best effort by management of

RXEREE -

the Company in translating the Chinese name.

R—EENEZERARAE —F-=FFK
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12 REFZEAEMNRE —A&E£EHE 12 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
(&) USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

(@ REEELIzERZ-—AE (@) Interests in associates — Group (Continued)
(&)
AREBEGEZNa 2 EER A summary of the financial information of the Group’s
MEMAT shares of the associated companies in aggregate is as
follows:

—E—=5F —E—=F
+=A=+—-8 +=—A=+—8

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
ARET T AREEF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
REEEAGREK Summary of balance sheet
EREBEE Non-current assets 1,380,406 1,217,879
mENEE Current assets 462,021 612,620
mEE Total assets 1,842,427 1,830,499
FERBEE Non-current liabilities 21,904 136,972
mEaE Current liabilities 805,003 763,003
FEN=R Total liabilities 826,907 899,975
FEE Net assets 1,015,520 930,524
HEHFERARE Summary of comprehensive income
Wz Revenue 1,566,124 1,627,457
RELEXB2BRBEERN Post-tax profit from
continuing operations 90,008 100,555
Ha2mEBA Other comprehensive income - =
SHEWA LR Total comprehensive income 90,008 100,555

BG—EFEZERERAR —E—=FFK
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12 IREXEABENIRE-AEEH 12 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

(#&) USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
(b) REEtEzER KK (b) Interests in joint ventures — Group
REBLEZERZEFSHNT : The movements in interests in joint ventures are as
follows:
—E—-= —E—_F
2013 2012
AR® T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Rn—HA—H At 1 January 399,048 361,891
NE Additions 95,295 28,969
LR ey /N Transfer from associates 2,066 =
FEAL 4 F| Share of (losses)/profits (1,563) 18,188
B4 B Dividend received (10,250) (10,000)
R+ZA=+—H At 31 December 484,596 399,048
R-_ZTE—=F+—-—A=+—H & The particulars of the joint ventures of the Group as at 31
EB AN (kT ARE December 2013, all of which are unlisted and equity method
ORFIIR) FEBWTE is used to account for, are set out as follows:
HMRIER/
NEAER &R A BRER/RA rEEELRE TEER
Country/place
and date of Paid-up Capital/ Equity interest Principal
Company name incorporation Share Capital  attributable to the Group  activities
“E-=f —F-—F%
2013 2012
GNIXEREREZREAERERRA  REHM A& 1,000,000 50% 50% RABERERRS
([Z2RelxREER]) —ZENE RMB1,000,000 Investment management
(United Advisor Venture tA+NR and advisory services
Management Co., Ltd. %) Suzhou, PRC,

(“United Advisor Venture Management”) 18 July 2008

EagNAHIXERAR hEEAR AR%100,000,0007C 50% 50%  HEKHE Bt RAHE
(MESLH]) “ZTNE RMB100,000,000 ZRMIREE
(Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries ~ANA OEM processing and sales
Co., Ltd. *) (“Yantai Tongli") Yantai, PRC, of various types of
9 June 2009 beverages, fruit juice,
tea, etc.

B—eEPEERERAR —E—=FFHK
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12 BEREIARNERE -XKE 12 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
(7&) USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
b) REeELEocER—LE (b) Interests in joint ventures — Group (Continued)
(&)
AMRIER/
NAEB WHERAH BRER/RE rEEELRE TEEHR
Country/place
and date of Paid-up Capital/ Equity interest Principal
Company name incorporation Share Capital  attributable to the Group  activities
ZB-Zf -“T-CF
2013 2012
ERERABIZARAA oA 19,060,000 42% 45% EERERE BEKR
(TEMER]) —ZENE USD19,060,000 B¥ - RHHRMGEE
(Guilin Ziquan Beverage +tA-tmA Production of various types
Industries Co., Ltd. *) (“Guilin Ziquan”) Guilin, PRC, of beverage including
24 July 2009 fruit, vegetable, tea and
coffee etc.
Greater China F&B Capital Partners Ltd. REHS 10,700% 7T 50% 50% REEE
([ Greater China F&B) —ZENF USD10,700 Investment management
Greater China F&B Capital Partners Ltd. MA+A
(“Greater China F&B”) Cayman Islands,
16 April 2008
RERIR—CEARAR ERE AR%232,000,0007 50% 50% HEXREBEBER
(MRERI]) 2% RMB232,000,000 Production of various
(Wuhan Zijiang President Enterprises tA=t+NE types of plastic products
Co., Ltd.") (“Wuhan Zijiang”) Wuhan, PRC,
29 July 2011
SMS Capital Co., Ltd. ([SMSCC]) HERS 400,000% 7T 50% - REER
SMS Capital Co., Ltd. (“SMSCC") “F-——fF USD400,000 Investment management
+—A=1+NR
Cayman Islands,
28 November 2012
SMS Investment Management Co., Ltd. HEHE 500,000% 7T 50% - REERE
(['SMS Investment Management ) “E-=F USD500,000 Investment management
SMS Investment Management Co., Ltd. —-RZH
(“SMS Investment Management”) Cayman Islands,
2 January 2013

- EERERERARIE —F-—=FFK
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12 BRERZEAENBRE—AXEEH 12 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

(%) USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
b) REeEELEoET—LTE (b) Interests in joint ventures — Group (Continued)
(#&)
HMRIER/
GRS BHERAH BRER/RE rEEELRE TEXR
Country/place
and date of Paid-up Capital/ Equity interest Principal
Company name incorporation Share Capital attributable to the Group  activities
ZB-Zf -“T-CF
2013 2012
LEREREREERARAA E e 880,000% T 50% 0% REEERREBERRE
([LBRE]) ZE-%F USD880,000 Investment management
(SMS Private Equity Fund Management NA=+—-H and related advisory
Co., Ltd.") (“SMS”) Shanghai, PRC, service
31 August 2010
ERAmAIERELR h B & M AR#585,987,583 7 30.74%  39.74% REER
([EERR]) ZEENE RMB585,987,583 Investment management
(China F&B Venture Investments®) MA+=A
(“China F&B") Suzhou, PRC,
13 April 2009
HEZRAHIEERAA mEEE 9,000,000% T 35% - EERBESH
(TEE%R)) -k USD9,000,000 Manufacturing and sale
(Ziquan Beverage industries CO., LTD.") tA-+=H of beverages
(“Yichang Ziquan” ) Yichang, PRC,
23 July 2013
SMS Consumer Fund L.P. ([SMSfund ) Y 12,800,000% 7 23.44% - REER
SMS Consumer Fund L.P. (“SMSfund”) “E-—F USD12,800,000 Investment management
TZATNH
Cayman Islands,
18 December 2012
* RN EZWIVAAAREEBR N#E * The English name represents the best effort by management of
iR HEC the Company in translating the Chinese name.
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

J(?’;;é.)\ EhEoER—KE (b) Interests in joint ventures — Group (Continued)
/V‘E
HExr—_EZ—=+-_H=+—H The additions to the interests in joint ventures during
IEFEEHNE S D EPIZ N RE the year ended 31 December 2013 mainly included
H FTEBRHAREEISLE —0 RMB50,000,000 of further capital injection to Wuhan
XERAFE—FHEARK Zijiang.
50,000,0007T °
NEEBEEASOYL BB EE A summary of the financial information of the Group’s
WENT share of the joint ventures in aggregate is as follows:
—E-=F —T—=F
2013 2012
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BEEEARGERX Summary of balance sheet
mE Current
e kReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 144,315 141,575
HEi e & E (ReEERE) Other current assets (excluding cash) 36,459 37,534
BN A E R Total current assets 180,774 179,109
HimEaE Other current liabilities
(BREEMER) (including trade payables) 36,864 15,269
mEBERRE Total current liabilities 36,864 15,269
FEMEBEE Non-current Assets 355,349 246,458
TRIBE Financial liabilities 14,663 11,250
ERBAFEEE Total non-current liabilities 14,663 11,250
FEE Net assets 484,596 399,048
BEHFRERARE Summary of comprehensive income
WA Revenue 207,724 220,169
e R Depreciation and amortization (10,066) (9,169)
NS Interest income 1,869 1,449
MERX Interest expense (170) (762)
SFERCENER Profit from operations 4,016 24,437
A Income tax expense (5,579) (6,249)
BELENBREETNE Post-tax (loss)/profit from operations (1,563) 18,188
HAnsr G W Other comprehensive income (1,790) (155)
AR S W Total comprehensive income (3,353) 18,033

M—EEREEZERBARLE —F—=FFK
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13

AL ESMEE-ARER 13

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

/NI | ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
rEE KAT
Group Company
—EgE—-=F =—E—-—F =ZB-=Ff —ZE——F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBTR ARETT AR®TRT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
n—A—H At 1 January 586,272 511,207 420,461 336,239
e Disposals (123,433) (7,894)  (123,433) (7,894)
EEHERET A Transfer of net fair value
Hih 2w gains previously taken into
A FEFF other comprehensive
SE% (FfsE22)  income upon disposal
(Note 22) (284,827) (14,039)  (284,827) (14,039)
SFAHEMEE  Net fair value changes
Wz AFE taken to other
) FE comprehensive income
(Ff7E22) (Note 22) 14,014 96,998 (908) 106,155
W+=A=+—H At 31 December 192,026 586,272 11,293 420,461

BHE_Z—=F+-_A=+—8HL*F
B AEBEERTEEEZERERA
AI([HEED) BB LEMRHZRERE
A EeREE  BBERLEH
BERFAREZERESEAFEK
TEPERER  ERRKSAEAR
#084,827,000L (ZE——F : AR¥
14,039,000t ) (Bfs¥27) o

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
disposed of the investments in the Hong Kong listed shares
of Want Want China Holdings Limited (“Want Want”) and
other available-for-sale financial assets, and realised gains
totaling RMB284,827,000 (2012: RMB14,039,000) (Note 27)
through transferring fair value gains of the same amounts
previously taken to reserve to the income statement upon
disposal.

m—EEREERARLAR —FE—=FFK
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13 At ELMEE—AEEHRE 13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
piN ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY

~ A ()

AEBZAHLESREEARTEA
B - WHEHIAT

(CONTINUED)

The available-for-sale financial assets of the Group are stated
at fair value and include the following:

rEHE

Group
—EBE-=F —ZZ——%F
2013 2012

AR®BTR ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AN
Company
—ZF—= —E—_F
2013 2012

AR®TR ARETET
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

B EmES Listed securities
A A Want Want
Hth Others
JEETES Unlisted securities
Sl FLE Wondersun Dairy
Httb Others

- EERERERARIE —F-—=FFK

- 406,209 - 406,209
11,293 14,252 11,293 14,252
11,293 420,461 11,293 420,461

180,000 165,078 - -

733 733 - =
180,733 165,811 - =
192,026 586,272 11,293 420,461
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13

AHHESREE-—FEER
AKNTF (&)

ETES 2 AFERENEEA 2 TS
HETEE -

RZZE—Z=F+=-A=+—H X&HE
RAERBEIEATELUIERNBERAR
(TREWLAEDI% (ZF—ZF : 9%)
ZHEe > TEWUIARAR EMHEEA
X NELEERHEIRER - T&E
WFLER EHEZ A FEL2ERK
NERMHE (MFE33) HESFHZ
HEMEE -

BRABTTRTEZ LM ESIN - Hfdal
HESREEANUARKE -

* RNEABHAALRERER N E
TXEEE

13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

The fair values of the listed securities are determined based
on the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group holds 9% (2012:
9%) equity interests in BEIETEILIERGERA
7] (Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Joint Stock Co., Ltd.*)
(“Wondersun Dairy”), an unlisted PRC domestic enterprise
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of dairy products.
The fair value of the unlisted equity interests in Wondersun
Dairy is determined with reference to a valuation based on a
combination of income approach and market approach (Note
3.3).

Other than the listed securities which are denominated in
HKD, the remaining available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in RMB.

*

The English name represents the best effort by management of
the Company in translating the Chinese name.
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14 RIEFEH -—XEE

ERERIEEERELER BB E D

14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

T is as follow:
—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
EEMSHEE Deferred income tax assets
—+Z@ARKE — Deferred income tax assets to
BEFMEMEE be recovered within 12 months 189,131 168,343
—BBt+t-_@EABKE - Deferred income tax assets to
BIEMSREE be recovered after more than
12 months 2,587 4,727
191,718 173,070
ELEMSHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
- +tZRARBEE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to
BEMERABE be settled within 12 months 21,435 21,435
—-BRAT_EAREE — Deferred income tax liabilities to
BRIEFTSTRARE be settled after more than
12 months 135,554 139,676
156,989 161,111
RIEMEMEE - 558 Deferred income tax assets, net 34,729 11,959

BRIEFERER 2EBHWT

The movements in the deferred income tax

accounts are as

follows:

—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥ET T AREFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
R—H—H At 1 January 11,959 (8,702)

FFAREWER Credited to the consolidated income
(FF5E32) statement (Note 32) 26,079 22,539

BH M E2mEK SR Charged to other comprehensive

(Kf7E22) income (Note 22) (3,309) (1,878)
R+ZHA=+—H At 31 December 34,729 11,959

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
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14 BEFRBH -—AK£E (&) 14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
FRNELEFRMESHEELBENEH (R The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
AR E TR AR 2 ) T during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
EIEFTEHRERE Deferred income tax assets
At &
tREE
BERERG RERE EitBx ATENTE HESENE @t
Downward
adjustment in
Impairment fair value of
provision  Depreciation Accrued available-for-sale Tax loss
of assets  of equipment expenses financial assets benefit Total

ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000

RZE-Z%-F-8 At1January 2012 8,974 5819 116,519 3,172 21,99 156,479
A/ (m8) Creditect/charged) to the
FalEk consolidated income statements 2,081 (1,092) 8,262 3,861 5,357 18,469
NEEH2ENE Charged 1o other comprehensive
income - - - (1,878) - (1,878)
RZE-Z% At 31 December 2012
TZA=1-R 11,055 4121 124,781 5,155 21,352 173,070
(m8)/3A (Charged)/credited to the
FalEk consolidated income statements (5,958) (2,140) (12,046) - 42,101 21,057
NaEM2ENE Charged 1o other Comprehensive
income - - - (3,309) - (3,309)
RZE-=% At 31 December 2013
T-A=1-H 5,097 2,587 112,735 1,846 69,453 191,718

B—eEPEERERAR —E—=FFHK
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ELEFREHR-A~5E (&)

14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

(CONTINUED)

ELEFRMEHERE Deferred income tax liabilities
EMB NEERE #mat
Withholding Fair value
tax gains Total
AREETTT ARETTT AREET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
R-ZE——F—HF—H At 1 January 2012 17,251 147,930 165,181
FFAZAKRER Credited to the consolidated
income statements - (4,070) (4,070)
R-_T——fF At 31 December 2012
+=-—A=+—H 17,251 143,860 161,111
FFAER A W & Credited to the consolidated
income statements - (4,122) (4,122)
RZE—=%F At 31 December 2013
+=-—A=+—H 17,251 139,738 156,989

BEFMEHRAEEERITEBSBERNR
ERBAEFERBEERBN SERE
EHIBERETAER - NEBW R
—E-—=ZF+-A=+—HAAMNK
HABERMBRAZHEBEBEROAR
#167,989,0007T (ZE——5F : AR
207,529,00070) HERIBEFTISH L E
4N R #41,997,0007T (Z B — — 4 -
AR #51,882,0007T) - DRIELHAR
#37,096,0007T + A K #19,638,000
T - AR #¥13,395,0007T + A R #
7,187,0007T & A & #90,673,0007T
HEEEER - —NFREESAST
JE W °

M—EEREEZERBARLE —F—=FFK

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of approximately RMB41,997,000 (2012: RMB51,882,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB167,989,000 (2012: RMB207,529,000) as at 31
December 2013 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB37,096,000, RMB19,638,000, RMB13,395,000,
RMB7,187,000 and RMB90,673,000 will expire in each of the
five years starting from 2014.
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14 EXEMBH —AEE (&) 14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

15

EEFREHREE ()

AP EE THE QR REAZRF MES
NOBEBNHERNECHSHAaEARA
R¥151,977,000. (ZF—=F : AR
#113,000,0007T) - A&
A=+—H ZSXKEABFNEGEAEA
R #3,039,539,000 L (Z T ——fF : A

R ¥2,259,991,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB151,977,000 (2012:
RMB113,000,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries in PRC amounting to
RMB3,039,5639,000 (2012: RMB2,259,991,000) as at 31
December 2018.

RERESHWEMIAE—ZAE 15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

PN NUNE] - GROUP AND COMPANY
(@) &&H (@) Group
ERHRE THEESHEE @t
Available-
for-sale
Receivables financial assets Total
GREEABRATH Assets as per consolidated
EE balance sheet
WZE—=ZF+-A=1+—H Asat31 December 2013
TRHESRERE Available-for-sale financial assets
(MizE13) (Note 13) - 192,026 192,026
A2 SER (FE17) Trade receivables (Note 17) 548,101 - 548,101
ReREMEKFE Deposits and other receivables
(TRERHR) (excluding prepayments) 473,636 - 473,636
BEARAER(HH19) Pledged bank deposits (Note 19) 5,941 - 5,941
BLRELEBY(M320)  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 1,413,929 - 1,413,929
@t Total 2,441,607 192,026 2,633,633
WZE-—#+-A=F—H Asat31 December 2012
HEHELREE Available-for-sale financial assets
(KizE13) (Note 13) = 586,272 586,272
FENEZER(MaE17) Trade receivables (Note 17) 512,579 = 512,579
ke REMRKIE Deposits and other receivables
(TRERER) (excluding prepayments) 449,932 = 449,932
BEARTER (HE19) Pledged bank deposits (Note 19) 4,664 - 4,664
BERASSEM(M20)  Cashand cash equivalents (Note 20) 2,290,809 = 2,290,809
st Total 3,257,984 586,272 3,844,256
G—EPBEIERERAR —E—=FFFK
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— GROUP AND COMPANY

(@) Group (continued)

e T E—-Z2% 15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

RATEERESR Hit B HE KA
BRzEREE GTENEREE H
Other financial
Liabilities at liabilities
fair value through measured at
the profit & loss amortised cost Total
SABEEERARNERE  Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet
WZE-—=F+-A=Ft—H Asat31 December 2013
ENESEFRERE (F1:23)  Trade and bills payable (Note 23) - 1,409,968 1,409,968
EEAHERENER Other payables and accruals
(TREFERAR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) - 1,792,877 1,792,877
fTEemT A (fi26) Derivative financial instruments (Note 26) 43,274 - 43,274
{58 (M3k25) Borrowings (Note 25) - 6,003,985 6,003,985
A REENSUE (H3E24)  Other long-term payables (Note 24) - 230,971 230,971
&3t Total 43,214 9,437,801 9,481,075
WZZ—-F+-A=+—H Asat31 December 2012
ENEFEFRZEE (W:23)  Trade and bills payable (Note 23) - 1,441,944 1,441,944
A ERTERESER Other payables and accruals
(TeEFeRaR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) - 2,518,612 2,518,612
EAGEY) Borrowings (Note 25) - 3,970,879 3,970,879
EREENFIE(MF24)  Other long-term payables (Note 24) - 197,130 197,130
&5t Total - 8,128,565 8,128,565

- EERERERARIE —F-—=FFK
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- GROUP AND COMPANY

1 —7Z"& 15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

¥iN/NEC | (b) Company
EhZE  UHEESREE @
Available-
for-sale
Receivables financial assets Total
EEEBRATNEE Assets as per balance sheet
R-E-=F+-f=1-H As at 31 December 2013
EHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
(MEE13) (Note 13) - 11,293 11,293
BHTHEBAR Loans to subsidiaries 2,915,052 - 2,915,052
ReRAMENTE Deposits and other receivables 7476 - 7476
Tl BARE Due from subsidiaries 902,370 - 902,370
Be kA& EEN (HiE0) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 94,342 - 94,342
e Total 3,919,240 11,293 3,030,533
WZE--#+-A=+-H  Asat31 December 2012
EHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
(M&E13) (Note 13) = 420,461 420,461
BHTHBAR Loans to subsidiaries 2,051,896 = 2,051,896
ReREMEKHE Deposits and other receivables 4,971 - 4,971
EUHBARAZE Due from subsidiaries 585,200 = 585,200
BeRRLZEM (Wik20) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 96,109 = 96,109
@t Total 2,738,176 420,461 3,158,637
B—EHREIERERAT —FE—=FFIFK
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15 ZEABOWSMIA XK

B RALQT (F)
(b) AT (&)

— GROUP AND COMPANY

(b) Company (continued)

15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

BATERRER At RBER A
ol ke =L TENERER @zt
Other financial
Liabilities at liabilities
fair value through measured at
the profit & loss amortised cost Total
EEABRATNER Liabilities as per balance sheet
RZE-Z#+-A=+—-H  Asat31 December 2013
EtERFEREER Other payables and accruals
(PafreRaR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) - 21,249 21,249
fTESBT A (fi526) Derivative financial instruments (Note 26) 43,274 - 43,274
CAGES) Borrowings (Note 25) - 5,436,974 5,436,974
@t Total 43,214 5,458,223 5,501,497
RZE-Z#+ZA=+-H  Asat31 December 2012
EtERFERE B Other payables and accruals
(PefEFepaR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) - 28,047 28,047
A& (fizk25) Borrowings (Note 25) - 3,750,886 3,750,886
& Total = 3,778,933 3,778,933

- EERERERARIE —F-—=FFK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 INVENTORIES - GROUP

—E—-=F —E—_F

2013 2012

AR T AREF T

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

R # Raw materials 448,327 373,239
EE R Working in progress 81,166 83,378
X & Finished goods 748,373 608,260
2 ¥ i Consumables 235,646 220,063
1,513,512 1,284,940

BRARI WA ABEERA « HMiX
REMFES - FHEITFERANAEAR
#15,644,000,000C (ZE—Z—4F : A
R #14,060,000,0007T) °

REE-_T—=F+-_A=+—A81L
FERMBETEEHETERFEMNS -
REBEBREELD B ARKISE07,000
T(ZE——F - B GFEREBEARE
10,003,0007T) (B 5¥29)  ZEFIEE
STAMBERZIEERA]F -

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
included in cost of sales, other expenses and other gains —
net amounted to approximately RMB15,644 million (2012:
RMB14,060 million).

The Group recognised a loss of approximately RMB9,507,000
(2012: reversal of inventory provision of RMB10,003,000)
(Note 29) for the year ended 31 December 2013, in respect
of the write-down of inventories to their net realisable values.
These amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the
income statement.

FE I B 5 BE 17 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP
—E—-=F —E—-—F
2013 2012
AR T ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
JEWBLE=FTESH Trade receivables from independent
third parties 523,045 508,693
ORI E R Less: provision for impairment (7,115) (6,346)
JEWBYE=FEFER Trade receivables from independent
FE third parties, net 515,930 502,347
e EEESE 52 SRR Trade receivables from related parties
(PF 5E39(b)) (Note 39(b)) 32,171 10,232
JEWE BRI - FE Trade receivables, net 548,101 512,579

TEREZERERAT —E—=FFH
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17 BEREZERR-F5KE (F)

AEEBRERTEP60REIORZEH
H(ZZT—Z-F :60KE0K) - EWE

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
usually 60 to 90 days (2012: 60 to 90 days). The ageing

SEROBEE>TMT : analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
—E—-=F T
2013 2012
ARBTR AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

JEUWE SR - B85 Trade receivables, gross

—90RAR — Within 90 days 518,024 489,653
—91E180K — 91 to 180 days 35,832 27,755
—181£365K — 181 to 365 days 554 1,250
——FE — Over one year 806 267
555,216 518,925

AEBEREZRAREEATNINE
HEHE -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

—E—-=F T
2013 2012
AREBT AREEF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

JEUWE SR - B85 Trade receivables, gross
—AR¥ - RMB 547,641 512,190
—X7T - UsD 5,206 5,437
—BT - HKD 2,369 1,298
555,216 518,925

REER  BUESRAETIEELR
FERE -

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

M—EEREEZERBARLE —F—=FFK
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17 BEREZRF—AEE (& 17 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP

RZZE—-—=%F+-_A=+—80"%
A R #97,600,0007T (= & — — 4 :
A R #73,500,0007T) 2 EW B 5
RERE BEERESEHNAEAR
7 100,000 (ZE—Z—F: AR¥
6,300,0007T) ° JB{E & 5t ¥ (@ BI & K5k
RHBH 2 BB E - R T REEA
RIEEBRER MOBE R RNERERE TS
hWEREFAERUGEHERRES - tE
JEMBR M EBRER DT T

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of approximately
RMB97.6 million (2012: RMB73.5 million) were impaired and
the amount of the provision for impairment was approximately
RMB7.1 million (2012: RMB6.3 million). The impairment is
firstly assessed individually for individual significant or long
ageing balances, and the remaining balances are grouped for
collective assessment according to their ageing and historical
default rates as these customers are of similar credit risk
characteristics. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

—E—-=F T F
2013 2012
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

JEWE FRR - % Trade receivables, gross
—90K A — Within 90 days 60,402 44,262
—91E 180K - 91 to 180 days 35,832 27,755
—181% 365K - 181 to 365 days 554 1,250
——FUE — Over one year 806 267
97,594 73,534

AEBRKERZ [THRAS | P ERE
WE SRR RERE - RERGBZE
EyR N

The Group recognises provision for impairment of trade
receivables in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income
statements. The movements in provision for impairment are
as follows:

—E—-= —ET——fF

2013 2012

AR®T T ARBTIT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

n—H—H At 1 January 6,346 9,115

H 88 S B] I B 2 U AR R Receivables written off as uncollectible (23) =
FEW B 5 RFORERE, Provision for/(reverse of) impairment

(B ERE) (FFEE29) of trade receivables (Note 29) 792 (2,769)

R+-—A=+—8 At 31 December 7,115 6,346

m—EEREERARLAR —FE—=FFK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables as
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY

KE PN
Group Company
—B—-=ZF —ZT——fF —E—=F —T—_—fF
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARBTR AR®TT AR®TR ARETRE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

REZEREZE  Guarantee deposits for

purchases
BTG ER & Prepaid value added tax
HAabFi18 and other taxes
U BB 5 I8 Amounts due from related
(Bt 3E39(b)) parties (Note 39(b))

BB —FER T Prepayments — advance
IR 2 IR payments to suppliers

HMIBMNFZIAR  Other prepayments and
JE W R IR receivables

8 JEBNEAEES  Less: non-current portion
B AR E8 5 Current portion
KEZERZESERNTELNIEIGE
Rize  UREBER-_ZE—ZTF+— A3
SN RETEILIEEE DY -

ERECEREBEREZHERARN_-F
—HEEE -

REER e REMRERKARE
FEEENFEESE

M—EEREEZERBARLE —F—=FFK

338,685 338,685 - =
516,758 299,721 - =
31,388 9,073 - -
18,664 60,440 - =
131,231 136,760 18,103 15,278
1,036,726 844,679 18,103 15,278
(10,627) (20,418) (10,627) (10,307)
1,026,099 824,261 7,476 4,971

The guarantee deposits for purchases represent deposits
paid to Wondersun Diary to secure the purchases of the
milk powder produced by Wondersun Diary pursuant to an
agreement entered into in November 2010. The guarantee
deposits are repayable during 2014 according to a pre-
determined timetable.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013
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19

20

EERBRTER-—FKEE

RZE—=ZFR_F——F+=A
=t HzBRERBETEREAREERD
EIHIEABTERERZER ZERDIRE
TR -

BeRESEEY - FEEK
AN

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS - GROUP

The pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2013 and
2012 represented deposits at banks pledged as security for
the issue of letter of credit facilities and bills of the Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP
AND COMPANY

Group Company
KEE KA FE
—E-=F —T—_—_F =ZB-Z=Z=F Z—ZT—_F
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR¥ETR ARE®FTnT AR¥TR ARBT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRER{T N FE Cash at bank and on hand
ZRE 1,392,938 2,148,415 94,342 96,109
5 ERIRITIF &K Short-term bank deposits 20,991 142,394 - -
1,413,929 2,290,809 94,342 96,109

W_ZE—=F+—"A=+—H &A&£H
BHRTERNERIEESFRES
0.84% (ZF——F : 1.04%) - 257
FEHEHHRA=HEANRN  BrJEERIE
B NERS e

R-_E—=F+_A=+—"H Bk
BEEBEYANMTEREE -

As at 31 December 2013, the effective weighted average rate
of the short-term bank deposits of the Group was 0.84%
(2012: 1.04%) per annum. These deposits have an average
maturity within three months but could be withdrawn anytime
without restriction.

As at 31 December 2013, cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
rEE KAF

—B—-=F E——-F ZE-—-=F Z=ZE—-—%
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBT ARETT AR®TRT ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
— AR - RMB 1,157,889 2,111,927 4 93,251
—3ETT - USD 249,294 172,113 94,120 2,328
— AT - HKD 2,372 2,778 218 530
—HAth - Others 4,374 3,991 - =
1,413,929 2,290,809 94,342 96,109

ARBEERNYIFABBE TS B @i
B - AR BEINE 2 H 0 Kb BRI
ARBEFRBX T BEMERMGZINEE
) 48 A1) K2 48 B il 4

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are
subject to the rules and regulations of exchange controls
promulgated by the PRC authorities.

m—EEREERARLAR —FE—=FFK
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(a) BRAERRGEER

(a) Share capital and share premium account

EE
Authorised
EERHA &N B A&
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares  Share capital equivalent to

TR ARBTR

HKD’ 000 RMB’000
wW-Z——%—fF—H At 1 January 2012 till
E-T-=F 31 December 2013
TZA=+—8H 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
EETRER
Issued and fully paid
R #EE R BEME ROZEE At
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent account Total
TEr AR%TRT AR%TR AR¥Tn
HKD’000 to RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
R-E——#—H—8 At 1 January 2012 il
2T -=F 31 December 2013
+-A=+-H

AEEEBRZEERERONEBIT (=
T—_F:0018T) °

(b) MERETE

KA RABRBE-_ZZT+tF+—H
T ZHZEERERRMBBR ERE
T8I ([5ZET81)) o WREEZET 8 TE1T
Z B B E 158 18352,681,000/%
BARRR-_ZEZTLF+=-A+tH
(BIARAERODIRBEZFT ETME R) e
TR EELI10% - ZEFEBE TR
BhiEry —REBENEEABESAF
TEiBiE20% - BB AR RBRTE
BHBREARETNSEIOR—FERTE
BE+F  ZArEBFEEREE-T
*t¢+_ﬂ+AE°

BEEZT—=F+ZA=+—0 HE
BB R IR AT B -

3,599,445,000 35,994 34,047 2,243,980 2,278,027

The par value of each authorized ordinary shares is HKDO.01
(2012: HKDO0.01) per share.

(b) Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution passed on 23
November 2007. The total number of shares which may be
issued under the Scheme must not exceed 352,681,000
shares, representing approximately 10% of the total number
of shares issued by the Company as at 17 December 2007
(ie. the listing Date of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange). The general vesting period for the options granted
under the Scheme is limited to 20% at each anniversary of
grant date and should be a period to commence not less than
one year and not to exceed 10 years from the date of the
grate of the option. The Scheme will remain in force until 16
December 2017.

Up to 31 December 2013, no share options have been
granted under the Scheme.
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22 Hit@EE —AEBERADQT 22 OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND

COMPANY

REME Group
EXfifE  ODTERE EERRE BEEA &5t
Capital Fair value Statutory Retained
reserves reserves reserves earnings Total
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%T:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
R-E--f& Balance at 1 January 2012 1,817,531 163,445 512,648 2,039,244 4,532,868
-RA—-Rz&tH
FREM Profit for the year - - - 855,888 855,888
RUEAMHREE Transfer of fair value gains
SREERK previously taken to reserve to
SR ARG income statement upon disposal
AFEFBEEE  of available-for-sale financial
W (ffE13) assets (Note 13) - (14,039) - = (14,039)
AEHESBMEE  Fair value gains on available-
ZRTENEG for-sale financial assets
— 2% (f:E13) - gross (Note 13) - 96,998 - - 96,998
—HE (MEE14) - tax (Note 14) - 1,983 - - 1,983
AEEESHEE  Transfer of fair value loss
MEBELAEA  previously taken to reserve
FEZATFEBE  toincome statement upon
BEZWGR impairment of available-for-sale
-BiEE financial assets, net of tax
— 8% (fi3k29) - gross (Note 29) = 16,786 = = 16,786
— BB (MsE14) — tax (Note 14) - (3,861) - - (3,861)
BRELERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 94,995 (94,995) -
YNZZE——%2  Dividends relating to 2011, paid
ke (93,582) - - - (93,582)
R=Z—-=f+=H Balance at 31 December 2012
St-Hzis 1,723,949 261,312 607,643 2,800,137 5,393,041
FERH Profit for the year - - - 916,412 916,412
RHEMfEE Transfer of fair value gains
TRHEERS previously taken to reserve to
R ARG income statement upon
AFEFBEEE  disposal of avallable-for-sale
Wk (EE13) financial assets (Note 13) - (284,827) - - (284,827)
At HESBEE  Fair value gains on available-for-sale
ZDTERE financial assets
— &% (fFE13) - gross (Note 13) - 14,014 - - 14,014
—HiIB (Fi5E14) ~ tax (Note 14) - (3,309) - - (3,309)
BABRETERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 137,867 (137,867) -
YHZF—=F2  Dividends relating to 2012, paid
BE (171,190) - - - (171,190)
R=-Z-=%1+=H Balance at 31 December 2013
=t+-Hz&H% 1,552,759 (12,810) 745510 3,578,682 5,864,141
HG—EPEERERAR —E—=FFH
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(&) COMPANY (CONTINUED)
b NN Company
BABH DY ERE BREMN &t
Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
R-B-ZF Balance at 1 January 2012 2,054,310 174,065 51,434 2,279,809
-B-Rz#&e
ERRT Profit for the year - - 2,430 2,430
REETHEESR Transfer of fair value gain previously
RERBEAGA taken to reserve to income statement
FE2ATENS upon disposal of available-for-sale
EEEWHER (513)  financial assets (Note 13) = (14,039) = (14,039)
HLEeREEL Fair value gains on available-for-sale
NFEFE (H5T13) financial assets (Note 13) - 106,155 - 106,155
SR-FE——F7KE  Diidends relating to 2011, paid (93,582) = = (93,582)
RZB-Zf Balance at 31 December 2012 1,960,728 266,181 53,864 2,280,773
+ZA=t+-Az&8
E3yil Profit for the year - - 136,160 136,160
REETHHESR Transfer of fair value gain previously
BERBEAGA taken to reserve to income statement
BEZLTENSE upon disposal of avallable-for-sale
BEEWER (M513)  financial assets (Note 13) - (284,827) - (284,827)
HEECREEY Fair value gains on available-for-sale
DA (ME13) financial assets (Note 13) - (908) - (908)
FIHZFE-=FZKE  Diidends relating to 2012, paid (171,190) - - (171,190)
R-B-=F Balance at 31 December 2013
TZAZ+-Rz&H 1,789,538 (19,554) 190,024 1,960,008

(a) #HARER

(@)

RRAHNBABBTEREARF
By EmZ A ARAERETAE A
RESR LM 2BRHZTE RMARK
FZDIRMAERFR -

HERHASHEEREEN  ZFH
ABERA DR T AR B R SR

BA-

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013

Contribution surplus

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the

reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of Cayman Island,
such contribution surplus is distributable to the equity
holders of the Company.
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20 HihE-—AEBRAAT 22 OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND

(#&)

(b)

(c)

AFERE

AEEAFEFEEERAIHKLE
TREEAFEES CHE -

EERE

REBDA R EA R 2R P B M
AR - EHESRA AENED
BC ATt & B #90X T B 75 3% P HR
By FME (EEE T LNEFER
RETBRR) FRE—EREER
- FTEAERBIIFLEE B &Yl

3k -

ERINBBELENMANELEE
MARZNPERBAR - EETE
FERBREN DR - AREE
wANFRRZ10%BIEEERBR AR
> BAEEBRANBEEIRRZ
M ERE0%A - - BB RE#E—
BRI HEBEFEZH
fBHE - WERT R AR —E L HIH
B 50 18 8 AU BN T AR A & 2R B
EeREERESR - (FRFIEGE
RECEFIMRINTEMER
Al BREEEFTECRERE AN
# & BOATE BR 1R A B — E L
B B BEACEE R -

AEBBABEERERNBHE A
AIMER - IMAARMEERLE N
BMARER -

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b)

()

Fair value reserves

Fair value reserves of the Group comprise of changes in
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years, before profit distributions to equity holder.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as Sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.

m—EEREERARLAR —FE—=FFK
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23 BENESEREMREE —4&4%E 23 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES - GROUP
—BE-=F —E——F
2013 2012
ARE T ARETF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

R E 5 R Trade payables

—BNE=F - to independent third parties 1,240,400 1,202,767
— a5 (M 3E39(b)) — to related parties (Note 39(b)) 169,568 239,177
1,409,968 1,441,944

HEARTAKEZEAHAST R0

The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually

KEASK - [ERN B SBERZEREDSN 30 to 45 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as

wmr follows:
—E—-=F T
2013 2012
ARBTR AR®TE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

R E SR Trade payables

— 180K AR - Within 180 days 1,392,232 1,423,589
—181%E365K - 181 to 365 days 11,720 10,275
——FE — Over 1 year 6,016 8,080
1,409,968 1,441,944

RO EMNEZERERBEAARES
B REZEHENEEBEEAFE
HE

o - EERERERARIE —F-—=FFK

Majority of the trade and bills payables are denominated in
RMB. Their carrying amounts approximate their fair values as
at the balance sheet dates.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013
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HiENAFERESTEHR -2 24 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS -

EEEAA GROUP AND COMPANY
Group Company
A AR
—E-=F - =Z—B-=F —ET=—=—%
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARBTR ARBTIT AR®TR ARBETE
RMB’000 RMB’'000  RMB’000 RMB’ 000

P TEMHK Advance receipts from
customers 711,716 476,861 - -
HERREP Deposits from suppliers
X E® and customers 417,721 355,240 - =
1248 M B 5B Accruals for promotion and
K IEETE advertising expenses 711,094 1,030,731 - =
HKERE Payables for purchase of
JE < R equipment 390,262 552,429 12,987 24,710
JEt T& M4@F| Salary and welfare payables 368,928 333,040 2,045 1,655
HAMfEMFIE  Other payables and
REHER accruals 545,954 444,386 8,262 1,682
3,145,675 3,192,687 23,294 28,047
0 JEBNEAELS  Less: non-current portion (230,971) (197,130) - =
BVER&F 5 Current portion 2,914,704 2,995,557 23,294 28,047
5/\ T8 H - HMENE IE&J‘E*JrEmz The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
HEREAFEMRSE approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

TEFEZERERAR —E—=FFHK
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Group Company
KEE PN
—E-=F —2——-F ZZEB-=fFf Z—ZE£——-F
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREBTRT ARETT ARETR AREBTX
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FEH Non-current
IRITEE - EIKIW  Bank borrowings,
(Ft7E(@@) unsecured (Note (a) 4,101,644 3,562,321 4,101,644 3,562,321
RITEE & Notes payable (Note (
R (T 5E (b)) 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 =
st Total 5,101,644 3,562,321 5,101,644 3,562,321
8 Current
WHISRITIEE Short-term bank
— K 3R borrowings unsecured 902,341 408,558 335,330 188,565
BB Total borrowings 6,003,985 3,970,879 5,436,974 3,750,886

(@)

RZE—=F+=-A=+—HHK
EBEBIERDERTEEARE
4,101,644,000 (=T — = F :
A R #3,562,321,0007T) A & 1R
BAAREBELZEES
ExmiEmnz ((MEHE]) X
HL #9430,000,000% 7T (A9 &£ R
AR #2,621,667,0007T) & AR
#955,000,000 T ER1TE K ° 1R
EmEwas ARRIEKMNIE
% %8 % 5l #250,000,000% 7T *
170,000,0003 JT * 200,000,000
%7t & AR #1,000,000,0007T &9
TFHERRE ARFEER
B AEBEBEVSMERERME
BEET-_A=ZT—HANEELE
HE£ERERLT @A  #Hi§
BEDEAERDRITEER -

The non-current bank borrowings, unsecured as at
31 December 2013 of RMB4,101,644,000 (2012:
RMB3,562,321,000) included bank loans amounting
to USD430,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,621,667,000) and RMB955,000,000 that
were drawn down under several joint loans facility
agreements (“Facility Agreements”) entered into by
the Company and a syndicate of banks. Pursuant to
the Facility Agreements, the Company was granted
four five-years term loan facilities amounting to
USD250,000,000, USD170,000,000, USD200,000,000
and RMB1,000,000,000. The directors of the
Company are of the view that the Group has the
intention and discretion to roll over the borrowings as
at 31 December for at least twelve months after the
balance sheet date under the Facility Agreements and
accordingly classified the borrowings as non-current
bank borrowings.



b) RZTE—=F+-_A=+—HZ (o) The notes payable as at 31 December 2013

ENEREEER - —FA represented notes which will be fully repayable on 6
NEEEEEZEE - ZEN_-F June 2016. The notes were issued on 6 June 2013,
—ZFRNANBET AEBAR with a principle amount of RMB1 billion, and bore
AR - REENETEI.5% interest at a fixed rate of 3.5% per annum.
A e
REBRARREEZERBEWT - The Group’s and the Company’s borrowings were repayable
as follows:
Group Company
rEH KAT
—E—= —F——4F ZE-—= —EF—_F
2013 2012 2013 2012

AR®TR ARBTET AR®TR ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’ 000

—F AR Less than 1 year 902,341 408,558 335,330 188,565
—EMF Between 1 and 2 years 942,231 - 942,231 -
WERF Between 2 and 5 years 4,159,413 3,562,321 4,159,413 3,562,321
fEEERE Total borrowings 6,003,985 3,970,879 5,436,974 3,750,886
REER  EEZEEESRE QN FER The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximated their
2 fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
REBERAAGR 2 EEREEIZ TIE The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
®EETHE borrowings were denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
K& AT
—B-=F —E——-—F ZZE-=H —ZET——%
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARBTR ARBTIT AR®TR ARBETET
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000  RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR RMB 2,268,340 920,806 2,268,340 920,806
=Y usSD 3,735,645 3,050,073 3,168,634 2,829,989

6,003,985 3,970,879 5,436,974 3,750,795
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25 BE-AXEBRADQT (EF) 25 BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

SEERHZCEBRMEESF X EH T The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
N balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
Group Company
rE AT
—EB-=F —T—_—_F =ZB-=Ff —IT—_F
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARBTR AR®TIT AR®TR ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’ 000

RITEE - Bank borrowings,
i unsecured
— AR - RMB 3.57% 4.84% 3.57% 4.65%
—%7T - UsD 1.24% 1.40% 1.23% 1.22%
B EE Notes payable
—AR¥ - RMB 3.50% - 3.50% -
NEBEKANREAR N RIZRZETT The Group and Company have the following undrawn bank
BEEREE - borrowing facilities:
Group Company
rEE AT
—EB-=F ZE—_—_F =ZEB-=Ff Z—ZE—_F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBTRT ARBTT AR®BTR AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
RIZE)F X At floating rate:
—F AN H — Expiring within
one year 4,640,087 5,605,894 2,405,410 1,716,262
—F LA ERER — Expiring beyond
one year 1,350,263 80,000 1,233,263 80,000

5,990,350 5,685,894 3,638,673 1,796,262

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
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26 ITHEERMITE-—ZXXEERKEZA 26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -
NI

Gl GROUP AND COMPANY
Group Company
rEH KAFE
—E-=F - =Z—B-=F —ET=—=—%
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARBTR ARBTIT AR®TR ARBETE
RMB’000 RMB’'000  RMB’000 RMB’ 000

affE: Liabilities:
— iR HASINE - Forward foreign

=X exchange contracts 43,274 = 43,274 =
FR - RARARFIVEIHINESD - BIE During the year, the Company entered into forward exchange
HATETR WESHEAEHEES contracts which were non-hedging derivatives and were
afFE- classified as current assets or liabilities.
N-_E—=F+_"A=+—H"'®&* The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
Rz EHIINESNZRELRATEES foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2013 were
477,000,0003 7T © £ [ E fib 71§ —F USD477,000,000 and an unrealised loss of RMB43,274,000
2 (aE27) P RERUABRBRAAR was recognised in “other gains—net” (Note 27).

#43,274,0007T °

—EPEZERERAR —E—=FFK
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HMRE—F8E

27 OTHER GAINS - NET

—E—=F —E—=F
2013 2012
ARBT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
T B (Bt 3E) Government grants (Note) 236,064 96,723
HEMNHREESREENS Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
(F5E13) financial assets (Note 13) 284,827 14,039
ERAFEERERTEREY Derivative financial instruments fair
TTESBIT A value through profit or loss
—REREE (M5E26) — Unrealised losses (Note 26) (43,274) =
HEWME - HEKEE Gains/(losses) on disposal of property,
B (EE)  FE plant and equipment, net
(P 5E39(a) i) (Note 39(a)(ii)) 190,403 (5,475)
Hit Others 1,397 13,377
669,417 118,664
BI3E - Note:

B0 #8 Bh YR A 5 P 4 B e o B % 3 05 BT
BEHE SR - (FRRKENE AT
HEMELREEREREDEMAODE -
HEBTHEBE B REM S RRAE

The income from government grants represented immediate financial
support subsidy received from various local governments in the PRC
as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their contributions to the
economy and development of the regions in which the subsidiaries

BEE  MERGE NERERBKA - are located. Such government grants were unconditional and with no
future commitment to be fulfilled. Accordingly, they were recognised
as income in the consolidated income statements.

Hug A 28 OTHER INCOME

—E—-=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥ TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

84 & R MK Sales of raw materials 110,359 105,822

G N Subsidy income 81,455 40,394

HEWME  BE X Rental income from lease of property,

BREBARKBEMEZ plant and equipment and
HalA investment properties 57,671 45,261
7B A AR (M 5E39(a)) Consultation service income (Note 39(a)) 23,041 4,011
AfEESREEL Dividend income from available-for-sale
% B A financial assets 5,684 7,509
HAth Others 1,421 11,234
279,631 214,231

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
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29 ERFME

BERNEEKRE HELTSHERER
X THRAXMEMHEXZER DT

29 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, seling and marketing
expenses, administrative expenses and other expense are

mno analysed as follows:
—E—-=F —T—_F
2013 2012
AR®T AREBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FrAREREME - BEME - Raw materials, packaging materials,
SFEmMAEENE D consumables and purchased
commodity used 13,710,213 12,243,362
K17 & # ) Changes in inventories of finished
goods (193,089) 1,422
INEEERT Manufacturing outsourcing expenses 193,739 184,914
RERESEER Promotion and advertising expenses 2,872,955 2,790,366
BIRMNAY  BREZEEFHM Employee benefit expenses, including
(F+5E30) directors’ emoluments (Note 30) 3,029,623 2,508,129
E®BA Transportation expenses 1,085,568 980,069
- Hb {5 AR 8 (T EE6) Amortisation of land use right (Note 6) 40,178 32,605
M- BERERHEITE Depreciation of property, plant and
(FF5E7) equipment (Note 7) 1,051,457 761,713
wEYERE (M:E8) Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 8) 6,714 5,301
| EEEHE () Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 9) 5,480 3,403
EFEeEdE Operating lease in respect of buildings 198,955 171,663
PR MEBR City construction tax, property tax
Hiii%E R and other tax surcharges 239,669 212,517
BEME - BERZE Reversal of provision for impairment of
RAEREE (T property, plant and equipment
(Note 7) 27) (307)
ERE SRR ZRERE Provision/(reversal of) for impairment
(BERE) (HaE17) of trade receivables (Note 17) 792 (2,769)
A ESHEEY Provision for impairment of an
RAE R (F5E22) available-for-sale financial asset
(Note 22) - 16,786
WEFTEE 2R FEREE Write-down/(reversal of provision)
(BBEEE) (Fik16) of inventories to net realisable
value (Note 16) 9,507 (10,003)
= SR B & Auditors’ remunerations 7,054 7,018
Hth Others 1,086,824 955,912
4t Total 23,345,612 20,857,101

B—EPBEERERAR —E—=FFH
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30 ETENEX B EEE#HM 30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

—E—-=fF —E——4F

2013 2012

AR¥ TR ARETF T

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

TERFS Wages and salaries 2,405,286 2,006,059
BRe RHMTE2EF Pension and other social welfare

(E#BE M RETED (defined contribution plan) 349,137 250,399

BETIEERERER Staff quarters and housing benefit 92,424 69,513

H fto %28 F Other benefits 182,776 177,158

3,029,623 2,503,129

(a) ESHMH

REBE_ZE—=FR-_FT——F+_A
Z+—HLEFE  ARAZSEZBZHE

(a) Directors’ emoluments

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
the remuneration of directors of the Company is as

N follows:
EEps ik FEREA ERH ot
Salary and Travelling
Name of Director Fees Fees Bonuses Total
AR®ETTR AR®T R AR®T ARETR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
—E-=F 2013
HITES Executive directors
BELLHE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (% % %) 49 2,282 3 2,334
RERERE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (Z£ &) 43 3,157 3 3,203
R B2 5 A Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (# B %)
(P 3E (@) (Note (a)) 14 919 2 935
EHITER Non-executive directors
REBRLE Mr. Kao Chin-Yen (55 &)

(P &E (o)) (Note (b)) 48 - - 48
MEELE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng (#1& 4) 67 - 2 69
Mg R K& Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (7 %) 80 - 2 82
BREEE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (& = #) 37 - - 37

BYUIEHTTEZE  Independent Non-executive
directors
REELE Mr. Chen Sun-Te (FR21Z) 219 - - 219
BLELE Mr. Fan Ren-Da (21 #) 219 - - 219
BERTE Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (1 % &) 183 - - 183
REELHE Mr. Peter Lo (5 2) 219 - - 219
1,178 6,358 12 7,548

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
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30 ETEAMNBEX  BFEEEFHB 30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,

(i

n

() ES=HM(E)

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

ESng e HeRiti EMRRA @
Salary and Travelling
Name of Director Fees bonuses allowance Total
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-CF 2012
HITES Executive directors
EEREE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (% %) 50 1,896 6 1,952
FRELE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (& &) 44 2,796 6 2,846
EHWITER Non-executive directors
REBRELE Mr. Kao Chin-Yen (%5 ) 82 = = 82
WEERE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng (#1& 4) 69 - 6 75
MERLE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (/& %) 83 - 6 89
HRMEE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (& 5= 84) 38 - - 38
BIAEHT Independent Non-executive
EE directors
BREELEE Mr. Chen Sun-Te (B 22 /) 226 = = 226
BLELE Mr. Fan Ren-Da (£ 1= ) 226 = = 226
BRERRLE Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (15 5 &) 189 = = 189
BRERE Mr. Peter Lo (%5 2) 226 - - 226
1,233 4,692 24 5,949
BfsE - Note:
(@ WR-ZE—=FENA+HEZXRT- (@  Appointed on 10 August 2013.
b) R-E—=FNA+HET- (o)  Resigned on 10 August 2013.

FRAYTEEEREZHBERNXA
ERELAME -

VTEREERZERBFERTE

SHRRIFH M -

year.

their appointments or resignation.

—EPEZERERAR —E—=FFK
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There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

There were no special emoluments to the directors for

173
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30 ETEMNBEX  BFEEEFHM 30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(48

(b)

174

hEBREHMAL

BE-ZT-—=-%t+=-A=+—H
LtFEEZAESBRERSTMA
ITEEME(ZZE—-F WH)
B HFEMERLXFR2525
R - REREX T HSBR=

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
included two (2012:two) directors, whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2012:

F(ZE—ZF ZR)BRaHMH

ATz HMEIImT

three) individuals during the year are as follows:

—_EB—=%f —ET——-F
2013 2012
EAXF S - EEEM Basic salaries, housing allowances,
Hib 2o REYH = other allowances and benefits
(AR®EFT) in kind (RMB’ 000) 3,794 5,466
FE In the band of;
T Z1,000,0005 7T (FE Nil to HKD1,000,000 (equivalent to
NEZE AR786,2007T) Nil to RMB786,200) - =
1,000,001 T E HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7T (equivalent to RMB786,200 to
(FEE R ARE786,2000t RMB1,572,400)
= AR®1,572,4007T) 3 1
2,000,001 T E HKD2,000,001 to HKD3,000,000
3,000,000 7t (#8 & (equivalent to RMB1,572,400 to
RAR®A,572,400 RMB2,358,600)
AR #2 358,6007T) - 2

BG—EFEZERERAR —E—=FFK
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31

32

MEWA - FH

31 FINANCE INCOME - NET

—EBE—-=F —E—F
2013 2012
AR T ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BERA-BERBREEED Finance income — interest income
Z A BHA on cash and cash equivalents 76,504 102,710
PE 5 W e F 58 Net foreign exchange gains 102,617 13,991
179,121 116,701
RITEEZFERX Interest expenses on bank borrowings (93,610) (63,280)
B EEREEZENMEERE Less: amounts capitalized on
qualifying assets 9,665 10,403
(83,945) (52,877)
BMEMA—FHE Finance income — net 95,176 63,824
FRiEM B X 32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
—E—=5F —E——F
2013 2012
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
EHMED Current income tax
—BEFERHEBRIE — Current tax on profit for the year 225,715 243,580
EEFTE R (HsE14) Deferred income tax (Note 14) (26,079) (22,539)
199,636 221,041

B—eEPEERERAR —E—=FFHK
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32 FEHmx (&)

176

(@)

B RBEREMREHRAX

£ R B K BE 5 1l B S A BT /B 2 A
TBIR25% (ZTE— —4F : 25%) BM
EMER -

RIEEEES - AR BN GHEEE
MM B F[2011] 5858 [ B IEA
& 5t 70 50 K 5 B B RS A B U
REBERBA] - NSRS
WHFPRBRNFACEEBAA T
RO TLEHEAZARBEE=ZSR
15% BB E o ANEEIH K
=R/ b iR Kt 3 o VA =)
PR TEER - hEEER Ll
15%BEFE o

HAtb Fr it

ARARREBEASEE R ANAERH
SREAMNLREREERA
Al Eit - NRRER RN
HEMEH -

FEE2REEFMEIHOMNE R
RIAREHMRITRED B B17%
F16.5% (ZE——F :17% K%
16.5%) BN FT1S T -

32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(a)

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013

Mainland China enterprise income tax (“EIT”)

Subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject
to EIT at rate of 25% during the year (2012: 25%).

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice on
the tax policies of further implementation of the western
region development strategy issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs” (34 %%[2011]585% %
TR E e P B A A 3 B 75 B 15 B SR R B 3@ 40 ),
companies set up in the western region and falling into
certain encouraged industry catalogue promulgated by
the PRC government will be entitled to a preferential tax
rate of 15%. Some of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC set up in the western development region and fall
into the encouraged industry catalogue are entitled to
the above said preferential tax rate of 15% during the
year.

Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan and Hong Kong are
subject to income tax at the prevailing rates of 17% and
16.5% (2012: 17% and 16.5%) respectively.
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32 FiEHAx (&)

7R 55 8 B P 15 0 A1 g ) B2 42 op B AR
REtBEEHEREN 20X TR E25%
(ZF——F:25%) it B2 ERRIEAE
2T

32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2012: 25%) applicable
to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

—E—=F —T——F

2013 2012
AR% T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B BT 15 5% B4 A Profit before income tax 1,116,048 1,076,929
ERBUAEBMERFE A Tax calculated at the statutory tax
rate in the PRC 279,012 269,232
THEBE MG E Tax effects of:
BRETHWE AR RN Preferential tax rates on the profits of
BEBE certain subsidiaries (31,181) (24,135)
FRAAARERZBIEEE Utilisation of previously unrecognized
tax losses (16,467) (10,987)
RERBELEHBEE Y Tax losses for which no deferred tax
A E1E asset was recognized 22,668 17,850
RN Income not subject to tax (56,144) (32,897)
Ik Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 1,748 1,978
FriS%iF 2 Income tax expense 199,636 221,041

B—EPBEERERAR —E—=FFH
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32 3B (&) 32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
EEMmE2EWR» 2 HMELX L The tax charge relating to components of other
O comprehensive income is as follows:

—E-cF —E--f
2013 2012
BB HEXH BE# IR REX BBk
Before tax ~ Tax charge After tax Before tax Tax charge After tax

ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HETEEESH  Transfer of fair value gain,
BEBELMEA  netof tax, previously taken to
B2 ATEFS  reserve to income statement

(BEFH) upon disposal of available-for-sale

ERTYRE financial assets (284,827) - (284,827) (14,039) = (14,039)
MELESHEE  Net far value gains from

ATEEFE avallable-for-sale financial assets 14,014 (3,309) 10,705 96,998 1983 98,981
RAfEESR  Transfer of far value loss previously

EERERSLA  taken to reserve to income

STABEZATE  statement upon impaiment of

BEREBZNER  available-for-sale financial assets - - - 16,786 (3.861) 12,925
A2 ENE Other comprehensive income (270,813) (3,309) (274,122) 99,745 (1878) 97,867
EFTEH (K3H14) Deferred income tax (Note 14) (3,309) (1878)

33 A TEZFEEAEMNLER 33 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

HARQRRMBHREROAANTESHA The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
A B R R B # A R %136,160,0007T dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
(ZZ——F : AR®2,430,0007t) (Mt extent of a profit of approximately RMB136,160,000 (2012:
$02) o RMB2,430,000) (Note 22).

BG—EFEZERERAR —E—=FFK
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34 BREMNER
=

N

BEREABMNDEFEARREEFA
ARIESEMER D BT ERRINETFHH

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted

ATHE o average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
—E—-=F —EF——F
2013 2012
AR ERFTB A& Profit attributable to equity holders of
(AR¥TT) the Company (RMB’ 000) 916,412 855,888
BBITEEARMET HE Weighted average number of
(Fi) ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 3,599,445 3,599,445
BREARRBTF Basic earnings per share
(B ARBE) (RMB per share) 25.46 cents 23.78 cents

E2DiAZNYNICTIN R D
s BN E TR ERNART

i

)

E
— B

35 KB

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.

35 DIVIDENDS

—EBE—-=F —E—F
2013 2012
AR®ET ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BEIRNRER BT Proposed final dividend of
LB A RES5.0925 RMB5.092 cents (2012: RMB4.756)
——F: AR¥4.756%) per ordinary share 183,282 171,178

RZE—ZFR_T—_F KAQF
BIRHIE B D Rl A A RE171,190,000
T (BERAR®KAI756) M AR

93,582,0007T (B AR ¥2.6005) °

HE_Z—=F+_A=t+—HIEE
ZHREERARKS.0020 (KtABAR
#183,282,0007T) M =ZE—ME R A
FTAREROZBRRBFRS LIRE o it
EUBHMERABRIBILEERGRE ©

The dividends paid by the Company in 2013 and 2012
amounted to RMB171,190,000 (RMB4.756 cents per
share) and RMB93,582,000 (RMB2.600 cents per share)
respectively.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013
of RMB5.092 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of RMB183,282,000, is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting to be held on 16 May 2014. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

—EPRIERBRAT —E-—=ZFFH
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36 EEELEHES 36 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
—B-=F —T-CF
2013 2012
ARET R ARBT T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
B P15 %54 A 4 A1) Profit before income tax 1,116,048 1,076,929
BNYISIEEL 2 A Adjustments for:
—EREARZ — Share of profit of investment
A4 1% & 4 7 accounted for using equity
method (88,445) (131,588)
—HEAHREESR — Gains on disposal of
BERME (K#E27) available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 27) (284,827) (14,039)
— -3 b R 85 (Pt 3Ee) — Amortisation of land use right
(Note 6) 40,178 32,605
- BERLETE - Depreciation of property,
(BI&E7) plant and equipment (Note 7) 1,051,457 761,713
—REWERE (W:E8) - Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 8) 6,714 5,301
—EREE#E (H:39) - Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 9) 5,480 3,403
—HEWE  BFEREHEL — (Gains)/losses on disposal of property,
(FI15) /B518 (FTaF27) plant and equipment (Note 27) (190,403) 5,475
—BEME  BKERBERE - Reversal of provision for impairment
BERD (7 of property, plant and equipment
(Note 7) 27) (307)
~-GFEMRENEEFE/ — Write-down/(reversal) of inventories
(OB B ) (M EE16) to net realisable value (Note 16) 9,507 (10,008)
—EWE SR RERE — Provision/(reversal) for impairment
(B fsRem) (MsE17) of trade receivables (Note 17) 792 (2,769)
—AHEESREE — Provision for impairment of
R (H3E29) available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 29) - 16,786
—F B (fIFE31) - Interest expenses (Note 31) 83,945 52,877
— & 5 g (B 3E31) - Foreign exchange gains (Note 31) (102,617) (13,991)
—TESMTARAFERK — Fair value loss on derivative
(MtzE27) financial instruments (Note 27) 43,274 =
—ARHESRHEE ZRERA - Dividend income from
(FfzE28) available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 28) (5,684) (7,509)
1,685,392 1,774,883
BEESEY: Changes in working capital:
—BEBRTERGEEM) RS — (Increase)/decrease in pledged
bank deposits (1,277) 12,944
—EWE ZERGEM) R — (Increase)/decrease in trade
receivables (36,291) 3,496
—TANRIE - e RAM - Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
PR IR L,/ (3 ) deposits and other receivables 234,082 (372,049)
— H b I B HA B U FRTE — (Increase)/decrease in other
() /> non-current receivables (320) 285,038
—FEEM - Increase in inventories (238,080) (773)
-EBHESEFRERE - (Decrease)/increase in trade and
CRA) /38 m bills payables (31,976) 246,165
—Ht N RIBERETER - Decrease/(increase) in other
CRLA) /#80 payables and accruals (25,902) 826,442
— H 3E B A FE 5 SR IE 38 0 — Increase in other non-current
payables 33,841 34,308
BEEFZHE Cash generated from operations 1,619,469 2,810,454

Bm—EPEERBRAR —E—=FFK
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36 EEELCES (E)

37

RBEREXRD  HEWE  BE LR
BZPTERAEERE

36 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(CONTINUED)

In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment comprise:

—E—-= —E—_F
2013 2012
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BRTEDFE (M1 5E7) Net book amount (Note 7) 590,008 223,128
LEWE - BEMREN Gains/(losses) on disposal of property,
M/ (BB (M27) plant and equipment (Note 27) 190,403 (5,475)
WEE 7 RGBT & Value added tax and other tax
H £ T8 BT o0 surcharges charged to buyer 84,728 35,923
LHEMX BERREZ Proceeds from disposal of property,
Frig8 k1A plant and equipment 865,139 253,576
FEERE Non-cash transactions

RZE—=ZFNETBIBRERFEER
EIEE B A EAR147,497,000

The principal non-cash transaction in 2013 is the acquisition
of non-current assets by assuming directly related liabilities

TTWEIERENEE ° with amount of RMB147,497,000.
BEERESH FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
—=E-= —E—ZF
2013 2012
AR T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BT EB S 2 ER Guarantees to a related party 79,808 97,200

AEE G EBE QRS EE R GKD 2 RIT
BEEMBERSRHER HNZ2T—=
F+-_A=+—H  SEBRHERE
ZRERERBTEERIIVBERE -
@5 A AR 79,808,000 (ZFE——
& : AR#¥97,200,0007T) °

HRARERRYBERAON R FE
WAEKX - B ERERE P RERER
ZEREH -

The Group provides guarantees for the bank borrowings and
finance leases of Jinmailang Corporate, an associate of the
Group. As at 31 December 2013, Jinmailang Corporate has
drawn down bank borrowings and entered into finance leases
under such guarantee with total amount of RMB79,808,000
(2012: RMB97,200,000).

The financial guarantee contract had not been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group
considered that the fair value of the guarantee contract was
insignificant.

m—EEREERARLAR —FE—=FFK
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38 EIE 38 COMMITMENTS
(@) BEAEE (@) Capital commitments
REBFBEME  BENMEEHENE The Group’s capital commitments in respect of
RAEARPENT property, plant and equipment are as follows:
—E—-=F —ET——F
2013 2012
AR TR ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BRI ER B Contracted but not provided for 850,191 307,862
RIE—=F+-"F=+—H K27 There is no capital commitment of the Company as at 31
A AT R] B AN AHHE o December 2013,
(b) KEHERAIE (b) Operating lease commitments
KEBIEAFFNA - The Group is the lessee:
ANEEEFBITTRENEE The Group leases buildings under non-cancellable lease
THAET AR RENEEEE agreements. The Group’s future aggregate minimum
ek T A E KK ENRIEME lease payments under these non-cancellable operating
SRAFEINT ¢ leases are as follows:
—E—-=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥ TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
TiBE—&F Not later than 1 year 23,589 27,714
BB —FENBBREF Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 34,710 39,121
HE A T F Later than 5 years 105,137 122,280
163,436 189,115

R—EFEERBRAR —E—=FFHK
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(b)

ReBERE &)
AEBEBLHA -

AEBENAHENKEEHE W Z
THHEREME - BEM&EE - %
FHENETRNFHRERE - £
THHENEZHERZTAS
BRI E W RIEHESARWT
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38 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Operating lease commitments (continued)
The Group is the lessor:

The Group leases out investment properties, plant
and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
under these non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

—E—-=F —ET——F

2013 2012

ARE TR ARET T

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

B —F Not later than 1 year 62,848 41,860
HA—FENBBAF Later than 1 year and not later

than 5 years 63,533 87,316

BBRF Later than 5 years 26,785 38,815

153,166 167,991

R—EENEZERARAE —F-=FFK
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38 &IE (4E) 38 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

184

(c)

REAE

R-Z—=F+-A=+—H K
SEREEZBEALBEZERNA
EMT

i)y WERZZ—ZF+—A3]
Y REE mELELE
ZHEBRREREZEEES B
2R P REARRZE
Gy e R_TE—=ZF+=
A=Z+—H8 A&EEERRT
EIIERINFTFEHARE
51,665,0007T ' 18 & K50%
BAENRBERA - &K

ZEREB 4 AR #51,665,000

TER_ZT—NF = A

—t+—HAX -

IIF

iy RZZTEZTALFWMA &&
B HEHEAMIEEH TP
SMHINEERE R A ERE
R UEERDPEKS
RMMABEBHNRAFA
KRYBEM ANEBECERE
REEERMA £39.74%
ZHaMER BREEAEA
R #245,000,0007T ° A =
T—=—%+=-_A=+—H
MNEEAREMBEHRERE
HEZR AEEEHELE
KB AR 232,750,000
TR TREREAARE
12,250,0007C - B REE
AHETEN T —MNFEM A
A e

M—EEREEZERBARLE —F—=FFK

(c)

Investment commitments

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has following
significant commitments in respect of capital
contribution to investments:

(i) Pursuant to a subscription agreement
entered into in November 2010, the existing
shareholders of Wondersun Dairy agreed
to subscribe for additional shares of the
Company in proportion of their respective equity
interests. As at 31 December 2013, the Group
has made additional capital contribution of
approximately RMB51,665,000 to Wondersun
Dairy, representing 50% of the committed new
subscription of share capital. The remaining
commitment of investment of approximately
RMB51,665,000 is payable no later than 31
March 2014.

(i) In April 2009, the Group together with other
investors set up a Sino-foreign joint venture
company in the PRC, China F&B, for the purpose
of investments in companies engaging in food
and beverage business in the PRC. The Group
has agreed to subscribe, in aggregate, 39.74%
of the registered capital of China F&B at a total
subscription price of RMB245,000,000. As at 31
December 2013 and up to the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements,
the Group has made capital injection of
RMB232,750,000 with the remaining investment
commitment of RMB12,250,000 which has been
committed to be paid no later than April 2014.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate holding company of the Group is #—1{b%
AR AT (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®)
(“Uni-President”), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation. The directors of the Company are
of the view that the subsidiaries of Uni-President, the joint

ventures and associates of the Group are regarded as related

parties.

(@) Transactions with related parties:

The following transactions are carried out with related

parties:
—E-=f —E-_F
2013 2012
Bzt ARETR ARETR
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
RH# R Sales of raw materials and
HE finished goods: ()
S—D¥E KB AR Subsidiaries of Uni-President 270,743 111,048
AEBZAEEDHE Joint ventures and associates
PN of the Group 12,265 10,881
283,008 121,929
BE#H R ia#R#E  Purchase of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
F—1EIHMEBEAF  Subsidiaries of Uni-President 2,365,172 1,274,538
KREBZAHENME  Joint ventures and associates
AN of the Group 353,802 333,976
2,718,974 1,608,514
Y AR 7 i 5% Logistics service expense: ()
H—EZHEARR Subsidiaries of Uni-President 25,155 8,954
B R A Consultation service income: 0]
H—EZHERRF Subsidiaries of Uni-President 21,871 2,844
KEBZAZNMER Joint ventures and associates
Fl/N] of the Group 1,170 1,167
23,041 4,011
HEYE  BE Sales of property, plant and
K& equipment: (ii)
S—D¥ZHEAR  Subsidiaries of Uni-President 698,311 215,635
& WA Rental income: (ifi)
m—1E KB /AR Subsidiaries of Uni-President 28,657 12,560
* BN ABIIAARREEERN * The English name represents the best effort by

BEPXEWEH -

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013

management of the Company in translating the Chinese

name.
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186

(a)

BELRZ (&) :

Bi&E

(i)

(i)

(i)

BHERmRREME  BE -
R TS K o w AR A T AR AR AR B
1 & 2 R R AETT ©

R-ZZE—=F-A A&EE%
RAGF—DE MR E QA
HEZIREER (AREEFER
([PET)) RTPEE R G Z 88
HER)  BERSABREARKE
698,311,0007T * E4£FE A A
R #213,264,000% B 7 H b F]
1B (I 7E 27) ©

HERHEMEZRA  RRE
RTRIT PRI L a8 2 IR ARETE o

e B RS AR Y A
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

BG—EFEZERERAR —E—=FFK
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013

Transactions with related parties (continued):

Notes:

(0

(i)

(i)

The above sales of finished goods and raw materials,
purchases logistics service and consulting service
are carried out in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements.

In June 2013, the Group completed the disposal of
various production lines for the manufacturing of PET
and TP packaging and bottling for beverage products,
to two subsidiaries of Uni-President at a total cash
consideration of RMB698,311,000. The Group derived
a gain from the disposal of RMB213,264,000 which was
recorded in “other gains” (Note 27).

Rental income represents income from lease of
properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
of agreements made between the parties.



39 EHMLEXRE (&)

(b)

BARARE TS A5 BR

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H"
ANEFEEBAB TEEUTEKX
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(o) Balances with related parties:

The Group has the following significant balances with its
related parties as at 31 December 2013:

Gl —B-—=f —T——f
2013 2012
ARET T ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FE U BB B 77 B %R ¢ Balances due from related parties:
JEY B B AR (M 5E17) - Trade receivables (Note 17):
H—DELHBAR Subsidiaries of Uni-President 32,171 10,232
FE] 0 IE e AN T Prepayments and other receivables
(Pfzx18) - (Note 18):
H—rEIZHBAF Subsidiaries of Uni-President
AEEBZEELE Joint ventures and associates 29,793 8,045
&N of the Group 1,595 1,028
31,388 9,073
63,599 19,305
JE < B BSS 5 BAEE ¢ Balances due to related parties:
JET B B A (i 5E23) - Trade payables (Note 23):
m—EZHBRA Subsidiaries of Uni-President 157,816 226,783
AEBZAEEDEHE Joint ventures and associates
NG of the Group 11,752 12,394
169,568 239,177
REFER - BUYR BB 2 4 The carrying amounts of balances due from and due to

4
o

BHEREEEEQFEMES

sheet dates.

related parties approximate their fair value as at balance

FEEEASHH (c) Key management compensation:
—=E-= —E—F
2013 2012
AR® TR ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
e EAMEMEF Salaries, bonus and other welfares 12,282 12,906

B—EPBEERERAR —E—=FFH
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40 M2 =l 40 SUBSIDIARIES

T ER = E—=F+=-_A=+—8H The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

ZEIEMBARA -

of the Company as at 31 December 2013.

AMALER/
NEER %R A BRTRARRA frighE TRER/KEnY
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
“E-=f —ZT--F
2013 2012
EERE Directly owned
G-TNERERAR REHS 574,770,000% T 100% 100% REER/FHEHS
ZEEREXAZTNA
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, USD574,770,000 100% 100%  Investment holding/
29 June 2006 Cayman Islands
BEREE Indirectly owned
G-rF(RE)REBRLA HELE 809,470,000% T 100% 100% REZER/+E
—“AANEZATH
(Uni-President Enterprises (China) Shanghai, PRC. USD809,470,000 100% 100%  Investment holding/PRC
Investments Ltd.") 10 March 1998
MEG-CERBERAA HESEAE 37,500,000% 70 100% 100% EERHEERH Bm
—“hWhZ%-A+=H RAEE/HE
(Xinjiang President Enterprises Urumai, PRC. USD37,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 13 January 1992 beverages, foods and
instant noodles/PRC
IRE-RAERAA PRI 23,400,000% 100% 100% HEREEHFEE/TE
—“ANZEMAZH
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD23,400,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale
Food Co., Ltd. %) 2 April 1992 of instant noodles/PRC
KBS - rERmERAA A 65,000,0005 T 100% 100% AERBESRH
—hAZERATMA RAEE/HE
(Chengdu President Enterprises Chengdu, PRC. USD65,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 April 1993 of beverages and
instant noodles/PRC
BlG-t¥RmBERAA EEIL 96,000,000% 70 100% 100% HERHERHR
—“hN=ERATNA FfEs,/ R
(Kunshan President Enterprises Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 May 1993 of beverages and instant

noodles/PRC

M—EEREEZERBARLE —F—=FFK
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Mg A =] (4&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HRRIER/
NEER WHRAS BEARBRRA Fris R i TEEK/RERE
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf 2%
2013 2012
RER—CERMARDA PE R E 59,600,000 70 100% 100% EERBEERHR
—“AN=FtAtH HEE/ P8
(Wuhan President Enterprises Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd. %) 7 July 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BNG— 5 ARAR GETY 75,000,000% ¢ 100% 100% EERBEEHHR
—“AMABE+ZARA HEE/ P E
(Guangzhou President Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Corp.") 5 December 1994 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EHG—CEERAT RS 39,900,000% ¢ 100% 100% EERHERHR
—AAEFRATRA HEE/ w8
(Shenyang President Enterprises Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.*) 15 June 1995 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
AESR-CXBERAR G 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100% AERHERHR
~hAANEZB=t=H yikid VL
(Hefei President Enterprises Hefei, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.*) 23 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REEG—CEERAT mEREE 25,000,000% 7 100% 100% EERHERHR
—“AANEZA=17A HEE/ E
(Harbin President Enterprises Harbin, PRC. USD25,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 26 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IRG—-RRERAA RELR 29,500,000% 7 100% 100% HERHESRH/HE
“T2-4-f-1H
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD29,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Drinks Co., Ltd.) 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC

B—EPBEERERAR —E—=FFH
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40 B~ TF (F&E) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HMRIER/
NREB BHERAS BRARBERAE Frish g TEEK/BERY
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf -T-CF
2013 2012
HER-EARRA EHS 31,000,000% 100% 100% EERHERHR
“EE-F¥nATNA FEE/ E
(Nanchang President Enterprises Nanchang, PRC. USD31,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 18 May 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BMG—CEERAR EEN 20,000,000% 7 100% 100% AERHERHR
“EE-F+ATNA FEE/ P8
(Fuzhou President Enterprises Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.*) 19 July 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BMG—rRBRRA GET 87,000,000% ¢ 100% 100% EERBEERHR
—TZ-FXA=1EA yikid VAl
(Zhengzhou President Enterprises Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 25 June 2002 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
g (LB HEERAR Gl 8,600,000% T 100% 100% &8 SRERRR
“ERRETATLAE 85/ %8
(President (Shanghai) Trading Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 100% 100%  Trading of beverages,
Co., Ltd.%) 17 October 2005 instant noodles and
food products/PRC
REEERAERAA E) 1,000,000%7 & % 100% 100% ANERER/A%E
“EERFTZAZTNR
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.”) Taiwan NTD1,000,000 100% 100%  Human resource
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
BRG-CEREERAA HEIEH 30,000,000% T 100% 100% HERBEHBR
ZE3+E+-ANA kit VAl
(Kunming President Enterprises Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 8 November 2007 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
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Mg A =] (4&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HRRIER/
NEER WHRAS BEARBRRA Fris R i TEEK/RERE
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf 2%
2013 2012
EEERERAA Bh 1,601,920% 0 100% 100% REER/FE
ZZEN\FAAEA
(Champ Green Capital Co., Limited) ~ Hong Kong USD1,601,920 100% 100%  Investment holding/
5 June 2008 Hong Kong
BEE-BIKERAA PEES 4,150,000% 0 100% 100% EERHESRR/HE
“EENE_AZTH
(Bama President Mineral Water Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
R-EBARRERAF Bh 2,750,317,600 7T 100% 100% REBRERES
ZEENEMAZTA
(Uni-President Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD2,750,317,600 100% 100%  Investment holding and
Holdings Co., Ltd.) 30 April 2009 trading
SECKRERRA(LB)FRAR  hELE 150,000% 0 100% 100%  EE#N
“EENERATZR
(Champ Green (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 100% 100%  Management Consulting
Consulting Co., Ltd.”) 12 May 2009
BER-PERRARAR PEEZ 1,000,000% 7T 100% 100% AERHERH/HE
ZZ-T£=ANA
(Zixi President Enterprises Drinks Zixi, PRC. USD1,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 9 March 2010 beverages/PRC
KOG RARAR RERD 17,000,000 ¢ 100% 100% AERBEERHR
“Z-ZEAA-A FEE/ E
(Changsha President Enterprises Changsha, PRC. USD17,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 1 September 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RBG-DEEERULERRE  PEKH AR %1,000,0007 100% 100% &%/ HE
“Z-FF/\A-tWA
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful Noodle ~ Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Catering services/PRC

Restaurant Dining Culture Limited
Company®)

24 August 2010
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40 BB (4&)

40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRIER/
NAER BHRAH BRTRBRRE Fir s IR TRER/KEnY
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
—BE-zZf -—ZT-——f
2013 2012
LG rEERAR HEGET 25,000,000% 7T 100% 100% AERBEHHR
“E-ZETAZTNR yibid VAL
(Zhanjiang President Enterprises Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 28 October 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BES-LRBRRA PEEE 17,000,000% T 100% 100% HAERHERHR
“E-ZE+-A+5H HEE/ DA
(Nanning President Enterprises Nanning, PRC. USD17,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 16 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REG-LRBRRA hERE 20,000,000 T 100% 100% HEBRKR
“E-ZF+-A-A FERR/HE
(Changchun President Enterprises Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of mineral
Co., Ltd.%) 01 December 2010 water and instant food
projects/PRC
Mrsf—tEARAA BT 52 A 12,000,000% 7 100% 100% AHRERSE/HE
“Z-ZE+-A+hA
(Akesu President Enterprises Akesu, PRC. USD12,000,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of forage and
Co., Ltd.*) 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
ZMFE—EBRAR REIZRM 30,000,000% T 100% 100% HERBERHER
ZE——fF-AZTNH HEE/ P8
(Taizhou President Enterprises Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.*) 28 January 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EREG—XARAT hHER 33,600,000% T 100% 100% BEXEmRIAXEMR
ZE——8ZR+K~A BERTE/HE
(Chongaing President Enterprises Chongaing, PRC. USD33,600,000 100% 100%  Wholesale and retail of
Co., Ltd.) 16 February 2011 pre-packaged food and
dairy products/PRC
BRAE-CEARAT Gk 12,000,000% T 100% 100% HAERHERHR
—E-——#-f-1@mA yibid VAL
(Baiyin President Enterprises Baiyin, PRC. USD12,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 24 February 2011 beverages and instant

noodles/PRC
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Mg A =] (4&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HRRIER/
NEER WHRAS BEARBRRA Fris R i TEEK/RERE
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf 2%
2013 2012
L -BBRREXARAA g AR %60,000,0007C 100% 100% HEXK/HE
—EE=FN\f—H
(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 100% 100%  Leasing business/PRC
Century Co., Ltd. %) 1 August 2003
HER—RERAAERAA e L AR #20,000,0007T 100% 100% RAER/HE
ZEE-FtATN\H
(Uni-President Shanghai Management ~ Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding/PRC
Consulting Co., Ltd. *) 18 July 2003
BREA-CEARAR hEEE 14,000,000 7 100% 100% EERHERH/HE
—Z——4=H=H
(Hainan President Enterprises Chengmai, PRC. USD14,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 3 March 2011 beverages/PRC
BRESF—EERAF mEAR 25,000,000 7 100% 100% AERBEFHR
—2——%t-AtIH HEE/ PR
(Shijiezhuang President Enterprises Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD25,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 15 November 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EES-tEERAT e ER 30,000,000 T 100% 100% EEREERHR
“Z——fMATNE FEE/ P8
(Jinan President Enterprises Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 18 April 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EBS - EERAT HEER 30,000,000 T 100% 100% HERBERBR
“T——FtARA HER/TE
(Guiyang President Enterprises Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.*) 6 July 2011 beverages and instant

noodles/PRC

m—EEREERARLAR —FE—=FFK
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40 BB (4&)

40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HMRIER/
NREB BHERAS BRARBERAE Frish g TEEK/BERY
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf -T-CF
2013 2012
BRR—EBRKERAH PERR 4,800,000% 70 100% 100% £EBRRK/PE
“Z——%+AKA
(Wuxue Uni Mineral Water Co., Ltd.") ~ Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing mineral
6 July 2011 water/PRC
ERERREHAERAT HE LS 950,000% 7T 100% 100% HekRmRIA¥ER
“E——EXAZT/N\B B/ mE
(President (Shanghai) Private Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of pre-packaged
Label Marketing & Trading 28 June 2011 food and dairy
Co., Ltd.®) products/PRC
RNG—CEERAA RERNM 30,000,000 100% 100% EERHERH/H
I YAV B =
(Hangzhou President Enterprises Hangzhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 21 June 2011 beverages/PRC
BN —EBRAT REIRM 30,000,000% 7t 100% 100% AERBEFHR
ZE-—ENAZH FEE/ PE
(Xuzhou President Enterprises Xuzhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., td.") 2 September 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
G-mE(RIL)ERAA HEIR 2,000,000% 70 100% - BRRRRYE/HE
ZE-ZF=A-+N\A
(President (Kunshan) Trading Kunshan, PRC. USD2,000,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.") 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
AES—CEERAR BT 30,000,000% 7T 100% - ERkRMiE/HE
ZE-ZEZANA
(Henan President Enterprises Henan, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.") 9 March 2012 food products/PRC
ERG—CXARAH hEER 1,700,000% T 100% - HERRRMRA%ER
—¥--FHA=1A Ha/mE
(Wuyuan President Enterprises Wuyuan, PRC. USD1,700,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.") 30 May 2012 food and dairy
products/PRC

Bm—EPEERAERAR —E—=FFH
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MY "] (4&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HRRIER/
NEER WHRAS BEARBRRA Fris R i TEEK/RERE
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf 2%
2013 2012
RES—CXBERAF PEIRE 30,000,000% ¢ 100% - EERHERHR
“E-—#+AXA yikid VAl
(Shaanxi President Enterprises Shaanxi, PRC USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 6 July 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
THA—CEARAR REER 23,000,000% 7T 100% - BEERRHE/HE
ZZ-Z4%+-A%A
(Jiangsu President Enterprises Nanjing, PRC. USD23,000,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.") 5 November 2012 food products/PRC
RAWLG—%(EH) hEIE M ARE7,651,2007T 100% - BEERRHE/HE
BRKBRAR “E-=%=A+EH
(Changbaishan Mountain President Jilin, PRC. RMB97,651,200 100% - Wholesale of pre-packaged
Enterprises (Jilin) Mineral Water 15 Mach 2013 food products/PRC
Co., Ltd. *)
F-0¥(BL)EXREERAR  FERWL AB160,000,0007C 100% - RBHE/PE
ZE--ENANA
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) Kunshan, PRC. RMB60,000,000 100% - Real estate/PRC
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.") 9 April 2013
EER—XARAT RER) 9,000,000% 7T 100% - BERRMRIFER
—Z-=FNmA=1+=H fE/mE
(Ningxia President Enterprises Yinchuan, PRC. USD9,000,000 100% - Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.*) 22 April 2013 food and dairy
products/PRC
NELH—LERRAA BT AER 18,000,000% 7L 100% - EERBEHHR
“E-Z£RANA ki VA
(Uni-President Enterprises Hohhot, PRC. USD18,000,000 100% - Manufacturing and sale of
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.") 9 May 2013 beverages and instant

noodles/PRC
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MEB ATl (&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HMRIER/
NREB BHERAS BRARBERAE Frish g TEEK/BERY
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf -T-CF
2013 2012
ERE-EERHRMERAT PR R 14,000,000 T 100% - EERBEAHR
“Z-=%xA=H HER/TE
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD14,000,000 100% - Manufacturing and sale of
Drink & Food Co., Ltd.") 3 June 2013 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
WESL - EERAR PEEH 6,000,000% 7 100% - BRRRRHE/TE
—ZZ-=%+-A%A
(Shanxi President Enterprises Jinzhong, PRC. USD6,000,000 100% - Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd) 5 November 2013 food products/PRC
FESERRARHKMARAR PE LS 40,000,000% 7T 100% - BEERRKE/HE
-5+ A+mA
(Shanghai Huiyuan Food & Shanghai, PRC. USD40,000,000 100% - Wholesale of pre-packaged

Beverage Co., Ltd.") 14 October 2001

AR E - &8 REBHHE AR
EABRETER - NP2 SR
2 —RHBATER S BREE
AR -

* RXEWTIHARRERER @ E

PXEEED -
n\l:l ET&%EZ%IE
RZZE—NF—A=Z+=H TEEE

BEBEIT6NEE  A2BERAREI0
BT - REFH=F" hﬁ_? +&
—AZt+t=BR2HREE

EEPEZERERAE —F—=FFH
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food products/PRC

All subsidiaries located in the PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong
are limited liability entities. One subsidiary incorporated in the
Cayman Islands is an exempted company with limited liability.

*

The English name represents the best effort by management of
the Company in translating the Chinese name.

EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE
BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 23 January 2014, the Group issued 3.6% notes at a
principal value of RMB1 billion in Taiwan. The notes have a
three years term and will be fully repayable by 23 January
2017.

Un| President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013
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UNI-PRESIDENT ENTERPRISES (CHINA) INVESTMENT CO.,LTD.




% A— A MNEIIEHR /R S
UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(—RRHASHSEMRINERQH)

(Stock Code BR134R5%: 220)
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